
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISON OF PUBLIC HEAL TH SERVICES

Lori A. Weawr 29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
Commisiioner 603-271-4501 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 4501

Fax:603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhh$.nh.gov
Iain N. Watt

Director

February 5, 2025

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract, which was originally
competitively bid, with JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. {VC #161611), Bow. NH. to expand
chronic disease prevention and management training and development opportunities for
healthcare and public health professionals, by increasing the price limitation by ̂ 43,631 from
$2,880,553 to $3,324,184 with no change to the contract completion date of June 30, 2026,
effective upon Governor and Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on April 21,2021, item #18,
and amended on May 3, 2023, item #33.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2025 and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2026, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is amending the scope of services
and adding funding to allow the Contractor to expand training opportunities to new types of
healthcare practitioners. The Contractor provides chronic disease prevention and management
training and development services under the current contract, which was originally competitively
bid through a Request for Proposals in State Fiscal Year 2021. This request to amend and expand
the current scope of work will ensure continuity of services and allow the Department to continue
to leverage the Contractor's specialized knowledge and experience with a broader audience of
providers and patients. Additionally, the Contractor has cultivated strong, ongoing relationships
with providers and partner organizations that benefit from these services and is familiar with the
overall programs and program goals, ensuring seamless Integration and consistent oversight to
produce better outcomes via new practitioner types.

The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to expand chronic disease prevention
and management professional training and development services to a broader audience of health
professionals, including physical therapists, exercise physiologists, cardiac rehabilitation staff,
and geriatricians. The programs will increase awareness of available evidence-based programs
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for chronic disease prevention and management. In addition, the Contractor will promote a larger
variety of programs to professionals serving individuals with these chronic conditions inciuding
Tai Ji Quan, Enhance Fitness, and the Arthritis Foundation Aquatic program. While these
programs aim to reduce joint pain associated with arthritis, they are also beneficial to adults with
diabetes and high biood pressure. Furthermore, enhanced efforts to reach rural areas of the state
will include training and technical assistance" to support models to meet the unique needs of these
populations.

The Department will monitor existing and expanded services to ensure performance
indicators are achieved annually, including:

•  Reach at least 100 healthcare and public health professionals and six (6) healthcare
systems with comprehensive technical .and financial support for evidence-based
strategies.

•  Ensure 100% of healthcare systems report high satisfaction with contractor-provided
support, as evidenced by participant surveys.

•  Provide 100% of eligible training participants with Continuing Education Units (CEU)
documentation and distribute evaluations to ail participants in accordance with
credentialing body standards.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Department will be unable
to engage an expanded list of health practitioners for the provision of chronic disease prevention
and management services, which reduce medical costs and promote quality of life.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number (ALN) 93.426, FAIN
NU58DP007441: ALN 93.988, FAIN NU58DP007421: ALN 93.436, FAIN NU58DP007652: ALN
93.945, FAIN NU58DP007480; and ALN 93.898, FAIN NU58DP007115.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Xa Lori A. Weaver
Commissioner

ectfuily submitted

Th€ Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Fiscal Detail Sheet

Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A02

05-95-90-904510-3228 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PREVENTION AND WELLNESS, COMBINED CHRONIC

DISEASE

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount'

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc

90017002

(diabetes)
' $82,500 $0 $82,500

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017003 (heart) $82,500 $0 $82,500

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc

90017002

(diabetes)
$115,000 $0 $115,000

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017003 (heart) $115,000 $0 $115,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc

90017002

(diabetes)
^ \ $115,000 $0 $115,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017003 (heart) $115,000 $0 $115,000

2024 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
90017003 (heart) $175,000 $0 $175,000

2024 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief

90017002

(diabetes)
$175,000 $0 $175,000

2025 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
90010028 (heart) $175,000 )  $175,000 $350,000

2025 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief

90010023

(diabetes)
$175,000 $175,000 $350,000

2026 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
90010028 (heart) $175,000 $85,000 $260,000

2026 074-500589.
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief

90010023

(diabetes)
$175,000 $85,000 $260,000

Subtotal $1,675,000 $520,000 $2,195,000

05-95-90-904510-3226 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PREVENTION AND WELLNESS, WISEWOMAN

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90070450 $60,000 $0 $60,000

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

.  Prog Svc
90070450 $60,000 $0 $60,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90070450 $60,000 $0 $60,000
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Fiscal Detail Sheet

Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases

RFP-2021-OPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A02

2024 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
90070450 $30,000 $0 $30,000

2025 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
90070450 $30,000 $15,000 $45,000

2026 074-50,0589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
90070450 $30,000 $15,000 $45,000

Subtotal $270,000 $30,000 $300,000

05-95-90-904510-3225 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PREVENTION AND WELLNESS , COMPREHENSIVE

CANCER

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
, Contracts for

Prog Svc
90080081

BGCP
$25,241 $0 $25,241

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc

90080083

Comp Cancer
$5,000 $0 $5,000

2022 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief

90080081

BGCP
$52,241 $0 $52,241

2022 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief

90080083

Gomp Cancer
$5,000 $0 $5,000

2023 074-500589 -
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief

90080081

BGCP
$52,241 $0 $52,241

2023 074-50,0589
Grants for Public

'Asst and Relief

90080083

Gomp Cancer
$5,000 $0 $5,000

2024 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief

90080081

BGCP .
$52,241 $0 $52,241

2024 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief

90080083

Gomp Cancer
$10,000 $0 $10,000

2025 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief

90080081

BGCP
$52,241 $0 $52,241

2025 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief

90080083

Gomp Cancer
$10,000 $0 $10,000

2026 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief

90080081

BGCP
$52,241 $0 $52,241

2026 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief

.90080083

Gomp Cancer
■ $10,000 $0 $10,000

Subtotal $331,446 $0 $331,446
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Fiscal Detail Sheet

Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A02

05-95-90-904510-3227 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PREVENTION AND WELLNESS, ARTHRITIS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 . 102-500731
Contracts for

Prop Svc
90017717 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Proa Svc
90017717 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

. Prog Svc
90017717 ^ $15,000 $0 $15,000

2024 074-50.0589
Grants for Public

" Asst and Relief
90017717 ■ $15,000 $0 $15,000

2025 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
90017717 $15,000 $50,000 $65,000

2026 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
■  90017717 $15,000 '$25,000 $40,000

Subtotal $90,000 $75,000 $165,000

05-95-90-904510-3222 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PREVENTION AND WELLNESS, ORAL HEALTH

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2024 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
90002215 $151,369 $0 $151,369

2025 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
90002215 $181,369 $181,369

2026 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
90002215 $181,369 ($181,369) $0

Subtotal $514,107 ($181,369) $332,738

Total $2,880,553 $443,631 $3,324,184
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Docusign Envelope ID: 7CC518AF-5194-4264-ADFB-69EC44EEFA4E

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2

This Amendment to the Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases
contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
("State" or "Department") and JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on April 21, 2021 (Item #18), as amended on May 3. 2023 (Item #33), the Contractor agreed to perform
certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in
consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$3,324,184

2. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment #1, Scope of Services; Section 1.3.7, to read:

1.3.7 Adopting innovative and systems-based approaches to establish and enhance healthcare
provider patient counseling on physical activity for arthritis management including walking,
and referrals to Arthritis Appropriate Evidence-Based Intervention (AAEBI) such as Tai Ji
Quan, Enhance Fitness, and aquatics;

3. Modify Exhibit B - Amendment #1. Scope of Services; Section 7, Work Plan, to read:

7.1. The Contractor shall adhere to the Work Plan in accordance with Exhibit B-3, SFY 2025
and SFY 2026 Work Plan, Amendment #2. '

4. Modify'Exhibit B - Amendment #1, Scope of Services; Sections 9.3 through 9.8, to read:

9.3 The Contractor agrees to monthly site reviews conducted by the Department onsite or virtually
online, of program operations.to assess compliance with applicable contract objectives, as
needed, that shall include, but is not limited to:

9.3.1. Any barriers to achieving contract objectives.

9.3.2. Corrective action plans to resolve any barriers, as specified in 9.3.1, as applicable.

9.3.3. Progress and/or issues with any Corrective Action Plans, as applicable.

9.4. Notwithstanding Paragraph 8, Event of Default/Remedies and Paragraph 9, Termination,
of the General Provisions (Form P-37) of the contract, the Contractor shall annually develop
and submit a Corrective Action Plan to the Department for any performance measure(s)
not achieved, by May 30th of each year of the Contract Period.

9.5. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Departrhent to enhance
contract, management, improve results, and adjust program delivery and policy based on
successful outcomes., ,

9.6. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the Department,
including client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc. A-S-1,3 Contractor Initials
2/12/202T

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A02 Page 1 of 5 Date
v7.12.23



Docusign Envelope ID: 7CC518AF-5194-4264-ADFB-69EC44EEFA4E

9.7. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the Department in a
format specified by the Department.

9.8. RESERVED.

5. Add Exhibit B-3, SPY 2025 and SPY 2026 Work Plan, Amendment #2, which is attached hereto
and incorporated by reference herein.

6. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms; Section 1, to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by 100% Pederal Punds from:

1.1. Improve the Health of Americans Through Prevention and Management of Diabetes and
Heart Disease, and Stroke; as awarded on August 25, 2020, and as awarded on June
14, 2024, by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), Prevention-and
Management of Diabetes and Heart Disease in NH, ALN 93.988, PAIN NU58DP007421.

1.2. Assistance Programs for Chronic Disease Prevention and Control; National Center for
Chronic Disease Prevention and Health Promotion, as awarded on October 19, 2020,
and as awarded on June 27, 2024, by the CDC, New Hampshire Public Health
Approaches to Addressing Arthritis, ALN 93.945, PAIN NU58DP007480;

1.3. Assistance Programs for Cancer Prevention and Control Programs for State, Territorial
and Tribal Organization, as awarded on August 24, 2020, and as awarded on June 5,
2024, by the CDC, New Hampshire Breast & Cervical Cancer, Comprehensive Cancer
and Cancer Registry Programs, ALN 93.898, PAIN NU58DP006298 and PAIIsl
NU58DP007115.

1.4. WELL-INTEGRATED SCREENING AND EVALUATION POR WOMEN ACROSS THE
NATION (WISEWOMAN), as awarded on November 30, 2020, and as awarded on June
27, 2024, by the CDC, New Hampshire WISEWOMAN, ALN 93.436, PAIN
NU58DP006836 and PAIN NU58DP007652. ■

1.5. State Actions to Improve Oral Health Outcomes, as awarded on June 24, 2022, by the
CDC, Improving and Sustaining Oral Health Outcomes in New Hampshire, ALN 93.366,
PAIN NU58DP006487.

7. Modify Exhibit C-26, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-
26, Budget Sheet - Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

8. Modify Exhibit C-27, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-
27, Budget Sheet - Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

9. Modify Exhibit C-28, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-
28, Budget Sheet - Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

10. Modify Exhibit C-31, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-
31, Budget Sheet - Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

11. Modify Exhibit C-33. Budget Sheet - Amendment #1, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-
33, Budget Sheet - Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

12. Modify Exhibit C-34, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit 0-
34, Budget Sheet - Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

-Initial

13. Modify Exhibit C-35, Budget Sheet - Amendment #1, by replacing it in its entirety wit!

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. A-S-1,3 Contractor Initials
2/12/2025
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Docusign Envelope ID; 7CC518AF-5194-4264-ADFB-69EC44EEFA4E

35, Budget Sheet - Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

14. Modify Exhibit C-38. Budget Sheet - Amendment #1, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-
38, Budget Sheet - Amendment #2, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

15. Modify Exhibit C-39. Budget Sheet - Amendment #1, by removing in its entirety.

-Initial

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor lnitials_

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A02 Page 3 of 5
v7.12.23



Docusign Envelope ID: 7CC518AF-5194-4264-ADFB-69EC44EEFA4E

All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not'modified by this Amendment remain
in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

2/13/2025

Date

^DocoSioned by;

. —077aBB63F0704C7..
Name:

Title:

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

2/12/2025

Date

-signed by:

Wit-
'S lB389A011C3tM0F.,
Ndine:

Title:

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

RFP-2021-DPHS'-03-EDUCA-0.1-A02
V. 7.12.23 '

A-S-1.3

Page 4 of 5



Docusign Envelope ID; 7CC518AF-5194-4264-ADFB-69EC44EEFA4E

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

•DeeuSlgn>d by:

2/14/2025

— Doeusign^d Dy:

— > 748734B44941460..

Date Name;

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE .

Date Name:

Title:

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. A-S-1.3

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A02 Page 5 of 5
V. 7,12.23



Docusign Envelop® ID; E655A286-201MAA4-AF1A-27BC7C19AE0O

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

.  Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Disease

Exhibit B-3 SFYs 2025 and SFY 2026 Work Plan - Amendment #2

OBJECTIVE 1: Provide efficient and effective contract manaqement with OPHS contract leads for Diabetes. Heart, Arthritis, WISEWOMAN, and Cancer initiatives.

Activities Timeline Evaluation/ Quality Measure

Launch contract work paperwork.
No rrwre than 1 week after contract

approval
Contract signed

Meet with each program lead to review contract activities, work plan,
sutxx)ntracts, roles and responsibilities and timeline and discus s any

proposed modifications to the work plan.

No more than 30days after contract
approval

Agenda, revised work plan, modifications
documented and minutes

Complete contract paperwork.
No more than 14days after notification of
contract

Required paperwork submitted

VVferk with program leads to operationalizelhe reporting of
performance measures andsetbaselinesandtargel.

No nK>re than 30days after contract approval
Minutes

Develop budget tracking, project tracking using doud-tiased
collaboration tool. >

No more than 30daysafter notification of
contract

Air table, Treilo boards and budget spread- sheets
aeated

Establish regJar management meetings (remote or in-person) with contract
ieadstoreview activities, training, interventions, challenges, progress and
funding.

Monthly Meetings scheduled and implemented

Pay invoices and track expenses as needed. Monthly POs filed, variance reports

Invoice DPHS monthly.by the 19th of each month. Monthly Invoice paid

Sutxrit quarterly narrative reports to DPHS that indude progress and
challenges against the work plan deliverables, ̂ gested improvements,
summary of events.

Quarterly: June, September, December
Quarterly reports

Submit andsummary report ofa!) training eventsaaoss programs.
June28, 2025 and June 28,2026 Submitted annual summary report

Maintain audit ready accounting filesinaccordance with accounting
procedures and practices.

Ongwng Accounting files with backup paperwork

Ensure all printed material reflect theapproved staternent with the
attribution of program funds.

Ongoing Approved documents

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A02

JSI Research & Training' Institute, Inc. Page 1 of 5

Contractor initials

1/30/202S
Date



Docusign Envelopo ID: e655A286-20l8-flAA4-AF1A-27BC7C19AEOO

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Disease

Exhibit B-3 SFYs 2025 and SPY 2026 Work Plan - Amendment U2

Gel wilten prior approval of wriiten, video or audio materials prior to

distribution.
Ongoing Approval-filed

Identify sutxxinlractors '
Within 30 days of contract approval Subcontractors Identified (meeting minutes)

Submit annual evaluation report forcancercampaign. June 26, 2025, and June 28, 2026 Submitted evaluation report based on performed
work

Establish subcontracts with verxJors as directed by DPHS - ongdng Subcontracts approved

Provide sliperxls as needed to support the implementation of evidence-
based interventions in.the community.

ongoing Invoice paid

Revise budgets as requested by programs Ongoing Revised budgets approved by Contracting/Billing
Jnil

OBJECTIVE 2: Work across Diabetes, Heart, Arthritis, WISEWOMAN, and Cancer programs to efficiently and cffectivoiy plan, promote, convene, and coordinate general event logistics for intended
audiences.

Activities Timeline Evaluation/ Quality Measure

Work with DPHS to assess the feasibility of offering professional
development events or other learning opportunities during SPY 2025 and
2026

A^thin 30 days of contract approval and
ingoing, as needed

Minutes

Coordinate.communicabon and contracting for speakers or subject matter
experts forscheduled events (i.e. directions, event details). Ongoing Minutes, signed contracts

Viforkwith DPHS staffto coordinate planning committee(s) for events as
needed.

As needed for events Minutes, contact list

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EOUCA-01-A02

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Page 2 of 5
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Docusign Envek^ ID: E655A286-201&-SAA4-AF1A-27BC7C19AE00

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Disease

Exhibit B-3 SFYs 2025 and SFY 2026 Work Plan - Amendment #2

CompleteapplicdliontosecureappropfiatecontinuingedLtcationcredlsas
needed {i.e., speaker CV, Conflict of Interest, Objectives, Description, and
Evaluation,)

As needed for events Completed application

Secure mieeting space if needed. As needed for events Contract with facility

Coordinate necessary technology. As needed for events Contract

Coordinate details of electronic registration of participants including pre
assessment if needed.

As needed for events Registration opened. # of registrants

Collect and track registration fee if needed. As needed for events Income collected

Open income line on contract to collect fee. As needed for events Task# for income line

Disseminate and compile postevent evaluationfrom participants.
As needed for events Summary of evaluations

Anange accdhmodations fa speakers as needed and as budget allows if
needed.

As needed for events
Consultant forms

Coadinate refreshmertfs in accordance with US Office of Management
and Budget guidelines if needed.

As needed for events
Contract with vendor

Staff event(s) as needed. As needed for events Attendance

Purchase mailing lists for audiences as needed. As needed for events Invoice

Promote evenl(s) via email, list ser\«s, and other online methods as needed. As needed for events
Email

Create, copy and coordinate mailing of promotional material. As needed for events Flyer

Coordinate dosed captioning a other accessible conmunication as
needed.

As needed for events'
Invoice and contract

Coordinate debrief of each event to revew evaluation summary and planning
success/chailengesandinformthedev^opment of future learning
events.

As needed for events

Minutes

Submit final summary report of training events. As needed for events Approved report

Handleoulreachtoandcommurvcation with all event exhibitors if

feasible.

As needed for events
Emails

Collect exhibitor fees. As needed for events Balance in accountfy"]!"

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. Page 3 of 5 Date
1/30/2025



Docusign Envelopo 10: E655A28&-201MAA4-AF1A-27BC7CigAE0O

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Disease

Exhibit B-3 SFYs 2025 and SFY 2026 Work Plan - Amendment #2

Provide exhibitors vvith a vendor prospectus of each sponsored event. As needed for events
Event prospectus

OBJECTIVE 3: Work with Diabetes, Heart, Arthritis and WISEWOMAN contract leads to develop and promote workforce development opportunities.

Activities Timeline Evaluation/ Quality Measure

VVork with Diabetes and Heart staff to identify their training needs for up to 2
per year professional development learning activities in subsequent years for
target professionals.

Within 30 days of contract approval and
ongoing, as needed Training plan

Coordinale the logistics for 1 or 2 \4rtiial learning events induding promotion,
planning, hosting, evaluation, accessible sen/ices.

July 30, 2025 . Training Plan

Complete the application for professional educadon inits as necessary.
As needed for events Application completed

\Abrk with Diabetes and Heart staff to assist with training and promotion of

evidence-hased strategies in 1.3 to prevent and manage chronic conditions. ongoing Activities identifted

Support stafftoimplement refenal of at-risk patients to com- munily
programs or CDC resources.

Ongoing with program staff f*^inutes

OBJECTIVE 5; Increase awareness of the NH Healthy Lives. Breast and Cervical Cancer Program (BCCP) reaching (1) individuals in targeted areas In NH and (2) individuals identifying as
LGBTOI,- • • .

Activities Timeline Evaluation/ Quality Measure

Meet with program staff to explore goal, objective, call to action, and
intended audience of BCCP campaign.

Within 30 days of contract approval Minutes with action items'

Support Marketing consultant to support the developmerrt of a strategic
marketing and communication plan for BCCP campaign in targeting areas and
to LGBTQ individuals induding core strategy and tactics and key performance
indicators (KPI).

VWthin 60-days of G & C contract
approval

Plan approved

Retain Marketing consultant as directed by DPHS. By June 2025 Consultant approved

Draft plan to conduct formative research as feasible TBD Report ..—w*

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A02

JSI Research & Training Institute, inc. Page 4 of 5

Contractor Initiais

1/30/2025



Docusign Envelop« ID: E65SA286-2016-4AA4-AF1A-27BC7C19AE00

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Disease

Exhibit B-3 SFYs 2025 and SFY 2026 Work Plan - Amendment #2

Identified media as budget allows. TBD Invoices

Establish soda! accounts as feasible. TBD Accounts

Wbrk with Marketing consultant to identify monthly on KRs to report. As needed Report submitted

Develop new content as needed based on feedback and improvement
process.

As needed Content approved

Gain priorapprovalonail campaign materials pnortodistribution. Ongoing
Approval files

Wsrk with Marketing consultant to submit campaign performance report one
month after campaign launch, then quarterly.

.Ongoing Report submitted

Submit annual report on eftectiveness of BCCP awareness campaign
induding; simmary of placement and promotions, impressions bought and
detivered, post-buy analyses and adcitionalmetricssuchas #ofclicks,
followers, likes, and comments for sodal, and # of placements and

potential Impressions for tradition^ (based on plan). lO^s, reach and
frequency of media and recommendations for improvement.

June 30, 2025 Report submitted

Submit report on all information collected ofany cancer related meeting
$uchasevaluationswithin30-daysofmeetinq(s).

•Within 30-days of meeting Report Submitted

RFP-2021-OPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A02

JSI Reftearch & Training Institute, Inc. Page 5 of 5

Contractor Initials _

Date 1/30/2025
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Budget Sheet • Amendment 02 {SFY2S Heart)

RFP-2021-OPHS^3-EDUCA-01-A02

Exhibit C-26

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Servlcea
Compfere one Outfpet form for each budgj^ period.

Contractor Name: jjs7Research & Training Institute, Inc. ••"1

Budget Request fon I
'Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Disease ('HEART}

Budget Period .July 1. 2024 -June 30. 2026

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable)^26.20%

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by DHHS"

1. Salary & Wages S22.236

2. Fringe Benefits SI 0.533

3. Consultants $0

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 $0

5.(a) SuDDlies - Educational SO

5.(b) Supplies - Lab '  . $0

S.fc) Supplies • Pharmacy .  - ^ so

5/d) Supplies - Medical so

S.(e) Supplies Office so

6. Travel $0

7. Software $0

V

8. (a) Other • Promotion / Education & Training / Strategy Implementation

'  $244,568

8. (b) Other- SO

8. (0 Other.
SO

Other (please specify) so

Other (please specify) so

Other (please specify) so

Other (please specify) so

9. Subrecipieni Contracts so

Total Direct Costs S277.338

Total Indirect Costs

. $72,662

»

.

TOTAL $350,000

JSI Reiearch Training Institute, Inc.

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-eDUCA-01-A02 Page 1 of 4

Initials

Date: 2/12/2025



Budget Sheet - Amendment 02 (SFY2S Heart)

RFP-2021-OPHS-03-EOUCA-01-A02

Exhibit C-27

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Comp/ete one budgtt torm for each budget period.

Contractor Name: ̂SIReseaivhS Training Institute "

Budget Request for- £dwca(«r? end Promotion to Prevent and Manage Cttronic Disease (DIABETES) -
Budget Period 'My 1. 2024- June 30. 2025

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) '26.20%

Line Item' Program Cost • Funded by OHHS

t. Salary & Wages

S22.236

2. Fringe Benefits

$10,533
.1 • ■ , •

3. Consultants $0

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1. $0

5.(a) SitDDlles - Educational $0

S.{b) Supplies - Lab $0

S.ic) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $0

6. Travel $0

7. Sofhvare $0

8. (a) Other • Promotion / Education & Training / Strategy Implementation

■  ■ - $244,568

8. (b) Other •
-  $0

8. (c) Other -
$0

Of/terfp/ease specr^) $0

Of/terfp/ease specfiy; $0

Of/iert'p/ease specify) $0
Oltier (please specify) $0

9. Subreciplent Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $277,338

.y

Total Indirect Costs

V

$72,662

TOTAL $350,000

JSI Research Training Irutltute, Inc.

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EOUCA-01-A02 Page 2 oi 4 Date 2/12/2025



Budget Sheet - Amendment HI (SFY2S Heart)

RFP-2O21-DPHS-OJ-EOUCA-01-A02

Exhibit C-28

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Service*
Comp/e(e one budpet form for eae/i bc/dper perfod.

ContractorName:|Js/Reseacft'4 Tra/rt/np'/nsWufe, fnc '
'.Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Draeaae

Budget Request for: IriV/SEH^AMN)
Budget Period yw/y f, 2024 thnsuffft >/(;ne 30, 2025

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) i26.20% -

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS Program Cost - Contractor Share/ Match

1. Salary & Wages

•  55,875 $0

2. Fringe Benefits

$2,783 $0

3. Consultants SO SO
_

4. Equipment $0 $0

5.(a) Supplies • Educational $0 $0

S.fbt Supplies • Lab SO so

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy SO so

S.fdt Supplies • Medical $0 so

5.(e) Supplies Office $0 so

6, Travel • SO so

7. Software SO so

8. (a) Other - Promotion t Education & Training / Strategy
Imptemanlalion

S27.000

_  ..

$14,850

8. (b) Other - SO SO

8. (c) Other - so so

Other (please specify) SO so

Of/ierfp/ease specify) SO so

Ofherfpfease specif) SO so

Of/ierfp/ease spectfy) •  so so

9. Subreclplent Contracts •SO $0

Total Direct Costs $35,658 $14,850

Total Indirect Costs

59,342 ■ SO

TOTAL $45,000 S14.850

J5I Research Training Institute, Inc.

RFP-2021-0PHS-03-E0UCA^l-A02

Initials

tjf.

Page 3 of 4
Date 2/12/2025



Budget Sheet •Amendment 02 (SFT2S He*rt)

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-eDUCA-01-A02

Exhibit C-31

New Hampshire Oeparlmentof Health and Human Services
Complete one budget lorm for each budget period.

ContractorName: Os/fteseerc/i A Tre/n/n®/nst(fi/fe,/nc. .

'^Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Disease (ARTHRITIS) \
Budget Request for 1 i

Budget Period'Juiy 1. 2024-June 30, 2025 1
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) :26.20%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages

$3,410

2. Fringe Benefits

$1,615

3. Consultants .  • $0

Indirect cost rale cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 $0

S.fa) Supplies - Educational $0

S.fb) Supplies-Lab $0

S.fc) Supplies • Pharmacy $0

S.fd) Supplies • Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Oflice $0

6. Travel $0

7. Software $0

8, (a) Other - Promotion / Education & Training / Strategy Implementation •

$46,480

8.(b) Other- •  . • ' ■ . 50

8.(c) Other-
$0

Oltter (please specify) • ■ " $0

Of/ier^p/ease specr/yj $0

Of/ierfp/ease spec//yj ■  $0

Other (please specify) , $0

9. Subreciplent Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $51,506

Total Indirect Costs

$13,494

TOTAL $65,000

JSl Research Training institute, inc.

RFP-2021-OPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A02

initials.

Page 4 of 4 Date 2/12/202S
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Budget Sheet•

Amendment 02 {SFY25 Heart)

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A02

Exhibit C-33

New Hampshiro Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name: Ro^orch & TreininglnstTtulo, Inc.
Budget Request for: [Professtonal Educatlqr) and Promotion to Provonl and Menage Chronic DiseasB (HSART)

Budget Period 30. 2026 '
Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 126.20%

Lino Item Program Cost - Funded by DHKS
1

1. Salary & Wages

.  ■ $19,293

2. Fringe Benefits

$9,139

3. ConsuRanls $0

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR $0

5.(a) SupfMles - Educational SO
5.(b) Supplies • Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies • Pharmacy so
5.(d) Supplies • Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office •  so

6. Travel •  so

7. Software so

8. (a) Other - Promotion/Education & Training/Strategy
Implementation

'  - , ■ " , ' ' $177,590

8. (b) Other- $0

8. (c) Other • Other (specify below)

Other (please specify) ■ - SO

Other (please specify) '• SO

Olher (please spoclfy) SO

Other (please specify) '  • - , SO

9. SubreciplenI Contracts .  - SO

Total Direct Costs $206,022

t

Total Indirect Costs

2

S53,978

TOTAL S260.000

MtlB

JSi Research Training Institute, Inc.

RFP-2021-DPHS03-EDUCA01-A02 lof4

Initials.

Date 2/22/2025



Budget Sheet • Amendment «2 (SFY26 Heart)

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A02

Exhibit'c-34

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget torn tor oech budget period.

Contractor Name: 'JSI Research & Tro/ning Institute. Inc.
Budget Request for: iProlesslonal Education and Promotion to Prevent end Manage Chronic Disease (DIABETES)

Budget Period Vuly t, 2025 ■ June 30. 2026 '

Indirect Cost Rale (if applicable) '26.20%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages ' $19,293

2, Fringe Benefits $9,139

3. Consuilanis $0

indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and SO

5.(a) Supplies - Ediicalionai SO
5.(b) Supplies - Lab so
5.(0 Supplies - Pharmacy so
5.(d) Supplies • Medical 50
5.(e) Supplies O'lice SO

6. Travel '  . SO

7. Soltware so

8. (a) Other - Promotion/Education & Training/Strategy Implementation $177,590

8. (b) Other- SO
8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

Other (please specify) so
Other (please specify) so
Other (please specify) so
Other (please specify) so

9. SubrecipienI Contracts so

Total Direct Costs S206.022

Total Indirect Costs $53,978

TOTAL $260,000

JSI Research Training Institute, Inc.

RFP-202 l-DPH5-03-eDUCA-01-A02. ■2of4

Initials,

Date: 2/t2/202S



Budget Sheet • Amendment #2 (SFY26 Heart)

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A02

Exhibrt C-3S

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Comp/ete one Audget form for each dudpet perfod.

Contractor Name: OSf Roseach & training Institute, Inc. !
Budget Request for: 'ProtessionBl Educelion and Promo/fort to Pmvonl and Manage Chmnic Disoaso (WISEWOMAN) |

Budget Period Uuf/(. 2025 (firDugfi.fiir)e 30, ?026 1

Indirect Cost Rale (if applicable) 26.20% i

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by DHHS Program Cost • Contractor Share/ Match

1. Salary & Wages

S5,875 $0

2. Fringe Benefits 82,783 SO

3. Consultants $0 so
,

Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR $0 so

S.{a) SuDOlies - Educaiionei $0 so

S.lb) Suppiies-Lab so so

S.tc) Supoiies • Pharmacv so so

S.ld) SuDpiies • Medical $0 so

S.fe) Supoiies Office $0 so

6. 1 ravel 1 so so

■

7. Software so $0

8. (a) Other- ProrTiotionfEducatJon& Training/Strategy
Implementation

$27,000 $14,850

S. (b) Other • SO SO

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)
Offier (pfoaso speedy) so so

Other (please spealy) so so

Other (plooso spoafy) so so

Other (please speafy) so $0

9. SUxecipient Contracts so $0

Total Direct Costs S35.658 $14,850

Total Indirect Costs S9,342 SO

TOTAL S45.000 S14.850

JSI Research Training Institute, Inc.

RFP-2021-DPHS-03EOIKA-01-A02 30(4

Initials.

Pate 2/12/202S



ftudfct Sheet ■ Amendment #2 {SFY26 Heirt)

RFP-2021-0PHS-03-E0UCA-01-A02

ExNbit c-aa

New Hempehire Department of Health and Human Sarvieea

CempMta one tudg^l lotnt let aaeft budget period.
Contractor ftesearcl^i Trehii^lntlilJtS^lnc. ■ ~

Budget Request Ion .Rrofasaonal EauuOon andPromoiion (o Prevent and Chnnie 0»«aa«e (ARTHRITIS)

Budget Parted ..ftdy '■ ■ June 30, 2028
Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) ;26,20H

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by OHHS

1, Salary S Wages

$2,775

2. Frtnga Benefits

$1,314

3. CortstitanU $0

Indrect cost rate cannot be appVed to equipment costs per 2 CP H 200.1 $0

S.(a) Supplies'- Educational $0

S.(b) Supplies • l^b $0

S.(c) Supplies • Pharmacv $0

5.(d> Supplies • Medical $0

5.(e> Supolies Olftca $0
\

6. travel SO

.

/. Software $0

S. (a) Other • PromoUort/Educaiion S Trstning/ Straiegv Implementalion
$27,606

S. (b) Other • $0
e. (e) Other • Other (spedfy below)

Other (phaiO specHyl $0
Other (please spedty) SO
Other (please soedryl $0
Other (please speedy) $0

9. Suttredpient Contrads so

Total Oiract Costs $31,696

Total Indirect Costs
$8,304

TOTAL $40,000

j&l Researth TraMnf Inttitute. Inc.
RFP-2021 DPHS4S-eOUCA-01-A02

[fcT
I  •

Date 2/12/20 ?S
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of Stale of the Slate of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that JSl RESEARCH & TRAINING

INSTITUTE, INC. is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on rcbniary 17,

2016. I furthcr certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Businc.ss ID: 739507

Certificate Number: 0006201156

0&

%

u.

o

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOl",

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 10th day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secrctar>' of State



Docusign Envelope ID: E655A286-2O18-4AA4-AF1A-27BC7C19AE00

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1 . Antonia Powell ^ . hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on January 11 2Q24 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Katie Robert (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the

State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify
that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)

listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation.
To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts
with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: January 21. 2025 Anton;.. Powotl li>r, ??. mi CST>

Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Antonia Powell

Title: Assistant Clerk/Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20



Docusigh Envelope ID: E655A286-2018-4AA4-AF1A-27BC7C19AE00

acord" certificate OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DOnnfYY)

10/3/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on

this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

AHT Insurance, A Baldwin Risk Partner
458 South Ave
Whitman MA 02382

License#: CA«06587'48

CONTACT
NAME:

F,n. 800-648-4807 wc. No): 781-447-7230
E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

INSURER A: Federal Insurance Comoany 20281

INSURED JOHNSNO-01

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
John Snow, Inc.
World Education, Inc.
44 Farnsworth Street

Boston MA 02210-1206

INSURER B; ACE American Insurance Companv 22667

INSURER c: Great Northern Insurance Compa 20303

INSURER 0: Chubb Indemnity Insurance Comp 12777

INSURER E ;

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 1954118484 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

75ol
itlSQ.TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
IMM/OPnrYYYI

POLICY EXP
(MMfDD/YYYYI LIMITS

INSR
LTR

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MAOE OCCUR

35873320 10/1/2024 10/1/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE

DAMAGETO'REFffED
PREMISES lEa occurrence)

MED EXP (Any ofw person)

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY

GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

policy □ S'e'ct LOC

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

OTHER:
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea acddent)

S 1.000,000

$1,000,000

$10,000

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTO

7354S634 9/9/2024 10/1/2025 $1,000,000

BODILY INJURY (Par person) $1,000,000
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per scddenl) $1,000,000 «
PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per acddenil $1,000,000

UMBRELLA LlAB

EXCESS LlAB

OED

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

79661066 10/1/2024 10/1/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE $20,000,000

AGGREGATE $20,000,000

RETENTION $ n
OTH-
ER

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS- LIABILITY

ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
11 yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

71733182 10/1/2024 10/1/2025
Y/N

□

y  PER
^  STATUTE

N/A
E.L. EACHACaOENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE-POLICY LIMIT $1,000,000

Errors & Omissions/Cyber D96621772 10/1/2024 10/1/2025 Per Occurence
Aggregate

5,000,000
5,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached i( more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2016/03)
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Docusign Envelope ID: E655A286-2018-4AA4.AF1A-27BC7C19AE00

JSI Research and Training Institute Inc.

Mission Statement

JSI Research and Training Institute was incorporated in 1987 as a 501©3 non-profit
organization in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Our mission is to alleviate public
health problems both in the United States and in developing countries around the world
through applied research, technical assistance and training. JSI maintains offices in Boston,
Massachusetts; Washington, D.C.; Denver, Colorado and Bow, New Hampshire; as well as
seven overseas offices in developing nations. Since its inception, JSI has successfully
completed more than 400 contracts in the healtli and human service fields.



Docusign Envelope ID: E655A286-2018-4AA4-AF1A-27BC7C19AE00

Consolidated Financial Statements and

Report of Independent Certified Public
Accountants and Reports in
Compliance with Uniform Guidance

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

September 30, 2023
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Contents , Page
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GrantThomton

ORANT THORNTON LLP

75Siaie St., I3t»i Floor

Boston, MA 02109-1827

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

♦ 1617 723 7900

♦ 1 617 723 3640

Board of Directors

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc:

Report on the financial statements

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of JSI Research and Training

Institute, Inc. and affiliates (the "Organization"), which'comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as of September 30, 2023, and the related
consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of the Organization as of September 30,
2023, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America,

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with

auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAS)
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States {Government
Auditing Standards). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to
evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to continue as a going concern
for one year after the date the financial statements are available to be issued.

GT.COM Grant THomton LLP Is a U.S. member firm of Grant Thornton Iniemallonal Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and each of Its member firms are
separate legal entitles and are not a woddwide partnership.
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that Includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS and

Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on
the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit,

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the.
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements,

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in
the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit
findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements as a whole. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
consolidated financial statements. Such supplementary information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures.
These additional procedures included comparing and reconciling such information
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directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements

themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with US GAAS. In our
opinion, the accompanying supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other reporting required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also Issued our report
dated June 27, 2024 on our consideration of the Organization's Internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control over financial reporting or
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

Boston, Massachusetts

June 27, 2024
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

September 30, 2023

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables for program work

Field advances - program

Employee advances

Inventory

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net

Goodwill

Right-of-use assets

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Accrued vacation

Lease liabilities

Advances for program work

Total current liabilities

Long-term lease liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

\Aflthout donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

$  198,258,786

79,831.673

540,895

176,555

51,056,340

18,430,741

348,294,990

6,567,204

727,375

41,961,185

3,041,817

$ 400,592,571

$  59,658,105

4,651,012

7,444,243

176,180,268'

247,933,628

34,822,121

282,755,749

117,036,234

800,588

117,836,822

$ 400,592,571

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year ended September 30, 2023

Net assets without donor restrictions

Support and revenue

Public support

Global Fund

Government grants and contracts

U.S. Government

Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Other grants and contracts

Contributed net assets (see Note 3)

Program income

Contributions

Net assets released from restriction

In-kind project contributions -

Other Income

Interest income

Total support and revenue

Expenses

Program services

International programs

Domestic programs

Total program services

Supporting services

Management and general

Fundraising

Total supporting services

Other expenses

Income taxes

Unallowable costs

Total expenses

Change in net assets without donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions

Contributions, net of net asset releases of $24,497

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

$ 415,379,336

354,586,872

20,585,288

105,338,023

291,248

166,488

181,469

24,497

862,161

140,980

1,776.163

899,332,525

760,016,335

74,001,338

834,017,673

52,945,220

21,731

52,966,951

■ 4,422,777

1,219,515

892,626,916

6,705,609

49,921

6,755,530

111,081,292

$  117,836,822

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year ended Septentber 30, 2023

Program Services Supporting Services

International

Programs

Domestic

Programs Total

Management

and General .  Fundraising Total

Commodities $ 376,216,569 $ $ 376,216,569 $ $ S 376,216,569

Freight costs 41,410,482 - 41,410,482 - 41,410,482

Salaries 53,235,995 39,228,072 92,464,067 34,488,778 2,509 126,955,354

Consultants 21,890,660 8,678,182 30,568,842 4,125,306 34,694,148

Cooperating national salaries 65,219,485 1,581,774 60,801,259 875,014 67,676,273

Travel • 28,174,875 2.037,035 30,211,910 •1,576,128 31,788,038

Allowance and training 12,953,687 324,885 13,278,572 568,850 13,847,422

Subgrants 46,756,192 583,286 47,339,478 158,030 47,497,508

Subcontracts 59,210,032 10,157,643 69,367,675 75,150 69,442,825

Equipment, material and supplies 12,714,542 716,540 • 13,431,082 1,356,069 14,787,151

Other costs 33,972,645 10,595,081 •  44,567,726 ■ 7,427,317 • 19,222 52,014.265

information technology 161,498 - 161,498 873,821 1,035,319

Non-commodity 308,387 - 308,387 308,387

Quality assurance 38,931 - 38,931 38,931

Equipment over $5,000 5,730,415 35,838 5,766,253 5,766,253

VAT 593,976 63,002 656,978 656,978

In-kind project expenses 1,427,964 - 1,427.964 ̂ 1,427,964

Depreciation - - •- 1,420,757 .  1,420,757

Total expense $ 760,016,335 $  74,001,338 S  834,017,673 $  52,945,220 $  21,731 S  886,984,624

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended September 30, 2023

Cash flows from operating activities:

• Change innet assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided by operating-activities:
. Depreciation

(Increase) decrease in operating assets:

Receivables for program work

Field advances - program

Employee advances

Inventory

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Right-of-use assets

Other assets .

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Accrued vacation '

Advances for program work

Lease liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from Investing activities:

Acquisition of The Manoff Group, net of cash acquired

Contributed net assets, net of cash received

Acquisition of property and equipment

Net cash used in operating activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for income taxes

$  6,755,530

1,420,757

('l6,248,188)
(171,747)

54,735

43,038,776

(10,049,422)

4,326.-258

(1,892,358)

(17,336,680)

1,883,560

55,147,460

(4,103,657)

62,825,024

(403,359)

2,039,409

(1,846,608)

(210,558)

62,6.14,466

135,644,320

$  198,258,786

$  936,475

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.
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JSI Research and Training institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. ("R&T") was incorporated in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts
on April 11,1979. R&T is a global nonprofit dedicated to improving lives around the world through greater
health, education, and socio-economic equity for individuals and communities. Current funding is principally
from the United States Agency for International Development ("USAID") and the United States Department
of Health and Human Services {"DHHS").

R&T is the sole member of The Partnership for Supply Chain Management, Inc. ("PFSCM"), InSupply
Health Limited ("InSupply"), and the sole shareholder of John Snow, Inc. ("JSI"), Community Economics
Corporation ("CEC"), and John Snow India Private Limited ("JSIPL"). R&T was also the sole member of
\A/orld Education, Inc. ("WEI") through June 30, 2023, at which tirhe WEI was merged into R&T and no
longer exists as a separate legal entity. R&T is accorded with such powers as are typical for a sole member
including the power of appointment and removal of the affiliates' board of trustees, the right to approve
amendments to the bylaws and certificate of incorporation, and the right to approve any merger,
consolidation, dissolution or transfer of substantial assets of affiliates.

The Partnership for Supply Chain Management (PFSCM) was incorporated on February 14, 2005 under
the laws of Massachusetts. PFSCM began operations on October 1, 2005. PFSCM's project teams
collaborate with institutions that are among the most trusted names in international public health and
development, each offering unique capabilities that ensure that high-quality ARV drugs, HIV tests, and other
supplies for treating HIV/AIDS are available to the people, patients, clinicians, laboratory technicians, and
others who need them. PFSCM supply chain projects and initiatives strengthen, develop, and manage
secure, reliable and cost-effective provision of health products to low- and middle-income countries.
PFSCM deliveries to 90+ countries globally via a supply chain that is transparent, accountable, and tailored
to specific country needs.

InSupply Health Limited ("InSupply") is domiciled in Kenya where it is incorporated under the Kenyan
Companies Act, 2015 as a non-profit organization limited by guarantee. The principal activity is providing
supply chain advisory with customized guidance on supply chain management and design.

JSI is an international management-consulting firm organized on May 29, 1975, in the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts. JSI provides research and consulting services to public health programs, health care and
service sectors. Its mission is to work with clients to improve the quality of their operations. Current funding
is principally with the United States Agency for International Development.

Community Economics Corporation (CEC) is a whoily owned subsidiary of JSI and is engaged in providing
information, consulting, and problem-solving services, advice and management. All of CEC's revenue is
received from related parties.

John Snow India private Limited (JSIPL) is a wholly owned subsidiary of JSI and is engaged in
implementing public health programs at scale to support India's efforts to improve maternal, newborn and
child health and nutrition, strengthen immunization systems, reduce the spread of communicable diseases,
and build capacity for managing complex supply chains.

The Manoff Group, Inc. ("TMG") was incorporated December 1, 1988 in the Commonwealth of
' Massachusetts. TMG provides social and behavior change, strategic program assistance and social

marketing services that include: in depth consumer research to better understand and be responsive to
client needs; effective and creative social and behavior strategies and communication plans to promote
new products, better health and nutrition practices, and increased utilization of program services; skills
development training in social marketing; and assistance to strengthen linkage between the government
and private sector firms working in social and behavior change programming, marketing and
communication. Through September 30, 2022, JSI was a 40% shareholder of TMG which was reflected on

10
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
r

September 30, 2023

the financials utilizing the equity method of accounting for investments. Effective October 1, 2022, JSI
purchased the remaining share of TMG's stock. As a result, TMG's FY23 activity is included in the current
year's consolidated financials.

WEI was founded in 1951 and incorporated in the state of New Jersey. Working in partnership with
community, national, and international agencies in Asia, Africa, and the United States, it provides
professional assistance in the design and implementation of non-formal adult education programs. These
programs integrate functional education with relevant problem-solving aspects of individual growth and
national development such as health, nutrition, family planning, childcare, refugee education, agricultural
practices, literacy, and income generation. WEI's financial data is consolidated utilizing its fiscal year-end
financial statements, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023. As noted above. WEI was merged into
R&T on June 30, 2023 and no longer exists as a separate legal entity.

R&T and its affiliates, excluding JSI, CEC, JSIPL, and TMG, are tax exempt organizations under 501(c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code ("IRC"), while InSupply is subject to Kenyan income tax based on the Kenyan
Income Tax Act.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of R&T, WEI, JSI. InSupply, CEC, TMG, JSIPL,
and PFSCM, (collectively referred to as the "Organization"). All intercompany balances and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation.

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis
of accounting in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
("U.S. GAAP"). Net assets, revenues, and expenses are classified based on the existence or absence of
donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, the net assets of the Organization and the changes thereof are
classified and reported as follows;

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - ConthbuWons, grants, and income whose use by the Organization
has been limited by donors or grantors to a specific time period or purpose.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly,
actual results may differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all monies in banks and highly liquid investments with maturity dates of three
months or less to be cash equivalents. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair
value because of the short maturities of those financial instruments. Total cash held in foreign accounts
was $17,294,403 at September 30, 2023.

11
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2023

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment owned by the organization are reported on the basis of cost less accumulated
depreciation. Acquisitions of property and equipment in excess of $5,000 are capitalized. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method calculated to extinguish the book value of the respective assets
over their estimated, useful lives (five - 27.5 years) of the related assets. Property and equipment purchased
with grant funds where ownership rests with the donor is expensed at the time of purchase and is returned
to the donor or disposed of in accordance with the terms of the grant and/or donor permissions at the
conclusion of the grant period.

Revenue Recognition
4

Grants and Contacts
(

The majority of the Organization's revenues are derived from contracts, cooperative agreements, and
grants with The Global Fund to Fight AIDS Tuberculosis and Malaria-(the Global' Fund); and
U.S. government agencies, primarily USAID and the United States Department of Health and Human
Services.

The Organization recognizes revenue from external organizations for services provided under exchange
and non-exchange grants and contracts. Unconditional grants, contracts, and contributions are recognized
as revenue in the period received in the appropriate net asset category, based on the existence or absence
of donor-imposed restrictions. If donor-imposed restrictions are present, the associated revenue is reported
as an increase, in net .assets with donor restrictions and are reclassified to net assets without donor
restrictions when the restrictions are met. Grants and contracts revenues whose restrictions are met in the

same reporting period are reported as net assets without donor restriction.

Reveriues from non-exchange transactions may be subject to conditions in the form of both a barrier to
entitlement and a refund of amounts paid (and a release from obligation to make future payments). The
Organization recognizes revenue earned from conditional non-exchange grants and contracts as these
conditions are satisfied. At September 30, 2023, the Organization had $397,101,328 of conditional grants
and contracts not recognized as revenue in the statement of activities.

Revenues from exchange transactions are recognized as the Organization satisfies performance
obligations, which in some cases, mirrors the timing of when related costs are incurred. In the case of the
procurement and delivery of commodities revenues are recognized upon receipt by the customer. As of
September 30, 2023, included in advances for program work is $99,852,811 of deferred revenue related to
exchange transactions, which will be recognized as revenue upon completion of delivery of commodities
and receipt by the customer. Also included in the advances for program work, is $76,327,458 of
non-exchange grant funding received in advance of revenue being earned.

/

Donated Materials and Services ^

Donated materials and services are recorded as in-kind project contributions at their estimated fair market
value as of the date of receipt and as an expense in the accompanying consolidated statement of activities.
Donated services are recognized if the services received create or enhance non-financial assets or require
specialized skills that are provided by individuals possessing those skills and would typically need to be
purchased if not provided by donation.

12
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2023

Income Taxes

R&T, PFSCM, and WEI are exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC and are not
private foundations as described in Section 509 while InSupply is an international non-profit,
non-governmental organization based in Kenya which is subject to Kenyan income tax based on the
Kenyan Income Tax Act but does not subject to US taxation,

I

JSI, CEC, and TMG are corporations that are subject to Federal, state, and other jurisdiction Income taxes,
while JSIPL is an organization based in India, and therefore, subject to taxation as set by the Indian
Revenue Authority.

Accordingly, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable
to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases. These assets and liabilities are measured using rates expected to be in effect when
these timing differences reverse. Valuation allowances are provided to the extent that tax assets are not
likely to be recovered. ,

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognized for all taxable temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available.against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. A valuation
allowance is established against a deferred tax asset when it is more^ likely than not that the asset or any
portion thereof will not be realized.

JSI has evaluated its tax positions and believes that there would be no material changes to the results of
its operations or financial position as a result of an audit by the applicable taxing authorities, federal or
state. JSI has filed all of its known and required returns in a.timely manner including, as permitted, allowed
extensions. Following administrative practice of the taxing authorities, the tax years 2018 through 2023
remain open years subject to possible examination and revievy.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the consolidated statements of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among
the programs and supporting services benefited. Each functional classification includes all expenses related
to the underlying operations by natural classification. Natural expenses attributable to more than one
functional expense category are allocated using a variety of cost allocation techniques.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Expenses of international operations are measured generally using local currency. Expenses are translated
to USD using the first in, first out method.of exchange based on the bank rate assigned at transfer. As a
result, foreign currency transaction gains and losses are negligible and are included as direct program
expenses.

Receivables for Program Work

Receivables for program work are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management provides for probable uncollectable amounts ttirough a provision for bad debt
expense and an adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of
Individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection
efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
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JSI Research and Training Institute, inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2023

allowance for doubtful accounts at September 30, 2023 was $0. Included in receivables for program work
is $71,073,501 of amounts billed and $8,758,172 of amounts unbilled at September 30, 2023.

Goodwill

Goodwill is the amount by which the cost of acquired net assets in a business combination exceeds the fair
value of the identifiable net assets on the date of purchase or valuation.

The Organization has adopted Accounting Standards Update {"ASU") 2014-02, Intangibles - Goodwill and
Other, to account for goodwill. ASU 2014-02 provides private companies alternative accounting for
amortizing goodwill on a straight-line basis over a 10-year useful life, replacing the previous method of
subsequent measurement, which required a testing of goodwill for impairment at least annually. Under the
new guidance, impairment testing is performed upon the occurrence of a triggering event indicating that the
fair value of the entity (or operating units) might be less than its carrying amount and there is no annual
goodwill impairment test. When a triggering event occurs, an entity has the option to perform a qualitative
assessment to determine whether a quantitative test is needed.

If that assessment demonstrates that it is not more likely than not that an impairment exists, no further
testing is required. On the other hand, if impairment of goodwill is more likely than not, a quantitative test is
required that compares the fair value of the entity'(or reporting unit) with its carrying value. The amount by
which the carrying amount exceeds fair value represents the impairment loss to be recognized, up to the

^  carrying amount of goodwill. Additionally, a company elects to amortize goodwill on a straight-line basis
over either 10 years or less than 10 years if a shorter useful life is more appropriate. Further, a company,
that elects the alternative must also elect whether to test goodwill for impairment at the entity level or the
reporting unit level. The Organization has elected to amortize goodwill on a straightrline basis over 10 years
and to test goodwill for impairment, when necessary, at the entity level.

No triggering events were identified during fiscal 2023.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

'Leases

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842),
and issued additional accounting standards updates which provided changes, modifications, clarifications,
and interpretations related to this guidance thereafter (collectively, "Topic 842"). Topic 842 amends a
number of aspects of lease accounting, including requiring lessees to recognize almost all leases with a
term greater than one year as a right-of-use (ROU) asset and corresponding liability, measured as the
present value of the future lease payments. R&T adopted Topic 842 as of October 1, 2022 using the
modified retrospective transition method.

••

The new standard provides a number of optional practical expedients in transition. R&T elected the practical
expedients to not reassess its prior conclusioris about lease identification under the new standard, to not
reassess lease classification, and to not reassess initial direct costs. R&T has not elected the practical
expedient to use hindsight in determining the lease term at the adoption date and has not elected the
.practical expedient pertaining to land easements as this is not applicable to the current contract portfolio.

The new guidance also provides practical expedients and accounting policy elections for ongoing lease
accounting." R&T has elected the fjecognitioh exemption for short term leases for all leases that qualify.
Under this exemption, R&T will not recognize ROU assets or lease liabilities for those leases that qualify
as a short-term lease (a lease term of 12 months of less), which includes not recognizing ROU assets or
lease liabilities for existing short-term leases of those assets in transition. R&T has elected the practical
expedient to not separate lease and non-lease components for all existing asset classes. R&T has elected
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

^  September 30, 2023

the nonpublic business entity accounting policy alternative to use a risk-free discount rate instead of R&T's
incremental borrowing rate for all existing asset classes.

Upon adoption, R&T recognized operating lease ROU assets of $1,581,409 and operating lease liabilities
of approximately $1,581,409.

JSI adopted Topic 842 on January 1, 2022, usirig the modified retrospective transition method. Upon
adoption, JSI recognized operating lease ROU assets of approximately $46,300,000 and operating lease
liabilities of approximately $46,400,000. .

PFSCM had no leases as of the adoption date. However, PFSCM entered into an operating lease
agreement with an effective date of February 1, 2023. As of the effective date of this lease PFSCM
recognized a ROU asset and lease liability of $1,577,263.

I  ' • '

Credit Losses

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses: Measurement of
Credit Losses on Financial Instruments (Topic 326), to update its guidance on recognition and
measurement of financial assets and liabilities and replace the incurred loss methodology with a
methodology that reflects expected credit losses and requires consideration of a broader range of
reasonable and supportable information for credit loss estimates. ASU 2016-13 is effective for annual
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2022. Early adoption is permitted. The Organization is
currently evaluating the impact of adopting ASU 2016-13 on its financial statements but does not expect
the impact to be material. ■ j '

NOTE 3 - ACQUISITION OF TMG

Prior to October 1, 2022, JSI was a 40% shareholder of TMG. Accordingly, JSI's investment in TMG was
reflected In the financials utilizing the equity method of accounting. Effective October 1, 2022, JSI
purchased the remaining outstanding shares for $1,700,000 and became the sole shareholder of TMG.

As of the date of acquisition the estimated fair value of the assets and liabilities assumed, net of the existing
equity investment was as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,296,641
Accounts receivable 658,003
Prepaid and other current assets 67,785
Goodwill 727,375
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (263,901)
Existing equity investment in TMG (785,903)

$  1,700,000

The Organization recorded goodwill of $727,375 as a result of this acquisition.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2023

NOTE 4 - INSUPPLY \

inSupply is a non-profit organization under the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015. Effective October 1, 2022,
R&T is the sole member and guarantor on InSupply. As of October 1, 2022, the estimated fair value of the
assets and liabilities of InSupply were as follows;

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,330,780
Accounts receivable 33,315
Prepaid and other current assets 74

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (2,072,798)

Total net assets 5 291,371

As there was no consideration related to this transaction the $291,371 is reflected in the statement of
activities as contributed net assets.

NOTE 5 - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK - CASH

The Organization maintains demand deposits and money market funds at financial institutions. At times,
certain balances held in these accounts may not be fully guaranteed by the United States government.
The uninsured portions of cash and money market accounts are backed solely by the assets of the financial
institution. Therefore, the failure of a financial institution could result in a financial loss to the Organization.
However, the Organization has not experienced losses on these accounts in the past and management
believes the risk of loss, if any, to be minimal.

NOTE 6 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Property and equipment and accumulated depreciation account balances as of September 30, 2023:

Furniture and equipment $ 4,427,328

Leasehold improvements 13,504,917

Gross property and equipment 17,932,245

Less: accumulated depreciation (11,365,041).

Property and equipment, net $ 6,567,204

Depreciation expense was.$1.420,757 for the year ended September 30, 2023.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates
I  -i

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2023

NOTE 7 - ADVANCES FOR PROGRAM WORK

Advances for program work consist of the following at September 30, 2023:

Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation $ 32,455,067
Various donors 63,557,232
Global Fund 79,602,223

Doris Duke Charitable Foundation 565,746

$ 176,180,268

Advances for program work represent refundable advances of cash related from non-governmental
organizations. They are reported as advances because there is typically a barrier placed by the granting
organization, as well as a right of return if the funds are not used in accordance with the terms of the
arrangement with the funding organization. Once the barriers are overcome and there is no longer a right
of return, revenue is recognized.

NOTE 8-DEBT,
i

WEI had a revolving line of credit with a bank with a borrowing limit of up to $500,000. The loan was payable
on demand. Interest was charged by utilizing a fluctuating rate based on the LIBOR (Advantage) rate plus
2.50%. The line is collateralized by a first priority interest in all the assets of WEI. The line of credit remained
in effect until May 31, 2023, with no outstanding balance at the time, and was not renewed thereafter.

JSI has a revolving demand loan with a bank. The loan allows for borrowings up to $6,500,000. Interest is
charged by utilizing a fluctuating .rate based on a per annum rate equal to 2.00% above the one-month
BSBY, payable monthly in arrears, which at September 30, 2023 was 7.39%. The loan is collateralized by
a security agreement with a first lien on all business assets of-JSI and R&T, including assignment of
promissory notes and security documents between the two companies. The bank's agreement to advance
funds is subject to an annual review in April. As of September 30, 2023, there were no outstanding
borrowings under this agreement.

NOTE 9 - CONTINGENCIES

In accordance with the terms of its federal and state grants and contracts, the records of the Organization
are subject to audit. The Organization is, therefore, contingently liable for any disallowed costs.
Management believes that any adjustment, which might result from such an audit, would be immaterial to
the consolidated financial statements.

Provisional indirect cost rates are negotiated with the USAID on an annual basis. As of September 30,
2023, actual indirect cost rates have been approved by USAID for JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc
and JSI through December 31, 2019 and WEI through June 30,2022. Based on favorable past experience,
management believes the effects of changes to the overhead rates, if any, would not be material to the
consolidated financial statements.
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JSI Research and Training institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2023

NOTE 10-NET ASSETS

Donor restricted net assets as of September 30, 2023 are restricted for use In specific programs and/or
projects that are specified by the donor.

Included in net assets without donor restrictions as of September 30, 2023, is common stock (of CEC)
totaling $2,050.

Including in net asset without donor restrictions as of September 30, 2023 is common stock (of TMG)
totaling $43,875.

As of September 30, 2023, JSI has 875 shares of $1 par value common stock authorized, issued and
outstanding. As of,September 30, 2023, JSIPL has1,000 shares of no-par value common stock authorized,
and 100 shares issued and outstanding.'

NOTE 11 - RETIREMENT PLANS
\

\

R&T has a defined contribution profit sharing/401 (k) plan covering substantially all of its employees. R&T
contributes an amount equal to 7% of the employee's monthly earnings, funded with each month's payroll,
to the plan. In addition, employees receive a 100% match on the first 2% of employee contributions made
to the plan. Employees who are contributing less than 2% of their pay to their retirement account are
automatically enrolled at 2% either at the time of hire, or annually in July. Pension expense was $4,948,085
for the year ended September 30, 2023. •

WEI has a defined contribution tax sheltered annuity plan covering substantially all of Its employees. WEI
contributes an amount equal to 7% of the employee's monthly earnings, funded with each month's payroll.
Additional voluntary contributions may be made by the employees. Participants of the plan are fully and
irhmediately vested when contributions are made. Pension expense was $415,714 for the year ended
June 30. 2023.

JSI has a defined contribution profit sharing/401 (k) plan covering substantially all its employees. Employee
contributions are voluntary. As of July 1, 2018, JSI contributes an amount equal to 7% of the employee's
monthly earnings, funded with each month's payroll. In addition, employees will receive a 100% match on
the first 2% of contributions made to their retirement account. Employees who are contributing less than 2%
of their pay to their retirement account will automatically be enrolled at 2% either at the time of hire, or
annually in July. Pension expense was $1.029,425 for the year ended September 30, 2023.

PFSCM has a defined contribution profit sharing/401 (k) plan covering substantially all of its employees.
PFSCM contributes an amount equal to 7% of the employee's monthly earnings, funded with each month's
payroll. In addition, employees receive a 100% match on the first 2% of contributions made to the plan.
Employees who are contributing less than 2% of their pay to their retirement account are automatically
enrolled at 2% either at the time of hire, or annually in July. Pension expense was $236,643 for the year
ended September 30. 2023.

TMG has established a 401 (k) Retirement Plan for its employees who have met required eligibility
requirements. The Plan allows participants to make a pre-tax contribution as well as a TMG matching
percentage up to 4% of the participant's compensation. The Plan also provides for discretionary 401 (k)
employer profit sharing contributions. For the period January 1, 2023 through September 30, 2023, 401{k)
contributions totaled $191,384.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2023

NOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS

Operating Leases

R&T leases space for general offices under operating leases expiring from 2024 through 2027. The leases
contain renewal options for periods of up to five years.

JSI leases space for general offices under operating leases expiring at various dates through 2030. The
leases contain renewal options for five to ten-year periods.

PFSCM entered into an operating lease agreement for its field office in Woerden, Netherlands that
commenced on February 1,2023. The lease term expires on February 1, 2030. Under the lease agreement,
PFSCM has a four-year renewal option through February 1, 2034. The annual base rent under the lease is
approximately $210,800.'

WEI leases space for general offices on a year-to-year basis.

During the year ended September 30, 2023, operating lease costs and lease costs under short-term leases
were $6,768,178 and $1,072,723, respectively.

Future obligations under operating leases as of September 30, 2023 are:

2024 - $ 6,027,577
2025 _ 5,588,031
2026 7,043,326
2027 6,858,692
2028 ■ 6,937,426

Thereafter 11,740,968

$  44,194,020

Supplemental information related to operating leases as of September 30, 2023, consists of the following:

ROU assets $ 49,468,669

Accumulated amortization (7,507,484)

ROU assets, net $ 41,961,185

ROU liabilities, current $ 7,444,243

ROU liabilities, non-current 34,822,121

ROU liabilities $ 42,266,364

The following summarizes cash flow and supplemental noncash information related to the Organization's
leases for the year ended September 30, 2023:

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:
•Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 8,542,737
ROU assets obtained in exchange for neW'lease liabilities - 1,141,435
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2023

Supplemental information related to leases as of September 30, 2023, consist of the following:

Weighted-average remaining lease term (in months) 77
Weighted-average discount rate 1.78%

NOTE 13 - CONCENTRATION OF FUNDING

The Organization received 10% or more of its revenues and support from the following sources for the year
ended September 30, 2023: ^

% of Total

Revenue Income

The Global Fund (PfSCM) $ 415,379,336 45%
U.S. Agency for International Development (R&T, JSI and WEI) $ 320,332,065 34%

The end date of the current Global Fund contract is December 31, 2024; based on procurement functions
that will extend beyond this date, revenues are estimated to remain the same through fiscal year 2025.
PFSCM has submitted a proposal for. the Global Fund's consideration to either extend the current contract
or issue a new contract. Management anticipates contract continuation at similar terms if PFSCM is the
successful bidder.

NOTE 14 - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF RESOURCES

The Organization maintains a policy'of structuring its financial assets to be available as its general
expenditures, liabilities and other obligations come due. Given the project-based nature of the
Organization's work, the annual budget Is structured to break even and ensure that there are sufficient
inflows to cover budgeted outflows each year. Any use of the Organization's reserve, which is minimal, is
subject to management's review and approval.

The following reflects the Organization's financial assets as of September 30, 2023, reduced by amounts
not available for general use within one-year due donor-imposed restrictions:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 198,258,786

Receivables for program work 79,831,673

Total financial assets available within one year 278,090,459

Less: donor restricted assets (800,588)

Total financial assets availatjle to management for
general expenditures within one year $ 277,289,871

The organization also has one committed lines of credit with availability of $6:5 million, which it could draw
upon in the event of an unanticipated liquidity need (see Note 8).
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September 30, 2023

NOTE 15 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through June 27, 2024. the date on which the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. On October 1,2023, both JSI and TMG were
merged into R&T and no longer exist as separate legal entities.
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JSI Rttnrch ind Training Inadtuia. inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Yaar tndtd S*pWmb*r SO, 2023

Fadcral Grir>lor4Pi(*-Throuoh CranlerrPrMnm TiltcfPm.Throuah or Dirtcl Aoancv or Past-Through Numlxr

Federal

Aatialance

Llatlnoa f

Federal

Eibtndllurea

Total OubconlracI

Expenaet

SNAPCIutUr

Community Food Profocli
SprlngfloU Community 8C0HFP PaM-Dtrough grant AgreomsniiOS.10.20 10.225 %  14 5  ~ -

Staia AdmlnlatraUva Matching Orania for llw SuppUrrNnlal Nutrition Aaalalanea Program
NY Oopt of HooUr NYDOH NYS PANCE Paaa-through grant OOH01 -03006800-3450000 10.501 425.152 233.453

Subtotal SNAP Clualar and Dapartnwnt of Agrlcultura 425,106 233,433

Food Insoeurlty NulrHton Inconilva Oranta Program
SprtngRald Convnunlty SCO Haath Script Paaa-lltiougri grant agreement Q 1.2S.2023 10.331 13.646

Food for Education

WorkI Food Program VYFPA/SDArNEPAL/FFES 62470 Paaa^htough grant World Food Progrem 10.608 -  131.365

USDA

World Food Program WFPAISDA/CAMMGO FFE Paaa-through grant World Food Program 10.U57 57.506
Subtotal Unliad Slataa OapartmanI of AgrlcuRura 202,519

Drug Court Oiacratlonary Grant Program

NHDaportmantot Juftica NH OOJ OCATT2.0 Paaa-through giant 1SPBJA-21 -GG-04133-DGCT 10.505 53.640

Subtotal Unliad Slataa Dapartmant of Juatica 53,640

Woapona Ramoval and Abatamant

U.S. OEPARTMEtTT OF STATE OOS/LAOSAWMF 62459 Diract grant
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF STATE DOSAAOSAJ^WANGEOR 02473 Direct grant

SPMWRA20GROOOO

SPMWRA21GR3023

19.000

19.000

15,283

92.052
Subtotal Unltad Slataa Dapartmanl of Stala (DOS) 107,335

COVI0.19 ■ CORONA VIRUS STATE AND LOCAL FISCAL RECOVERY FUNDS

Porlamoulh NH Portameuth CHP Paaa-thiough grant
City of Danvar COOENVER AIAN Hoaling COV Paaa-through grant
EC0f40MIC DEV 6 INDUS CORP EOIC/OWD PHASE H 01305 Paaa-through grant

.23000349

KRCRS-2023e0493 00

0504500601

21.027

21.027

21.027

4.637

00.546

31.711
60.000

Subtotal Unliod Stataa Dapartmanl of lha Traaaury (TREAS) 126,094 ■ 80,000

Stata Indoor Radon Granlx

NHDHHS NH OHHS PHPS 8FY22 Pau-through grant
NHDHHS NH OHHS PHPS SFY23 - Paaa-through grant

10101t-BOOOl

leioti-Boool

00.032

66.032

25

53,340

53.365
Ptrforminea PartrMrahIp Oranta

NHDHHS NH OHHS PHPS SFY22 Paaa-thriTugh grant
NHDHHS NH OHHS PHPS SFY23 Paaa^hlough grant
NHDHHS NH OHHS PHPS FY24 Paaf4hiough grant

loioti-eooot

161011-aooot

sgreementd 12.6.2021 888
30

12,959

1.739

14.734

Subtotal Environmantal ProlacUon Agancy 66.099

1

C0VID-1S - Education Stabilization Fund

National Community HaaUr NCHP Arizona Paaa-through grant
Hampton Untvaraity HMPTN UhflV-VA WorKforca Paaa-through grant

y^reenMntOS,0.2t
WA

04.425

84.425

7.595

76.491

Subtotal ALSS4.43S 66.016

Education Retaarch, Dovalopmant and DIaMmlnallon
AMERINSTFOR RESEARCH AIROESWETWRK LEAD 61276 Paaa-through grant
AMERINST FOR RESEARCH AIR/IES/TSTM Ot2SO Paaa-through grant
WESTEO WESTED«OE/IESMRCY 01276 Paaa-through grant

5240400002

5205000001

S-00016580

S4,30SN

&4.305N

e4.305N

15.219

34.466

1.226

50.931

Adult Education • Basic Oranta to Slataa

DPTMNTS OF EDU-NEW ENGLND NELRC-CT Paas-through grant 84.002A 6.594

USOOE

XIOS FOR THE FUTURE, INC. JFF/OCTAEWGTLUT61273 Paaa-through grant
RT1 Intecnatlonat RTl/DOEAET/NCTN 61297 Paaa-through grant
AMER INST FOR RESEARCH AIR-IETA3CTAE/NCTN 61206 Paaa-through grant
lAATHEMATlCAINC. • MATICMATICAWCTN 6I2S2 Paaa-through grant
RT1 Intonudonal RTVOCTAE-EARN/NCTN 61272 Psii-lhrough grant

21-237

SSS-17-20^

GS00F347CA/BPS«91990O2Oa0014

S0728S07642

2312021773006496L

64.U1I

e4.U20

S4.U03

e4.U14

e4,U72.

41,094

4,963

72.677

1.093

11.106 "

Subtotal US Oopartmant of Education 274.604

Global AIDS

Univoraily of Washinglon ' CD01-TECHrZJMDf2MS64123 Pisa-thimighgrant NU2GGH0CI21S70503 93.007 6.339

the accompanyning notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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SCHEDULE Of EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Yaac andad Saplombar 30, 2023

FadartI Oranter/Paaa-Throuah Granlor/Proaram Tltla/Paii-Throuati or Diract Aoancv or Pass-Throuoh Numbar

Aitlilanca

LlallrKia t

Fadaral

Eioandiluraa

Total Subcontract

Eioanaaa

Public Heami Emargancy Praparadnata

NH DHKS NH OHHS PHPS Fr24

NH DHHS ' NH OHHS PHPS SFY22
NH DHHS NH DHHS PHPS SFY23

Paaa-through grant
Paaa-thcough giam
Pass-through gram

agraamanl Q 12.6.2021
181611-B0001

iei611-B0001

93.069

93.069

93.069

S  30.309

48

119.415

S

149.772

Envlronmanlal Publk Haallb and Emargancy RatponM
UA Dopl. ol Pubic HaaKh MDPH Aattima

NH DHHS - NH OHHS PHPS 8FY22

NH DHHS NH OHHS PHPS SFy23

Pass-through grant

Paaa-through grant
Past-through grant •

RFR M0224

1616U-B0001

1616lt-B0001

93.070

93.070

93.070

36.621

18

6 669

-

47.328

BIrUi Dafacis and Oavalopmanlal DIaabilillaa - PravantJon and SurvalUanea

FASD Uniled Inc FASDUNlTEO CDC Evaluation Pati-lhrough giant agraemant ft 12j6/22 93.073 42 154

Advancing Syalam Improvamanli lor Kay laauaa In Woman'a HaaRh
DHHS Womans HaalOv^C

DHHS Womana Haaltb-NTC

DHHS Woman* Haalth-NTC

Olract gram
DIrtct grant

' Diract giant

ASTWH200090

•  A8TWH200090-01-00

ASTWH2000g0-02-00

93.088

93.066

93.086

2,333,398

40

107,013

376,000

52.208

2.440.449 430.206

Malamal and Child Haahh Fadaral Contolldalad Program*
Intai-TilbalCncIAZ ITCA MHI Slialii(^c Plan Paa»-thiough gram agiaamani 0 S.20.2021 93.110 573

TachnlcBl and Non^Flnanelal Aaaltianea lo Haalth Cantara

HRSA HITEO

Comm HSh CU CT CHCACT UOS 2022

HRSA HRSA HITEO ARP

Diract grant
Piu-through grant
Diract gram

U30CS2e3e6

U$8C806S42-17-O1

U3FCS4I776

93.129

93 129

93.129

781,190
1.317

93.164 '

225.965

34,764

875.671 260.729

Cooporatlva Agraamanla lo SlataafTarrllorla* lor Uta Coordination and DevalopmanI ol Primary Cara OfUca*
Wyorring Dopait ol HaaRh WYPCOFY20 Pata-lhrough giani 0RHO2t2-D
Rl Dapt. ol Haalth Rl'EPI FY21-2S Paaa-thiough grant 7607811
StataolMalna ME DHHS HPSA FY22 Paaa-thiough grant CDO-22-2215

93.130

93.130

93.130

51,060

53,455

40.962

.

145.497

Injury Pravantlon and Control Reaaarch and Stata and Community Oaaad Program*
Rl Dept. ol Health Rl EPI FY2I-26 Paaa-thiough grant 7607611 93.136 70.550

CommunRy Program* lo bnprova Minority Haalth Grant Program
Danvar Indian Health DIHFS OMK SWP Pasa-thiough grant AgiaamamO10.2S.21 93.137 64

AIDS Education and Training Cantara
HRSA HIV Intagmlad Ping
HRSA NV Intagralad Ping
HRSA RWHAP ACE Haalh

HRSA Plannliv CHATT
HRSA Planning CHATT
HRSA RWHAP ACE TA Cantor

HRSA HRSA Statu* Nauual ETAP

NASTAD NASTAOEHESCPSuh

National MnodtY AIDS ELEVATE

DIrecl grant
Dirati grant
Diract gram
Diract gram
Diract grant
Diract grant
Diract gram
Psaa4hrough grant
Paaa-through gram

L««HA30144

U6SHA30144

U69HA30143

U69HA390eS

U09HA39065-03

U39HA4S7eS-01-00

6U1SHAS0032-01-02

2020-CO-328401-657

Lie9HA3933S

93.145

93.145

93.145

93.145

93.145

93.145

93.145

93.145

93.145

53^113
176,584

pe)
(22)

396,797

374,056

23,207

76,845

46.495

40,041

31,250

1 1.634.016 71.291

Childhood Lead Pebonlng Prevention Projecta, State and Local Childhood Lead Pol*enlng PrevanOon and Survelllartce of Blood Lead Level*
NHDHHS NH DHHS PHPS FY24 Pata-lhrough grant agraemantO 12.8.2021
NHDHHS NH DHHS PHPS SFY2} Paaa.through gram 181611-60001

in Childran

93.197

93.197
3.S89

17.804

21.363

TtlahaaRh Programa

HRSA TARA OiracI grant U3IRH43S07 93.211 533,365

Family Planning Sarvleaa
NY DepI of Haawi NYS FP Tralnirtg 2022-2027
NY Dapt Of HaaRh NYSFP Training
NY Dapt ol HeaRh NYS Talahaalth TTA

Paaa-through grant
Pass-through grant
Ptaa-lhipugh giant

C37872GC

DOH01-C33229GG-34S00

C377e8GG

93.217

93.217

93.217

240,275

63.776

126.336 50.000

430.367 50,000
Haalth Canler Program (Community Haalth Ctnlara, Migrant Haalth Cantara, Haalth Cara for tha Homalaaa, and Public Housing Primary Cars)
Community Haalth Paitnar* CHPI Naeda Asaata Paaa-lhiougtr grant agrtamanl Q 2/t6/23 93.224 17.861

Grants to Stalos to Support Oral HaaRh Worhforca Acllvllla*

NHDHHS Oral HaaRh Promo Pass-thiough grant 05-9S«><902010-4S270000 93.236 (201) 1.600

The accompenyning notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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Yaar andad Saplambar M, 2023

Fadaral OranlorlPaat'Through Granlof/Proflfam Tltla/Paai-Tnrouoh or Diract

SuMlanca Abuaa and Mantal

Blaclslona Valay Pravant
Eaai Bay Ragionai
Kani County PiavanOon
Nawpod County Pravontion
South County Pravontion

TrLCounty Coovnunlty
Tha Opportunity Alance
NH DHHS

Rl Dapt or Bav HIttici Dav
Hsibof Homaa, Inc
RICARES

RtHtda'laland Sludant

AcUon/Qoalon Convn Oaval

East Bay Ragionai

Kannady Halgtna
Nawpott County Pravenllon
Tii-County Community
BiocLalOna VaUay Ptovant
Soulti County Piavantton
Hartioi Homaa. inc

Whiltlar Btraal Haatth Ci

Haaltti Sarvleaa Pro}aeta of Ragionai
Rl Hoal R2 Yaar 3

Kaiyn Madoro Conautdng
Kaiyn Madoro Conaulling
Karyn Madora Contutting
Kaiyn Madoro Conaulting

Kaiyn Madoia Conautttng
Partnarahip tor Succaaa

BOAS Cantor SFYIt

PFS FY20

Hartior Homaa TCE MUD

RICARES RCSP Evaluation

RtSAS Rl Suicida Prvntlon

ABCO HIVrSA EvBl FY22

K. Madoro Conaulling

K. Madora Conaulling
K. Madora Conaunng

K. Madoia Conaulbng
BVPC Ri Region 2
SCPC Ri Ragion 7
Haitm Homaa CBHi

Whitlioi HIV PNP

Family Piannin

(WHS

and National Signlflcanea
Paaa-thiough grant
Paaa-through gram
Paaa-througtt grant
Paaa-through grant
Paaa-through grant
Paaa-through grant
Paaa-through grant
Paaa-through grant
Paaa-through grant
Paaa-through grant
Paaa-througit grant
Paaa-through grant
Paaa-through grant
Pcaa-tnrough grant

Paaa-through grant
Paaa-through grant
Paaa-through grant
Paaa-through grant
Paaa-through gram

Paaa-through gram
Paaa-through grant

Direct grant

Afloncv Of Paaa-Throuoh Numliar

agraamentO l0,tl.2(}22

agraamant Q It.1.2022
agraamant Q 11.1.2022
agraamont Q) 11.1.2022
agioamant Q tOri 1/2022
agreamantO I.2S.2023
92a$8S0l

302M0S

Agraa(r>antQII.2l.19
Agraamant^3.4.21
Agraaman1Q6.4.21
Agraamanl0S.3O.2t
Agraamonl011.16.21

Agraamanl011,t6.21
AgraamenlQ11.16.21
Agraamam011.19.21
AgraomanlQ11.19.21
Agraamam0li,is.2l
Agraamam012.4.18
Agiaamam01l.4.21

Haailh Syatama Strongthaning and HIV/AIOS Pravantlon. Cara and Troalmani undar tha Praaldant'a Emargancy Plan for AIDS Ralial
HRSA HRSA RRHO DIract grant UHSHA30789

Immuntzation Cooparativa Agraamanla
MAOapt.olPutllicHaalth NH DHHS PHPS FY24

NHOHHS NH DHHS PHPS 8FY22

NHDHHS NH DHHS PHPS SFY23

Adult Viral Kapatllla Pravontion and Control

NHOHHS NH DHHS PHPS FY24

NHOHHS NH DHHS PHPS SFY23

Drug-Froo Communlliot Support Program Crania
MA Dept. of Public Health MDPHI817Eval

Eaat Boiton Naighbortiood E Boalon Vapa & MJ Prav 1
CoaatUiva EAP CEAP Kant County DFC

Taanaga Pregnancy PravanUon Program
OHHS TPP-tTTC

DHHS TPP-NTC

Paaa-ttuough grant
Peaa-thiough grant
Paaa-through grant

Pau-tArough grant
Paaa-through grant

Paaa-through gram
Patt4htough grant
Paaa-through grant

Oitact gram
Oiract gram

Bgraamam0 12.6.2021
I61611-B0001

161011-60001

agiaamanl0 12.6.2021
161611-B0001

INTF7417HH2S00224074

Agraamatn06.4.2O
agrtamam 0 12.28.2021

TPSAH000006

TPSAH000006-02-00

Protaeting and improving Haalth Globally; Building and Sirangthaning Public Haalth impacL Syatama, Capacity and Sacurlty
Camar lor Olaaaaa CDC DIS Training Diraclgisnt NUS0CK000S96

Epidamlology and Laboratory Capacity for Infaclioua Dlaaaaai (ELC)
NHOHHS NH OHHS PHPS FY24 Paaa-through grant
MA Dept. ol Pubic HoalDi MOPHHAIFy20 Paaa-through grant

NHDHHS NH OHHS PHPS SFY22 Paai-thioughgrant
NHDHHS NH OHHS PHPS SFY23 Paaa-through grant

agioarnanl0 12.6.2021
500624

161611-60001

161611-60001

Public Haalth Emargancy Rtaponaa: Cooparativa Agraamant for Emargancy Raaponaa: Public Health Criala Raaponaa
NHDHHS NH OHHS PHPS FY24 Paaa-through grant agraarnom 012.6.2021
NHDHHS Oral Health Promo Pats-through giant 05-9S40-g0201IMS270000
NHDHHS NH DHHS PHPS SFY22 Paaa-through grant 1610II-B0001
NHDHHS NH DHHS PHPS 8FY23 Paaa-through grant 161611-80001

State Acdona to Improve Oral Haalth Ouleemaa and Partner AelJona to Improve Oral Haalth Outeemaa
NHDHHS Oral Haailh Promo Paaa-through grant 05-9S-90-902010-4S270000
NHDHHS SORH Chronic Condlllom Paaa-through grant Aoraamem04.S2l

National and State Tobacco Control Program (8)
NHOHHS SORH-Corrvn. Baaad Tobacco Ptevanlloi Paaa-through granl
NH Dapt ol HaaRh Mau lAadis Vapa Pravantlon Paaa-through gram

Agraamant0l 1.5.20
RFP-2022DPHS-1344ASSM-01

Aetlvltlaa lo Support Stale. TrIbaL Local and Territorial (STLT) Haalth DaparlmanI Raaponaa to Publie Haailh or Hattthcara Crtaaa

Maryland Dapartmant Ol He MOK Social Madto Panel Paaa-through grant agraarnom 0 6/26/23
NHOHHS NH DHHS PHPS FY24 Paaa-thriHjgh giant
Rl Dapt. ol Haailh RIDH Rl FaaaibiHy Study Paaa-through gram
NH OHHS < NH ECCS Paaa-through granl

agraemanl 0 12.6.2021
7607611

90577170

Fadaral

Attlatanea

Llallnaa i

93 243

93 243

93.243

93.243

93.243

93.243
93.243

93.243

93.243

93.243

93243

93.243

63243

63.243

63.243

93.243

93.243

93.243

93.243

93.243

93 243

93.268'

93.266

63.268

93.270

93.270

93.276

63.276

93.276

93.297

63.267

63.323

63.323

93.323

93.323

93,354

93.354

93.354

63.354

93.366

63.366

93.387

63.387

93.391

93.391

93.391

93.361

Federal Total Subcontract

Eipandlturaa Eioanaea

i  10,760 5  1,050

'  7,064

5.306

6.279

13.504

7.m

6.210

330

63,650
24

3.048

64

16

7

(IS)
4

11

(8)

(6)
28,079

13,146

167.401 1.050

4.303.471 290,735

21392 21.713

5,029

51

29.151

34,231

36,102

444SS

80,557

24.647

13 .

15

24.975

1,424,764 88,507

69.216 - 50.000

1.514.003 136.507

681.668 70,633

1,724

24.364

-  70.114
96.211

105,678

323,082 306.450

236

154.810

583.806 306.450

77,206 . ^25,154
74,278

151.466 25,154

545,100

345.584 4.000

690.664 4,000

2,644

16,640

22

103,228 29.277

122,734 29.277

The accompanyning notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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JSI RMMreh and Training inttlluta, Inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

. Ysar andad SapUmbar U. 2023

Aflancy or Paaa-Through NumbarFadaral Ofantofffaaa-Thfouoti GranlorlPraBram THIa/Paat-Thfcugh "ar OlracI

knprovlno tha KaalKi of Amarlcant Ihrougb Pravanilon and Managamant of DIabaMa and Haart Ditaaaa and Slroka
CT Dapl ol Pubic Ha^ CT Cluonic Olaaata Paaa-lliiough granl t2020-002t
NHDHHS 60RH Chronic Condliona Pasa-thiough grant AetaarnanlOi.S.2l
OA Dapl Pubic Haarih GA OPH CHW Nalwork Dav Pass-through gram 40S00-031-2l2134g3
SutaolMalna ME Pradiabalaayr2S3 Pass-through grant CTIOA20211001000000000gi4
MA Oapl. of Pubic Haalth MOPH Chronic Disassa Coot Pass-through grant lfTTF4l04H23SPRFet0a2

Innovativs Slata and Local Public Haahh Strataglas to prsvant and Manage DIabatas and Haart DIsaasa and Stroka
MA Oapf. of Pubic Haalth MOPH Disbatas 7 Pass-through granl RESEARCH500224HH20RC

Wan4niagratad Scraaning and Evaluation lor Woman Across tha Nation (WISEWOMAN)
NH OHHS 80RH Chronic Condlllom Pass-through grant

Good Haatth and Wallnass In Indian Country (A)

Intar-TrbalCndAZ nCATeCTrMring
Inter-Tribal Cnd A2 ITCA Haalth Promo Ting

Community Health Workers for Public Nsalih Rasponsa arid Raslllant
State of Washington Dapl SWDHCHW tor COVIOIS Evsl
Stale of Washington Dapl 8WDKCHWforCOVI019Eval
Unhrarsity ol MA LIM8 Gatlon

Community Sarvlcas Block Granl _
Denver Human Sarvlcas DENHS CNA

Psss-lhrough grant
Pass-through grant

Pass-through grant
Pass-through grant
Psss4hrough grant

Pass-through grant

Agt*amant04,S.2t

agraemant 012/IS/22
agrsamoni ̂ 3/3/23

PRV2e723

PRV26357-0

010t7S4000l

Asaislanca fadaral Total Subcontract

LIslltKis 1 . ExtModHurss ' Eibantat

93.420 8  200,500 S  39,935

93420 ,  214,590 .

93420 17,241

93.420 105,072 47,139

93.420 49,050

073.147 07.074

93.435 2.7O0

93 430 29.505

93.479 ■ 2,409

93.479 2.132-

4,541

93.495 1.430,074 341.419

93.495 97,727

93495 70.010

1.014.417 341.419-

93 509 30.040

Affordable Cars Act Implanwntallon Support for Stale Oamonstiallons to Integrate Care lor Madlcara-Madleald Enrollaas
NH DHHS

NH DHHS

NH DHHS

NH DHHS PHPS FY24

NH OHHS PHPS SFY22

NH OHHS PHPS SFY23

Mental and Bahsvloral Haalth Education and Training Grants

Univarslly of NH UNH Bdldlng Futures FY23
Univarslly of NH UNH BFT Year 4
UiWaralty of NH UNH Buildlr« Futures FY22

Pass-through grant
Pass-through grant
Pass-thiDugh grant

Pass4hrough grant
Pass-through grsnt
Pass-through grant

agraamantO 12.S.202I
ISISII-BOOCII

ISteil-BOOOl

T2eHP39462

T2SHP39482

PPHF; Racial and Ethnic Approscftas to Community Haalth Program financed aotaly by Public Prevention and Health Funda
Lowal Convnurgty Health LCHC REACH LOWELL FY22 Paat-lhrough grant Not evallable

Medical Aatlttanee Program
ColortdoHCPF CODHCPFARPA

Colorado HCPF HCPF ACC Reteiich

Opiold SIR

MA Dept. of Public Haalth MA BSAS OTP TTA

Money Followa tha Parson Rebalancing Demonstration
Univsrsity of NH UNHVailorOkMcAdutts

Capacity BuHdIng Asslttsnca (CBA) for Hlgh4mpact HIV Prsvantlon
CICATELLI ASSOCIATES. INC CDC HIP Training

National Bletsrrorlsm Hetpllal Prapatadnaat Program
Masaachutans Aaaodstton MAHB RagS Hot Evac TTX
NH OHHS NH DHHS PHPS FY24

MtssschuaaOs Assocftion MAHB Region SB Pub Health
NHDHHS MHDHHSPrt»SSFY22

NH DHHS NH DHHS PHPS SFY23

Pass-through grant
Psss-throtigh grant

Pasa-througli gram

Pass-through giant

Pass-through grant

Pass-through grsnt
Past-through grant

pass-through grant
Posi-lhrough grant
Pasa-through grant

Cancer Prevention and Control Programs lor State, Territorial and Tribal Organlzalloni
NHDHHS Oral Hosth Promo Pass-through grant
NH OHHS SORH Chronic Conditions Pass-through granl

2O-140e23OL4

20-t40a230l2

INTF2331M7823S229002

POQ 3.1.2022

Not avsilabis

agrtsmsntQ 2.10.2023
agiasmam ft 12.0.2021
AgraementQII.23.21
lOietl-BOOOl

10101t-BOOOl

0&-9S-90-002010-4S270000

Agiaemsnt04.S.2i

93 020

93.028

93 020

93.732

93.732

93.732

93.770

93.770

93.009

93.009

93.009

93.089

93.889

93.898

93.898

3,870

13

30,705

25,517

2.379

29

237,141

UiL

19.431

5.400
24

9

23.323

48,255

7.905
88.294

The acGompanyning notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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JSI Rattireh and Tialnlng Inalltuit. Inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Yen andad Saplanibar,30, 2023

~\

Fadaral Of»nl0f/Pa«i-Thfouflh GranlotlProgfam TItla/Paaa-Througti or Dlraet

Rural HailUi Cart Sarvlcaa Outraach, Rural HtalUi NalwoiK DavaloptnanI and Small HaaltN Cara Provldar Quality Nnprovamant

Aaancv or Pata-Thro

MARY HITCHCOCK MEMORIAL MHMH Dailmoutfi BH WrWrca

HIV Cara Formula Orania

MAOapt.ofPuMc HaaiDi
MA Oapl. Of PubSc Haalth
MA Oapl. ol Pubke Haalth

MA Oapl. ol PuUk Haalth

Healthy Surt InlUatlva
Southern NJ Perinatal

The Foundation lor DE

MOPH HIV EHR Revlow

Poky Dev Eval 01
•FYI7HIVQA

FY 17HIV0A

SNJPC Canden Heallh Start

TFIx; County HaaXhy Start

Special Prolacu el National SIgnlfleanca

HRSA HIVrAIOS BUREAU HRSATetehaaimHIV

KRSA HIV/AIOS BUREAU KRSATelehaBUiHIV
HRSA HIV/AIDS BUREAU SSC Id PYIIH and 000
HRSA HIV/A1D8 BUREAU HRSA Statue Neutral ETAP

. National AHanca ol Stal ' NASTAO • TAVIE Eval Prej

HIV Pravanllon Aetlvttiat Haalth DapartmanI Saaad
NH OHHS NH OHHS PHPS FY2a
NHOHHS PHPSFY22

NH OHHS y NH OHHS PHPS SFY22
NH OHHS • NH OHHS PHPS SFY23

-Aaalatanca Programa for Chronic DIaaaae Prevention and Control
NH OHHS SORH Chrc^ Condltiorta

DIocli Oranli lor Prevention and Treatment of Subitance Abuaa

Colorado DPH COOPH SBIRT-SBHC 01
Rl Oapl of Bev KIthci Dev RIPRC II
fAA Dept. ol PubHc Heath MOPH BSAS Sbatagie FY22
UA Dept. of Pubtc Hoath MOPH BSAS Giinti Mngmeni
NHOHHS NHSAPNtttworK

i-through grant

Paaa-lhrough grant

Ptaa-lhrough gram

Paaa-lhiough grant
Pata^hrough grant

Paaa.4h<ough grant

Paaa-lhrough giint-

Dlract grant

Oiract grant
Olraci grant

Oiract grant
Pau-through granl

Patt-through granl

Paaa-lhrough granl
Paas-ttvough grant
Paaa-through grant

Pasa-thiough granl

Paaa-lhrough grant.
Paaa-lhrough grant
Paaa-lhrough grant

Paaa-lhrough gram
Paaa-lhrough grant

Pravanllva Haatlh Strvleaa.Saitually TranamKttd Olaaaaaa Pravantion Control Grania
MA Oepl. ol Public Health " MOPHRalalla Paaa-through grant

Pravenllve Health and Haalth Sarvlcea Block Grant

NH OHHS Oral HaaRh Promo
Mlatourl Dpi ol HRh & Sn 8CBHFY2I

Malamal and ChIM Haalth Sarvleea Block Granl to tha SlaWt
Rl Oapl. ol HaaRh
Univoialty of NK

AmerlCorpa

Community Scienco Inc

Rl EPIFY21-2fl

SHApl

Paaa-lhrough granl

Paaa-lhrough grant

Paaa-through grant
PaaaAhcough granl

Subtotal Oaparunont of Haallh and Human Sarvicaa

CSI AmadCorpa App Reviaw- Paaa-lhrough granl
Subtotal Corporation for Nallonal and Community Sarvfea (CNCS)

Boating Safaly Financial Atalalanca
U.S. Coaal Guard Ula Jackal Study
U.S. Co eat Guard UCG Ula Jackal Study

Oliaci granl
Dtrocl granl

Subtotal AL 97.012 and Deparlmant of HomalBi>d Stcurlly

USAID Foraign Aaiialanca for Pregrama Overaaaa
USAID USAJD Aait Raallartt CIt
USAIO USAID Ethiopia
USAID USAIOAAOS/OKARDS2<I27
USAID USAID/SAINT LUCIA 63173
USAID USAIDMAU/BAANI63177
USAID USAID /MOZ/SABER 63161

Direct granl

Oiiacl grant

Dirocl granl
DIract grant
Oiiad grant
DIract gram

uoh Number

Federal

Aaalatanca

Liatinoa B

Federal

Eibandlluraa

Total Subcenlncl

Eibanaaa

ar Quality hnprovamant
S  19Agiaamant012.2.21 93.912

INTFS2e0H23PRF760004 93.917 69.356

CAPACITYBLOS00624M04 93.917 1.743.662 332,755

PRF61 93.917 759

93.917 177,702 3.746

1.991.701 336.501

AgieamantQ10.22.2l '93.926 10

Agraamant6)l0.22.21 93.926 -

19

Ue0HA463S0-0t-00 93.928 708.703 67,246

U90HA4e350-02-00 93.928 . 201,369

U90KA33190-03 93.926 323.263 61.510

6UISHAS0032-01-02 93.926 4.095

93.926 (6)
1,237.444 165.020

agraamarn Q 12.6.2021 93.M0. . 37,794

Agroament07.10.21 93.940 m

161611-60001 93.940 - .

161611-eOOOt 93.940 85.514

I 123314

Agraamant04.5.21
I

93.94S 13.181

2023*0793 93.959 45.796

3S34294 93.959 190.392

PRF6t 93.959 329.454 5.600

SPRF61 93.959 ' - 1.054,315

059Sg2920St033820000 93.959 1.689.459 1.402.559

3.309.416 1.408.159

PRF61 93.977 94.230 66.288

OS-9S-M>-9020tO-4S270000. 93.991 436.865 373.454

CS202St900l 93.991 2

436.867 373.454

7607611 93.994 119,246

Subaward L0032 93.994 5.788

125.030

28.676.973 -  4.572,205

GS-10F-0470X 94.006 26.414
1 26.414

3319FAN119207 97.012 (S.82I1

70Z02322MO000S072 97.012 196.535

169.714 •

169,714

7200AA22CA006i 1 98.001 . 931.910 ' 202,950.
72C6e323CA00004 90.001 1.490.244 140.469

AID-486-A-17-00004 96.001 659,936

7209362ICA00002 96.001 164.585

72O-«8«-22-FA<)0OOt 96.001 115.742

720«Se22CAOOOOa 98.001 2.823.599 886.342

The accompanyning notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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JSI ft«f«*rch tnd Trilning Inftllut*, Inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year cndM) Stplcnbcr 30, 2023

FoOtral OranlOffPaaa-Tlirotigti Grantor/Prooram TItWPata-Thfouflh or DIfci

USAID

USAIO

USAID

USAID

USAID

USAIO

USAID

USAIO

USAID

USAID

USAID

USAID

USAID

USAID

USAID

USAID

John SnowHaalth Zambia

HUMANITY & INCLUSION

PalbRndai IntainaUonal

NCSA CLUSA

Palladium IntainaUonal

PR0

IMAWmU Haallh

Tha Tiualeaa o( TUFTS Col

John Snow Haallh Zambia

John Snow India PrNala

Haaitland Allanca Inl1.

Haartland AIMnca Inll.

USAIDAAALAWI/ APA 04119

Uluaine HWUP

AIDSFraa

ZairbiaUSAJDDIacovaiHaalth

Ghana HIV/AIDS

Build Haalhy CItlaa
PaUslan IHSS-60

USAIO Adv. NuUIUon

PartnaraNpa Plua

Kyiiryz Cura Tubarculoaia
TIFATS

0FDACBPMC2

MftlTE

CHISU

USAID/Laoa MCHJ^ AcUvlly

USAID BHA Capadly BIdlna
USAID Zambia CHEKUPII

HI/AJCVNEP/READG 6243S

EtNofia TRANSFORM

Sanagai FTF CuR Nul
Data Fl

USAID PRB Momantum 2C

MOMENTUM IHR

STOP Spilovei
ZAM-Haalh Activity

SAIXVEG-lndia

HAITMANigada
HAJNigaiia ACE

CooparalJva Davolopmani Program {COP)
World Vlalon Inl'l Napal WV/AIOiNEPAL 02409

USAIO

RTT InlemaUonal

Education Devalopmani Cti

RTlAJSAIDiCAM/lPEA 62476

EDCAISAIOAJGACYD 04121

Dlract grant

Diracl gianl
Diract grant
Diracl grant
Ctiact grant
Diract grant
Olract grant

Diract grant

Diract grant
Diract grant

Diract grant
Diract grant

Diract grant
Diract grant
Diract grant

Diract grant
Pact-through grant
Pata-through grant
Paas-through grant

Paca-through grant
Pasa-through grant
Paat'through grant
Pata-through grant

Pact-through grant

Pact-through grant

Past-through grant

Patt-through grant

Pata-through grant

Pata-through grant

Patt-through grant
Pata-through grant

_^jancj;^r_PaaaThroujhJlun^

72061220CA00004

AID-121-A-11-60003

AID-OAA-A-U-OOOCO

AID-eil-A-1000004

AJDS4I-A-10430007

AID-OAA-A-17-00028

AID-3gi-A-17-000l)2

7200AA18C00070

7200AAI0CA00032

720I181I8CA00001

72MAA19CA00013

720FDAI9CR002ei

7200AA20CA000t7

7200AA20CA00009

7204362ICA000I

720akA22CA00006
72061122FAI)001

72030718CA00002

AI0603A1700002

7206SSISCA00001

7200AA19CA00004

7200AA20CA00003

72OOAA2OCAOOO0S

720CiAA20CA00032

720eil121CA00001

tPE i DOM (20001- JSI
72Oa2O22CA00O0t

72062CI22CA00002

AID-OAA-A-13-00074

23300216086606SOL

72Oei72OCO0OOt

Fadaral

Aatltlanca

Llttlngt t

98.001
98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

08.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

88.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.001

98.027

98.U42

Fadaral Total SubcenUicl

Eioandhurat Eioarraaa

S  4,137,932 5  2,152,219

(8,962)

17,376 19,124

30,680,7$2 101,951

9,839,962 2,064.371

6,7S2 (2,050)
10,121,367 20,195

36,069,472 18,912,411

4,796,390 4,757,607 .

$.061,ISS 1,858,198

12,663,718 8,900,128

(20)
48,311,703 23,050,527

21,401,512 5,960,052
4,172,268 445.191

607,249 35.521

414,165 .

(10,155)

(45.952) -

2,024

2,490,904 13.644

1,620,778 .

7,882.444 392,139

858,915 42.790
1,005,317

42,464

386,596

160,425

209.280.537 70,221,672

(9.450) (9,450)

201,764

179,603 12.365

Subtotal Agancy for International Davalopmant

Total Eipandlturat of Fadaral Awarda

209,652,474 70.224.607

5 238,804,032 $ 75,110.285

The accompanyning notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

September 30, 2023

NOTE 1 . BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant
activity of JSI Research and Training institute, inc. under programs of the federal government for the year
ended September 30, 2023. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements. Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., it is not
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of JSI Research
and Training Institute, Inc.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(1) Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

(2) Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits, which management
has determined are not material to the Schedule nor the program to which they relate, made in the
normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. Accordingly, such
adjustments are presented on a current basis.

(3) Federal Assistance Listing numbers and pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented
when available.

NOTE 3 - INDIRECT COST RATE

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT

AUOmNG STANDARDS

Board of Directors • >,
JSI Research and Training-Institute, Inc. ' • • '

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States {Government Auditing Standards), the consolidated financial statements of JSI
Research and Training Institute, Inc. and affiliates (the "Organization"), which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of September 30, 2023,
and the related consolidated statements of activities and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated June 27, 2024.

Report on internal control over financial reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we
considered the Organization's internal control over financial reporting ("Internal
control") as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Organization's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Organization's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does
not allow management or employees, in the riormal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
Organization's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected,
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of

deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
vye consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

GT.COM GrantThornton LLP Is a U.S. member firm of Grant Thomion Iniemational Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and each of its memt>er firms are
separate legal entities end are not a worldwide panr^erstilp.
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Report on compliance and other matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization's
consolidated financial statements are free from material misslatement, we performed
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect
on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those

provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no. instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control or on compliance. This
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Boston, Massachusetts

June 27, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR

PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED

BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors

JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc.

Report on compliance for each major federal program

Opinion on each major federal program
We have audited the compliance of JSl Research and Training institute, inc. and
affiliates (the "Organization") with the types of compliance requirements identified as
subject to audit in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget's 0MB Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Organization's
major federal programs for the year ended'September 30, 2023. The Organization's
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Organization complied, in all materiatrespects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2023.

Basis for opinion on each major federal program
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAS); the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards): and
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost f^rincipies, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the
Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Organization's
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Other matter • federal expenditures not Included In the compliance audit ;
The Organization's consolidated financial statements include the operations World
Education, Inc. ("WEI"), which expended $38,972,618 in federal awards for the period
from July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023, that is not included in the Organization's schedule
of expenditures of federal awards during the year ended September 30, 2023. Our
compliance audit, described in the Opinion on Each Major Federal Program section of
our report, does not include the operations of WEI, because WEI was subjected to a
separate audit of its compliance with the types of compliance requirements described

V
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in the 0MB Compliance Supplement for the period from July 1. 2022 to June 30,
2023.

In addition, the Organization's consolidated financial statements include the
operations John Snow, Inc. ("JSI") which expended $77,006,226 in federal awards for
the period from October 1, 2022 to September 30, 2023, that is not included In the

Organization's schedule of expenditures of federal awards during the year ended
September 30, 2023. Our compliance-audit, described in the Opinion on Each Major
Federal Program section of our report, does not include the operations of JSI,
because JSI is not subject to the types of compliance requirements described in the
0MB Compliance Supplement. ^ .

Responsibilities of management for compliarice
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over
compliance with the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions
of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the Organization's federal programs.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit bf.compliance
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material
noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether
due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the Organization's compliance based
.on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with US GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will
always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the
Organization's corhpliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a .
whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, Government Auditing Standards,
and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. ' . '

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
Organization's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to abOve
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

V
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•  Ot)tain an understanding of internal control over compliance relevant to ttie audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the
Uniforrh Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Organization's internal control over compliance. Accordingly,
no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, and any significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we
identified during the audit.

Report on internal control over compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of
a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
noncompiiance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely b'asis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is
a reasonable possibility that material noncompiiance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in Internal control over compliance, yet Important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance vvas for the limited purpose
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations,
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in the Organization's internal
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance may exist that have not been identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

The purpose of this Report on Internal Control Over Compliance is solely to describe
the scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that
testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly^ this report is
not suitable for any other purpose.

Boston, Massachusetts

June 27. 2024
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

September 30, 2023

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS:

Financial Statements

The type of report issued on whether the financial statements
audited were prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting;

•  Material weaknesses identified? No

•  Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None reported

•  Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted? No

Federai Awards

Internal control over major programs:

•  Material weaknesses identified?

•  Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs

Any audit findings which are required to be reported under 2 CFR
section 200.51(a):

Identification of major programs:

Federal Assistance Listing Number

98.001

93.959

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B
programs: $3,000,000

Auditee qualified as low risk auditee? Yes

No

None reported

Unmodified

No

Name of Federal Program

Foreign Assistance for Programs
Overseas

Block Grants for Prevention and

Treatment of Substance Abuse

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None noted.

SECTION III - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

None noted.
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JSI RESEARCH & TRAINING INSTITUTE, INC.

RESOLUTION IN WRITING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Board Member '
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Board Member

Retired, former executive at Novartis

Kulleni Gebreyes

Board Member

Principal'at Deloitte

Lia Tadesse Gebremedhin, M.A., MD.

Board Member

Executive Director, HMLP; Former Minister of Health

Mike Useem, M.A., Ph.D.

Board Member

William and Jacalyn Egan Professor of Management

Muka Chikuba

Board Member
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Nneka Mobisson

Board Member

Co-founder and CEO of mymdoc and Faculty Advisor at IHI

Sandro Galea, MD. MPH, DrPH

Board Chair

Dean and Robert A. Knox Professor

Topsy Kola-Oyeneyin

Board Member

Partner at McKinsey & Company
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Amy Moffett

JS! Research Training Institute, inc., 50! South St. 2"''Floor, Bow. Nl102304. (603) 573-3300 amy_mojfett@jsi.com

Education

University of New Hampshire .

Bachelor of Arts, Psycholog)>, 1992. Magna Cum iaude
Minor, Social Work

Experience

JSI Rcscnrch & Trniniiig Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute, Bow, NH

Project Manager, March 2019 - pre.sent

Current Projects

Project Manager - New Hampshire Chronic Disease I'rogram
Serve as Project Manager for the NM Chronic Disease Program focusing on the following areas; Heart, Diabeles,
Arthritis, Comprehensive Cancer, Breast and Cervical Cancer, arid WISEWOMAN. The project encompasses technical
assistance, graphic design services, and vendor and consultant contracting. Assist with logistics for in-person and virtual
events and facilitate client and stakeholder meetings. As part of this project, multiple learning opportunities, virtual and
in-person, are planned, promoted, and implemented. Oversee purchasing, expense tracking, and monitoring of three
program budgets.

Project Director - New Hampshire Radon Program
Project Director for the NH Radon Program, part of the Nil.Public Health and Professional Ser\'iccs contract with the
NH Division of Health and Human Ser\'ices (DHHS). Lead the team developing educational mqtei ials for New
Hampshire middle school teachers, preparing a New England radon policy scan, and creating content for and managing
an ad campaign to promote radon testing in homes. Also included in this scope of work is event facilitation for
stakeholders throughout the state, coordinating training for realtors and homebuilders, and video production for home
radon test kits. Oversee the tracking and maintenance of the program budget.

Project Director - New Hampshire Environmental Public Health Tracking Program
Project Director for the NH Environmental Public Health Tracking Program that is part of the NH Public Health and
Professional Services contract with the NH Division of Health and Human Ser\'ices (DHHS). Work with program staff
to help develop a water testing toolkit for childcare providers, provide facilitation for stakeholder events and focus
groups, and create and disseminate sur\'eys to public citizen and professional groups participating in water testing
initiatives. Also included in this scope of work is the development of a data brief, resource toolkit and training for NH

. Health Officers and-Commimity Health Workers using the One Touch model. Oversee the tracking and maintenance of
the program budget.

Project Director - New Hampshire Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation and Care Services Section
(IDPICSS)
Project Director for the New Hampshire IDPICSS Program that is part of the NH Public Health and Professional
Services contract with the NH Division of Health and Human Services (DHHS). Lead the team that oversees technical
assistance activities for two funding sources which include a review of a comprehensive needs assessment and integrated
care planning work, communications technical assistance, logistical support for the New Hampshire HIV Planning
Group, purchasing and distribution of supplies, and case manager training coordination.

Project Manager - Scacoast Dementia Hub
Serve as Project Manager which includes conducting Key Informant interviews of carcgivers and those providing
support for adults living with dementia, planning in-persgn partner meetings, and assisting the Hub in developing a
strategic business plan. Responsible for managing the project budget and workplan, monitoring expenses, and submitting
contractual deliverables to the funder.

Amy Moffett
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Project Manager,- Advanced Readiness for the Aging Population
Ser\'e as Project Manager for the initiative that intends to increase the capacity of providers to respond to the increasing
needs pf the aging population in California. This includes team support in convening a group of thought leaders for a
task force and managing logistics for a peer learning community of grantee organizations. Responsible for managing the
project budget and workplan, monitoring expenses, developing monthly reports, arid submitting contractual deliverables
to the funder.

Project Manager-Agc-Frlcndly Public Health Systems
Serve as Project Manager for the initiative to develop state-level action plans for embedding healthy aging in New
Hampshire's public health system. Responsible for managing the project budget, monitoring expenses, managing a
resource library, and submitting contractual deliverables to the funder.

Project Manager - Public Health Infrastructurc/Children's-Environmental Health Initiative
Serve as Project Manager for the initiative to develop an online and interactive eLeaming module for Community
Health Professionals. Responsible for managing the workplan and contractual deliverables to the funder.

J
Past Projects

TIck-Fi cc New Hampshire

Provided Project Management for the campaign developed by JSI to educate the public about how to prevent tick
encounters and potentially Lyme disease. The digital behavior change campaign encouraged preparation for outside
activity and checking for ticks. Primarily targeting parents of children aged 2 to 13, schools, providers and recreational
outdoors enthusiasts, the campaign includes www.TickFreeNH.org, multimedia PSAs, social media, print materials, arid
representation at trade events.

Project Manager - Partnership for Public Health - Social Isolation In Older Adults
Project Manager supporting the team assisting with a needs assessment on social isolation in older adults in New
Hampshire. Conduct key infonnant interviews, and focus groups, and assist in developing and disseminating a survey to
the target population. Oversee the tracking and maintenance of the prograrii budget.

Project Manager - Partnership for Public Health- Social Isolation In Veterans
Project Manager supporting the team assisting with a needs assessment on soeial isolation in veterans and those who
have served in the military in New Hampshire. Conduct key informant interviews, and focus groups, and assist in ,
developing and disseminating a survey to the target population. Oversee the tracking and maintenance of the program
budget.

I

Project Manager - Maine Health Equity Alliance

Serve as Project Manager to support training and operational assistance for the Maine Healthy Equity Alliance.
Responsible for managing the project budget, monitoring expenses, assisting with training opportunities, and submitting
contractual deliverables to the funder.

Presentations

Screening, Brief Intervention, and Referral to Treatment (SBIRT): A SchoolrBased Approach to Reinforce Healthy Behaviors
NH Behavioral Health Summit, December 2022

\

TRAININGS AND'cERTIFICATIONS
■  ( .

Certified Scrum Master (CSM)
Homclancl Security Exercise and Evaluation Program Training Course, 2024

Amy Moffett 2
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DEBRALOVE

JS! Research & Training Instilule. Inc., 501 South Street. 2"'' Floor, Bow, NH 03504 (603) 573-3310 dehhieJove@jsi.com

EDUCATION

Plymouth SxATii COLLi-Gi-, Plymouth, Ni-vv Hampshire
Bachelor ofSciencei Interdisciplinary Studies: Business, Psychology Health •
1985- 1990 - ' '

iNSTi'i uTE OF Children's Liti-rature, Wes t Redding, Connecticut
Two-Year Certificate Degree: Writingfor Children

■  1994- 1996

At-I Iome Professionals, Fort Collins, Colorado
Certificate Program: Medical Transcription
March to August 2004

Other Education \

Understanding Substance U.se Disorders, Addiction Technology Transfer Center Network. August 2020
Foundations of lufuity. Diversity d Inclusion. EDI Training Institute, Fehruary 2021

Introduction to User Experience Design, Georgia Institute of Technology, November 2021
.JSI Electronic Management System Training for New Busine.ss Opportunities, December 2021
The Spirit ofMotivational Interviewing. Adcare Educational Institute. .January 2022 .
Airtable Training Basics 101, December 2022
Ethics for JSI/WEI, .January 2024
Child Safeguarding. .JSI/WEI, .January 2024

EXPERIENCE

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. (JSI), Bow, New Hampshire
Consultant, 2019 to present / Notaiy Publicfor theSlate of NH. current
Office Manager, 2016-2019
Project Manager. 2001-2016

CURRENT PROJECTS

Oral Health Promotional (OHP) Partner
Project management for training: technical assistance; program promotion, and program evaluation and support for the Nl-i
DHHS, Oral Health Program (OHP) and the NH dental workforce, with an emphasis on determining and supporting the needs of
the state's vulnerable and under-served populations, both inside of our schools, and in the broader community.

Chronic Disease Conditions

Provide project direction for improving access to and participation in American Diabetes Assdciation/Ainerican Association of
Diabetes Educators accredited Diabetes Self-Management Education and Support programs in underserved areas; increasing
engagement of pharmacists in the provision of medication therapy management; assisting health care organizations in .
implementing systems to identify people with prediabetes and referring them to National Diabetes Prevention Programs for type
two (2) diabetes prevention; promoting adoption of evidence-based quality measurement at the provider level; facilitating the use
of self-measured blood pressure monitoring tied with clinical support among adults with hypertension; and implementing systems
to facilitate systematic referral of adults with hypertension and/or high blood cholesterol to community programs and resources
approved by the CDC.

Drug Court Assessment, Training & Technical Assistance
Provide project management to elevate the use of evidenec-based practices and principles; build capacity.in risk and needs
assessment; ensure access to evidence-based services; expand the use of recovery support ser\'ices; and facilitate successful

m D. Love 1
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recover)' for all participanis in all Ni l Adult Drug Courts.

Open Sky Promising Practice Evaluation Services
Provide project management focused on creating opportunities for participants to develop and practice collaborative socialization
in a setting that encourages and rewards them for envisioning, and then actively stepping into, positive self-narratives. Open Sky
empowers participants to further their own goals and ambitions, while also making important contributions to the goals and
ambitions of their collaborators and the corrections culture over all. The goal of Open Sky is to help incarcerated individuals to
re-gain the skills needed to thrive successfully in their community, behind and outside the prison walls, as citizens, family
members, employees, and mentors. '

NH Center for Excellence on Addiction

Provide fiscal, logistical, administrative, website and data management for a statewide technical assistance resource center for
evidence-based practice in substance abuse services. The Center establishes a base of evidence-based practices in prevention,
developing a learning collaborative of networks and practitioners to engage in systems change to support evidence-based practice,
and establishes data dissemination systems to ensure that data is both an input to and output of evidence-based practice in New
Hampshire. '

Partnership for Drug Free NH
Project support in the collecting of substance use disorder resources and the writing of website content for the
Partnership for Drug Free Ni l which exists to advance and amplify effective evidence-based prevention messaging and
strategies.by providing current, accurate, and actionable substance misuse prevention materials.

Student Assistance Network

Providing student assistance programs (SAPs) with group and individual technical assistance, including support with
evaluation and sustainability planning, creating content for designated SAP website pages and creating and
disseminating newsletters for SAPs and Administrators.

Vaping Prevention Toolkit
Supporting community efforts that reduce vaping among youth by creating a Vaping Prevention.Toolkit that can be
shared with other communities across the stale.

PASTPROJECIS

Harbor Homes Grants for the Benefit of Homeless Individuals

Project support for the five-year SAMHSA-funded Grants for the Benefit of Homeless Individuals. Design and oversee a
utilization-focused evaluation plan, data collection tools, integration with electronic medical records systems, develop and
disseminate evaluation reports and comply with Federal reporting requirements.

Hlllsborough County Drug Court (HCDC)
Provided program evaluation of the l-ICDC program to expand the substance use disorder treatment capacity in their Superior
Court through the development of the HCDC. The goal is to reduce recidivism by breaking the criminogenic patterns of behavior
related to substance abuse and addiction among high risk/high need non-violent offenders.

NH Immunization Marketing
Provide budget management, create social media marketing content to develop a creative health marketing campaign, for the NH
Immunization Program that identifies priority audiences, best-practicc outreach strategies, and partner communication channels,
effective educational outreach materials to advance the understanding of the health benefits of vaccines and immunizations and
increase NH immunization rates.

New Hampshire SBIRT Initiative
Provided training to healthcare providers and systems implementing SBIRT (Screening, Brief Intervention, and Referral to
Treatment) as a strategy to integrate behavioral health and primary care to identify patients at risk of substance misuse. Developed
and implemented a-v'ariety of learning opportunities such as webinars, meetings, and onsite trainings and shared learning to help
providers address all facets of their workflow. The training builds knowledge and skills utilizing motivational inten'iewing
techniques with patients identified at greater, risk.

Injury Prevention Professional Trainings

Supported the Injury Prevention Program, Division of Public Health Services and the Injury Prevention Community Planning
Group by providing planning, promoting and logistical support and evaluation for. professional trainings with the goal of

D. Love 2
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supporting appropriate activities that educate the public health workforce, policymakers and the public on the value of evidenced-
based injury prevention measures in reducing preventable deaths and the severity of injuries as well as health care costs.

Quality Improvement in Enhancing the System of Services for Children and Youth with Epilepsy
Provided logistical and administrative support to HRSA's Maternal and Child Mealth Bureau to assist Innovative Strategies and
Promising Practices grantees to improve the system of care in medically underser\'ed and rural areas for children and youth with
epilepsy. The purpose of the overall initiative is to explore mechanisms to spread improvement of the quality of services for
children and youth with epilepsy in the medical home and to strengthen the co-management relationship between the medical
home and the specialty network.

NH Conference on Aging
Project Manager for the New Mampshire Bureau of Elderly and Adult's (BEAS) Conference on Aging (COA) - an annual event
to provide information, education and training to older adulLs that promote awareness, self-determination, advocacy, collaboration
and independence. Oversight included fiscal management, generation of funding through sponsorship and exhibitors, negotiation
of conference expenses, facilitation of planning committee meetings, coordination of logistics specific to the needs of the target
population, and providing BEAS with recommendations. Other scope of work included building website with online registration
form; database creation; executing speaker and site contracts; coordination of registration; oversight of graphic design;
generating weekly reports for client and post-conference sur\'ey and analysis.

Public Health Emergency Preparedness Training and Technical Assistance
Provided administrative support and conference and training logistics management for the Public Health Emergency Preparedness
Training and the Public Mealth Technical Assistance projects funded by the NH DHHS and NH Homeland Security and
Emergency Managements (HSEM) to provide training and technical assistance to public health emergency planning partners in
New Hampshire's 19 All Health Hazards Regions (AHHRs). As part of the Technical Assistance project, provided conference
management for the one-day Emergency Preparedness Conference held annually in June.

Strategic Prevention Framework - SIG Region B, F, J & I
Provided administrative support for a state-defined region to plan for and implement evidence-based strategies to prevention and
reduce alcohol use and abuse among 12 to 17 year olds. The regional initiative is part of a statewide Strategic Prevention
Framework (SPF) funded by the U.S. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration that engages communities in a
five-step process to assess, build capacity for, plan, implement and evaluate strategies to reduce high-risk alcohol consumption
and its harmful consequences.

National Health Service Corps (NHSC)
Data Coordinator to collect 'Uniform Data Systems' (UDS) information from all NHSC sites, which do not receive direct federal
grants. The data collected describes the financial and operational parameters of the health centers, and forms the basis of NHSC
management decisions and reports to Congress, as well as informing the health centers of their relative perfoniiance. The project
involves extensive data management and technical editing of reported data as well as the development of unique software to
collect, manage, and screen the data electronically.

Multi State Learning Collaborative
Administrative support for the RWJF-funded Multi State Learning Collaborative (MLC-3), a national collaborative effort to
improve public health services and the health of communities by linking public health processes to health outcomes. Manage two
learning collaboratives addressing childhood obesity and health improvement planning, and tobacco cessation among pregnant
women and workforce development. Developed assessment tools and conducted public health network capacity assessments to
inform NH public health regionalization process.

Prcdiabctcs Media Development and Placement Services
Logistic and administrative support for developing, managing and evaluating a statewide media campaign that targets adults at
high risk for type 2 diabetes, which includes media creation and testing target audience receptivity; tactical strategy development
and implementation; and placement, buys, and evaluation.

Cheshire County Drug Court (CCDC)
Provided support in the program evaluation of the CCDC program, which is expanding the substance use disorder treatment
capacity in their Superior Court through the development of the CCDC. The goal is to reduce recidivism by breaking the
criminogenic patterns of behavior related to substance abuse and addiction among high risk/high need non-violent offenders.

NH Tobacco Addiction Treatment Services (TATS)
Served as Project Assistant, logistical coordinator and website manager for the NH TATS project. This contract seives as the hub
for (he NH Tobacco Resource Center, which inconjorates: I) the NH Smokers' Helpline offering free and confidential counseling
and services in English, Spanish and Portuguese; 2) the promotion of the NH Smokers' Helpline through a variety of traditional
and non-traditional media outlets; and 3) www.trytoslopnh.org, a web-based resource forNM tobacco users and 4) QuiiWorks-
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NH a resource for NH clinicians working with their patients to quit using tobacco by providing them with a single portal for
referring their patients who use tobacco for state-of-the-art treatment {www.quitworknsnli.org). This initiative also includes the
continued development of a consortium of health insurers who are willing to promote TTS-NI I to their subscribers directly and
endorse QuitWorks-NH to their contracted health care providers. ^ '

New England Rural Health RoundTablc (NERHRT)
Project manager with responsibilities that included maintaining a database with dues paid members and with lapsed memberships.
Coordinated production of the newsletter and managed layout, and printing. Processed all mailings including annual dues,
conference announcements, board mailings, press releases, RFPs^ and newsletters. Maintained financial records. Communicated
regularly with NERHRT researcher and website manager. Answered the NERHRT dedicated phone line and processed all
inquiries from Board members, association members and individuals seeking information about the association. Logistics
coordinator for two annual retreats, a conference, and annual board meeting and provided assistance with organization of annual
symposium. Provided assistance to the Executive Director.

NH HIV Logistics and Capacity Building
Logistics Coordinator of the NH HIV Logistics and Capacity Building Project funded by the NI IDHHS and the Division of Public
Health Services STD/HIV Prevention Section. Provided logistical and capacity building support for the NH HIV community
planning process and for funded HIV Prevention Services agencies during the fiscal years 2006-2008.

Webster Place

Provided project support for the initial stages of the recovery center, including marketing/coordination of three events (Open
House, Ribbon Cutting Ceremony, and an Evening of Gratitude). Administrative duties included compiling evaluation feedback
on the facility's current program structui'e and offerings. Webster Place is an historic property located in Franklin, NH, and
acquired by a consortium of conservation groups. One hundred and forty acres were put into a conservation trust, but the seven
buildings were turned into an alcohol and drug iccovery center.

New Hampshmc Health Professional Shortage Area (HPSA) Analysis
Liaison to all licensed providers in NH with regard to gathering of sur\'ey infonnation pertaining to their worksites; tracking down
missing information through billing departments or office nianagers and providing technical support to providers or their staff in
completing the online survey. Responsible for entering data and tracking sur\'ey-specific information. Assisted with the analysis
of designated Health Professional Shortage Areas (HPSAs) for primary care, mental health and dental health care in New
Hampshire, and identified opportunities for additional designations. Three main objectives for this were maximizing the
possibility for federal benefits by identifying eligible/high scoring geographic areas and special populations, identifying gaps or .
inaccuracies in existing data, and assessing opportunities in areas of "special populations", governor and facility designations.

ASO Children's Mental Health

JSI implemented the ASO-Children's Mental Health project on behalf of the NH Department of Health and Human Services to
create an integrated care and service delivery system for children with mental health needs who receive care from one or more
governmental agencies. The project assessed systems and care outcomes for children currently in residential placement and
operalionalized a pilot process 2010 that coordinated care and funding mechanisms to improve outcomes for children with mental
health needs. Logistical support was provided to coordinate advisoiy and finance committee meetings, travel logistics for national
experts and coordination of data from the chosen pilot site. ^

Community Benefits Legislation Workshops
Arranged and provided conference logistics for The New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services, Office of
Planning and Research, to conduct a series of workshops across the State on New Hampshire's Community Benefit legislation. In
addition, provided logistical support in planning and conducting a state-wide conference with NH charitable trusts to present
findings and to share lessons learned.

Southern New Hampshire Specialists IPA, Inc.
Provided administrative support for the Southem New Hampshire Specialist (IPA). Communicate with practice office managers
in meeting coordination and membership. JSI is contracted to provide executive and administrative support for a group of fifly
Specialists in the Southern New Hampshire region. JSI established the association of independent physicians including forming a
legal entity, formalizing relations with partners including local hospitals and primary care providers, developing an organizational
stiucturc and operating procedures. The association provides support to the independent practices including negotiating managed
care contracts. As an association, the independent practices have been able to represent their individual interests in a coordinated
and more effective way.

New Hampshire Public Health Association (NHPHA)
Responsibilities included providing logistical support for two annual training events and an annual legislative briefing.' Work
with representatives of the Program Committee or designee to identify appropriate conference space, negotiated contracts for
space and food, drafted and provided layout registration materials, reproduced handouts and provided registration support at the
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conference. Maintained the NHPi lA database with dues paid members with lapsed memberships. Coordinated production of the
newsletter and managed layout and printing; processed all mailings including annual dues mailing, conference announcements,
board mailings, press releases and newsletters. Answered the NIIPHA dedicated phone line and processed all inquiries from
Board members, association members and individuals seeking information about the association.

me
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Emily McMaster

JSl Research & Training Institute. Inc., 501 South St, 2nd Floor, Bow, NH 03304. (603) 573-3320 emily_mcmasier@jsi.com

Education

Northeasti-kn UNIVI-RSI'IY ^

hdaster ofScience in Global Studies and International Relations, 2020

St. Lawrence University

Bachelor of .Arts in Rerformance Communication Arts and Aiu.sic. 2016

Honors in Performance <?• Communication .Arts and Music
Magna Cum Laude

Experience

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. d/b/a Community Health Institute, Bow, NH Project
Manager, May 2023 - present

New Hampshire Chronic Disease Program

Project Manager for Chronic Disease, with a focus on Breast and Cervical Cancer, Comprehensive Cancer, and Arthritis,
supporting the team providing technical assistance, graphic design ser\'ices and contract management. Multiple learning
opportunities, virtual and in-person, are planned, promoted, and implemented. Oversee purchasing and the tracking and
maintenance of program budgets.

New Hampshire Radon Program

Ser\'e as Project Manager supporting the team to facilitate a student poster contest through New Mampshire middle
school teachers, create an ad campaign to promote radon testing in homes, assist with event facilitation for stakeholders
throughout the state, host a training for realtors to become NRPP certified, create an informative brochure to be used by
libraries for radon testing, and assist with the creation of an instnictional video for radon testing. Assist with the tracking
and maintenance of the program budget.

New Hampshire Immunization Programs

Serve as Fiscal Manager for the Immunization Program, Task 003 and 004. Support the project through tracking and
maintenance of program budgets, process invoices, and create quarterly reports.

GSU Tobacco Messaging

Project Manager for the GSU Tobacco Messaging work. This includes managing pieces of the focus groups, such as
transcription ser\'ices, food orders, gift card stipend orders, and tracking focus group materials for the client. Assist with
notes as needed and manage tracking for the budget.

Sealing Smiles Across NH - Oral Health
Project Manager for the Sealing Smiles Across Ni l campaign. Coordinate meetings with the client - DPMS and Solvere
Health. Facilitate translation and printing of materials for school-based clinics, and assist with promotion of the
program. Oversee purchasing, invoices, and assist with the tracking of program budgets.

Community-Based Partnerships for Comprehensive Tobacco Cessation and Promotion
Project Manager for Tobacco Free Network and the Tobacco Prevention and Cessation Program strategic plan.
Coordinate virtual and in-person meetings, create sur\'eys, and assist with communication'materials.

lEMcMaster I
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Food ProtccJion Services

Projecl Director for the Food Protection Services program. Coordinate a spring training, order posters for restaurants,
and assist with the development and edits of a food protection manual.

/

NH Emergency Volunteer Conference

Project Manager for the eveni. Facilitate the planning committee meetings and discussions, coordinate venue logistics,
manage speakers and all facets of the event planning, and provide overall event support.

Health Officer Program

Project Manager for the Environmental l-lealth.& Cancer training module,project. Manage scholarship applications for
health officers.

Public Health Lab

Project Manager for the Public Meaith Lab video and module project. Take notes for client meetings, provide logistical
support, aiid assist with the video shoots and editing of the conent.

Health Officer Regional Meetings

Administrative support coordinating trainings in each Regional Public Heath Network for Health Officers. Provide
logistical event support, including invitations, registrations, coordinating a raffie for each meeting, overseeing venue
logistics, and in-person support at the meetings.

\

JSI Events

Serve as Project Manager supporting the team to provide logistical assistance with statewide events, focused on a variety
of contracts. This includes the NH School Nurses Association Essentials conference and Resiliency conference, as well
as event support for Drug Treatment Court, Juvenile Diversion, NH Immunization Conference, and Environmental
Mcallh Conference..

^  . . .

NH Granite State Ambassadors, NH

Operations and Comnmnications Director, January 2021-May 2023
Provided support to volunteers and center managers in visitor centers throughout the state. Coordinated communication efforts,
including a bi-weekly newsletter to volunteers and a quarterly newsletter to industry members. Created social media campaigns
for fimdraising efforts and announcements about educational programming. Responsible for creating and disseminating press
releases about prograih updates and events. Facilitated the educational opportunities for volunteers, which included virtual
lectures, in-person tours, and virtual interviews. Provided support for an annual online auction, new volunteer trainings, and other
projects as needed. Conducted data entry for volunteer hours and created monthly reports.

NH Granite State Ambassadors, NH

Volunteer and Event Manager, December-2018-December 2020
Supervised volunteers on-site at events throughout the state. Facilitated pre-eveni management, including orientation packets,
meetings, volunteer communication, and event set-up. Conducted post-event management, including reports for event staff and
tracking volunteer hours. On-site set-up for the NH Tourism booth, supporting the Department of Travel & Tourism.

NH Public Health Association, Concord, NH

Worlrforce Development Coordinator. February 2018-2019
Implemented a student mentoring program for public health students, which included mentoring events within the program.
Coordinated webinars and trainings for public health professionals. Created promotional materials for events and trainings.
Promoted trainings and events through social media.

Computer Skills

Microsoft Office Suite

G Suite (Google)
Wordpress

(■
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MailChimp Constant
Contact

Sun'eyMonkey

Volgistics

Airtable

Alchemer

Cvent

Honors and Awards

Graduate of Greater Concord Leadership, Class of 2022
Citation from Governor Sununu for work completed with Ni l Granite State Ambassadors, 2021
Rhetoric and Communication Studies award recipient, 2016

Undergraduate Honors Research Conference participant: "Denmark Tourism: Space, Place and Embodiment", 2016

EMcMaster 3
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Robert J. Weiss

JSI • 501 South Street. Bow. New Hampshire 05504 * (605) 575-5609 roberl_weiss@jsi.coin

Education

St. John Fisher College, Rochester, NY

Bachelor of Arts. History and Adolescent Education. 2007

Experience

JSI, Bow, New Hampshire
Event Specialist, March 2022 to Present

New Hampshire Infectious Disease Prevention, Investigation and Care Services Section (IDPICSS) July 2022 to
present

Provide technical assistance, graphic design services, fiscal management, registration, agenda and presenter
coordination, viiiual event platfonn selection, and staffing coordination for the Annual Sexual Health Virtual Training.
This project also requires continuing education application coordination, evaluation, and pre- and post event reporting.
Logistical support is also provided for virtual events for the project including presenter training, practice sessions, and
participant support with virtual platforms.

HRSA, Bureau of Primary Health Care, Health Information Technology, Evaluation, and Quality (HITEQ)
Center July 2022.tn present
The HITEQ Center partners with HRSA partners to provide federally qualified health centers assistance in optimizing
the use of their EHRs and other health IT systems for continuous, data driven quality improvement to support positive
health outcomes for all health center patients. Trainings include national webinars and workshops. Technical assistance
includes learning collaboralives and on-demand individual or group consultations on priority topics. Robert provides
logistical support for learning collaboratives including monitoring registrations for eligible health centers, pre and post
event communications. Zoom support during the events, and reporting attendance data.

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Health Resources and Services Administration, Bureau of
Primary Health Care (BPHC) April 2022 to present
Contracted by BPHC to implement the Uniform Data System (UDS) that collects information annually from over 1,400
federally qualified health centers (FQMCs) nationwide. The Bureau of Primary Health Care (BPHC) designed the
Reporting Assistance and Process Improvement Discussion (RAPID) series to foster peer learning with a goal of
strengthening health centers' understanding of Uniform Data System (UDS) clinical quality measure (CQM) reporting.
Robert's primary responsibilities include recruitment and registration for the UDS RAPID series along with logistical
support throughout the scries for the facilitators of the three cohorts. Logistical support includes managing Zoom
registration, communications with participants, tracking health center participation through the completion of assigned
action work, and evaluation reporting to the team.

New Hampshire Chronic Disease Program March 2022 to Present
Serve as Event Specialist supporting the team providing technical assistance, graphic design ser\'ices, fiscal
management, registration, agenda and presenter coordination, venue coordination, onsite management and staffing
including registration staff, continuing education application coordination, evaluation, and pre- and post event reporting.
Logistical support is also provided for virtual events for the project including presenter training, practice sessions, and
participant support with virtual platforms.

Drug Court Assessment and Training & Technical Assistance (DCATT) March 2022 to Present
With funding from a discretionary grant from the Bureau of Justice Assistance, JSI is providing assessment, training and
technical assistance (TTA) services for all ten of the adult specialty treatment drug courts in the NH Drug Court Program
(NH DCP), including a two-day conference for drug court professionals.

R. Weiss I
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NH Treatment Court Conference 2023
The event attracted 157 people and took place over two days in Baillett Ni l in September 2023. The event
featured a keynote presenter, 6-9 breakout sessions, panel presentations, exhibitors and opportunities for
networking. JSI's event team services included all aspects of event management including marketing, web
design, graphic design, exhibitor and sponsor management, fiscal management, registration, agenda and
presenter coordination, venue coordination, onsite management and staffing including registration staff and
session moderators, continuing education application coordination, evaluation, and pre- and post event
reporting.

Healthy Homes and Lead Poisoning Prevention Program March 2022 to present
JSI supports efforts to reduce childhood lead poisoning throughout the state of New Hampshire and in New England by
producing educational materials, providing social media marketing and outreach, and logistical support for trainings and
confefehces geared toward health providers, parents, lead professionals, and contractors. JSI's event team provides
logistical support to a variety of events on an annual basis to support the program's initiatives including regional dinners
for physicians and healthcare providers, educational sessions for property owners, stakeholder engagement opportunities,
public health network meetings, and event management to support the annual NH Environmental Health Conference
previously known as the NH Healthy Homes Conference.

NH Immunization March 2022 to Present

JSI works with the NH Department of i lealth Human Services Immunization Program to assist them in their effort to
creatively communicate scientifically accurate information to the community, ag well educate NH's healthcare providers
on emerging infectious diseases and vaccine-updates.

The JSI event team provides event management services to the immunization program managers to plan their annual
^  conference.

NH Immunization Program 2022
The JSI event team provided management of a virtual conference held in November 2022. The event attracted
177 participants and a variety of exhibitors. The event team provided promotion, registration, fiscal,
management, exhibitor solicitation, planning committee management, speaker coordination, CEU/CME

( management, virtual event management, and all technical aspects of the event.

t

Past Experience ;

Northeast Sustainable Energy Association (NESEA), Greenfield, MA
Program & Event Coordinator, January 2020 to March 2022
Planned and coordinated logistics for a variety of events. Provided on-site support for multi-day meetings for 15-35 business
owners participating in a peer mentoring program. Coordinated and trained volunteers, assisted exhibitors with booth setup, and
processed registration at the BuildingEnergy Boston conference in 2022. Served as our event team's technology lead for virtual
events including; conferences, webinars, and project tours. Supported the conference manager with the CEU process before and
afler events.

Levy Restaurants - Golf Division, Charlotte, NC .
Operations Supervisor, April 2018 to December 2019
Executed the time sensitive construction of temporaiy kitchens and food ser\'ice stations used for catering at PGA tour events.
Worked with the culinary and warehouse departments to guarantee all equipment was accounted for and operational. Served as the
point of contact with the local Department of Health representative, the on-site shipping and receiving service, and the beverage
vendors. Provided daily requisition reports during events to assist with inventoiy management.

Lionbridgc Technologies, Remote
Web Search Rater, April 2015 to December 2019
Perfonned research to determine user intent with web based queries and analyzed web search results in order to evaluate their
quality and ability to meet user needs. Developed written reports when issues were discovered and flagged potentially disturbing
content.

Lowell Public Schools, Lowell, MA

Leveled Literacy Interventionist, September 2012 to June 2015

R. Weiss 2
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Planned inslruction for small groups of students assigned to the literacy intervention program in order to accelerate their
development of reading skills. Assessed students for progress in the program and accurately tracked data. Assisted the literacy
team in the selection of learning materials that could be purchased within our annual budget.

Perry Hall High School, Perry Hall, MD
Civics and Economics Teacher, December 2007 to June 2010

Developed a personal finance program for high school seniors that would prepare them for financial success after graduation.
Created and managed an after school review program to prepare students for their statewide civics exam. Collaborated with ,
fellow teachers in the department to share recourses obtained from local and national professional development seminars.

Volunteer AcrivrTrES

Born to Learn - Mentor for local English teachers
'Mo?,\\\,Tzx\Ziin\ii January 2()]7 to February 2017

KNGO Cambodia - Mentor for local English teachers
Battambang, Cambodia Februaiy 2016

WWOOF - Supported a variety of small organic farms
New Zealand November 2013 to Mav 2014

R. Weiss 3
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms.and conditions of the agreement..

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

.'1 , ■ '
Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

v_

NAME JOB TITLE ANNUAL ANNUAL

Debbie Love Project Director $24,203.72 $89,847.62

Amy Moffett Project Manager $27,037.50 $90,997.78"

Emily McMaster Project Manager $6,272.76 $75,324.06

Robert Weiss Events Manager $3,179.20 $80,643.04
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICE

DIVISION OF PVBLIC HEALTH SER VICES

UriA.WMver 29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD. NH 03301
Interim Comniuioncr 603-271-4501 l-SOO-452-3345 Ext. 4501

Fax:603-271-4827 TOO Access: Ir800-73ST2964 www.dbhs.oh.sov
Patricia M: Tilley

Director'

April 13,2023

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable CouricH

State House
Concorcl, New Harhjjshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division ,of Public Health
Services, to amend an existirig contract with JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc; (VC #161611-
B001), Bow. NH, to coritjhue providing chronic disease prevention and managernent professional
training and developnient opportunities; by exercisihig a contract renewal opliori, by.; increasing
the price limitation by $1.895,830 from $994,723 to $2,880,553 and extending the cbrhpletion
date from June 30. 2023 to June 30. 2026. effective July 1. 2023 upon Governor and Council
approval, whichever is later. 100% Federal Funds.

the origirial contract was.approyed by Governor and.Council on April 21,202'1, item,#18.-

Funds are anticipated to.be available jn the following accounts for State Fiscal Years 2024,
2025 arid 2026. upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds In the future operating
budgets, with the authority, tb adjust budget line Items within the price limitatlor) and
encumbrances betiiwen state fiscal,years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal detatis,

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this r^uest is fpr the Contractor to continue providing training and
devejopment'oppprtunitles for healthcare professionals to increase awareness of evidence-based
strategies and programs for chronic disease prevention and management. Increased awareness
results in increased referrals to free screehlrig programs and community-based lifestyle change,
programs, the Cbntra^orwji he responsible for planning, hosting and evaluating the traihihg.

The .Contractor will .expand the Tpcus of the training and development oppprtuhllies to
Jnclude oral health for oral health professionals. the Contractor will also asstst the Departmer^ In
Increasing the riumber of adults enrolled in lifestyle change programs.

The Contractor vwll condupt approximately 50. training events and ^ucational
opportunities for over 500 medibeii. behavioral health and oral health professiprials by June 30,
2026. ■ ■

The Departmerit will rnpnitpr continued and expanded services to ensure the following
perfoiTnance indicators are, achieved annually:



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Courtcil
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•  Ten percent (10%) annual increase in the number of coIlal>orative practice
agreements ̂ tween providers and pharmacists;

•  .Fifteen percent (15%) annual increase in the number'of individuals with
prediabetes enrolled in the National Diabetes Prevention Program;

•  Five percent (5%) annual increase in the number of coilaborative practice
agreements with dental providers; and

.  Fifteen percent (15%) annual increase in the number of adutts diagnosed with
arthritis in New'Hampshire that enroll in an evidence based self-management
program to help manage their arthritis symptoms.

As referenced in Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Contract Provisions, of the original
agreement, the. parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to three (3) additional
years contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreemerit of the
parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department Is exercising Its option .to renew
services for three (3) years of the three (3) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Department may be
unable to provide professional training and development to healthcare professionals to enhance
provision of chronic disease prevention and management services. These prevention services
help individuals maintain their health and allow for early diagnoses of diseases, vvhich reduces
medical costs and promotes quality of life.

Area served: Statewide.

Sources of Federal Funds: CFDA #93.426. FAIN NU58DP006515; CFDA #93.436. FAIN
NU58DP006836: CFDA #93.898 FAIN NU58DP007115; CFDA #93.945. FAIN NU58DPp08448;
CFDA #93.366, FAIN NU58DP006487..

in the event the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds wll not be
requested to support this program.

■' Respectfully submitted.

-"^^ori A. Weaver
* interim Commissioner

Th« Departmtnt of Heolih and Human Svvieta'MiaionUto'ioin ronimuniJ/et and fomUin
in providing opporiunUiu for eiiizeno to aehUve /imU/i and indopendeneo.



Fiscal Detail Sheet

Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

05.95-090-902010-1227 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND COMMUNITY SERVICES,
COMBINED CHRONIC DISEASE

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

.Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc

90017002,
(diabetes)

$62,500 $0 $82,500

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Profl Svc
90017003 (heart) $82,500 .$0 $82,500

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Pfoq Svc

90017002

(diat>etes)
$115,000 $0 $115,000

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90017003 (heart) $115,000 $0 $115,000

2023 - 102-500731
Contracts for

• Prog Svc

90017002

(diabetes)
$115,000 $0

V

$115,000

2023 102-500731 .
Contracts for ^

Prog Svc
90017003 (heart) $115,000 $d $115,000

• Subtota! $625,000 $0 $625,000

05.95-90-904510-3228 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF PREVENTION AND WELLNESS. COMBINED CHRONIC
DISEASE

2024 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asstand Relief
90017003 (heart) $0 $175,000 $175,000

2024 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief

90017002

(diabetes)
$0 $175,00C! $175,000

2025 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asstand Relief
90017003 (heart) $0 $175,000 $175,000

2025;074-500589
Grants for Public .

Asst and Relief

■90017002
(diabetes)

$0 .$175,000 $175,000

2026 074-500589 .
Grants for Public .

Asst and Relief
90017003 (heart) $0 $175,000 $175,000

2026 074-500589 ■
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief

90017002
(diabetes)

$0 $175,000 $175,000

■ - Subtotal $625,000 $1,050,000 $1,675,000

05-95-090-902010-7045 HEALtH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, WISEWOMAN

SUte:

Fiscal

Year

Class I

Account <
Class Title

»

Job Number Current Budget
Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 ■ 102-500731 ■
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90070450 $60,000 $0 $60,000

2022
v̂r»

102-500731
•Contracts for

Prog Svc
90070450 $60,000 $0 ^$60,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
■ 90070450 ■ $60,000 $0 $60,000

-1 ... Subtotal $180,000, $0 $180,000
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Fiscal Detail Sheet

Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

05-95-90-904510-3226 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, WISEWOMAN

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title
\

Job Number

/

Current Budget

^  Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

.Budget

2024 074-500589 .
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief •
90070450 - $0 $30,000 $30,000

2025 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
90070450 $0 $30,000 $30,000

2026 074-500589 '
" Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
90070450 $0 $30,000 $30,000

Subtotal $180,000 $90,000 $270,000

05-95-090-902010-5659 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES,

DIVISION OF PUBLIC H^LTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY
CANCER

DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:

AND HEALTH SERVICES, COMPREHENSIVE

State

Fiscal

Year

Class I

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

'Increased

(Decreased)

Amount ii

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731 •
/■

Contracts for
Prog Svc

90080081
BGCP

$25,241 -  $0 $25,241

2021 . 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90080083

Comp Cancer
$5,000 $0 $5,000

2022 074-500589
Contracts for

Prog Svc
90080081

BCCP
$52,241 $0 $52,241

2022* 074-500589
Contracts for

Prog Svc
■  90080083 ■
Comp Cancer

$5,000 $0 $5,000

2023. 074-500589
Grants for Public '
Asst and Relief

90080081
BCCP

$52,241 $0 $52,241

2023 074-500589. ''
Grants for Public
Asst and Relief

90080083
Comp Cancer

$5,000 $0 $5,000

Subtotal $144,723 $0 $144,723

05.95.90-904510-3225 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, COMPREHENSIVE
CANCER

State
Fiscal
Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number ^ Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2024 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief

90080081

BCCP
$0 .$52,241 $52,241

2024 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief

90080083
Comp Cancer ,

$0 $10,000 $10,000

2025 074-500589
Grants for Public '

Asst and Relief

90080081
BCCP .

$0 $52,241 ,  $52,241
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2025 074-500589'^
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief

90080083

Comp Cancer
$0 $10,000 $10,000

2026 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief

90080081

BCCP
$0 $52,241 $52,241

2026 074-500589 .
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief

90080083

Comp Cancer
$0 $10,000 $10,000

Subtotal $144,723 $186,723 $331,446

05-95-0

DtVISIC

90-902010-7046 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
IN OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, ARTH

SVS, HHS:

RITIS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Nurnber

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2021 102-500731
Contracts for '

•Proq Svc
90017717 ' $15,000 $0 ,$15,000

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Proq Svc
90017717 $15,000 $0 $15,000

2023 102-500731
Contracts for ,

Proq Svc
90017717 $15,000 $0 $15,000

•• ■ Subtotal ^ $45,000 $0 $45,000

05-95-90-904510-3227 HEALTH'AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, ARTHRITIS

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account •
Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2024 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
90017717 $0 $15,000 $15,000

2025 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
90017717 $0 $15,000 $15,000

2026 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
90017717 -,$0 $15,000 $15,000

Subtotal $0 $45,000 $45,000

05-95-S

DiVISK

>0-904510-322

3N OF PUBLIC

2 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS:
: HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND HEALTH SERVICES, ORAL HEALTH

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

Increas^
(Decreased)

/Amount

Revised

Budget

2024

f

074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
90002215 $0 $151,369 $151,369

2025 074-500589 ' Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
90002215 $0 $181,369 $181,369

•  2026 074-500589
Grants for Public

Asst and Relief
90002215 $0 $181,369 $181,369

Subtotal so $514,107 $574,707

Total $994,723 $514,107 $1,508,830
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases
.  contract is by and be^een the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
.("State" or "Department") and JSl Research & Training institute, inc. ("the Contractor").

-WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on April 21. 2021 (Item #18). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon th'e terms and
•'conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

.WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 17, and Exhibit'A, Revisions to
Standard Contract Provisions', Subsection 1.1, the Contract niay be amended upon written agreement of
"the parties.and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to expend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued.dellvery of these services; and

.NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutuai.covenants and.conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2026

2. Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$2,880,553

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read;

Robert W. Moore, Director ' •

4. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, by.Tepiaclng. it in its entirety with Exhibit B- Amendment #1,
Scope of Services, which is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

■  5. Add Exhibit B-2 Work Plan. Amendment #1, which Js attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

6. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1, Subsection l.p to read:

1.3 . Assistance Programs for Cancer Prevention and Control Programs for.State, Territorial and
■  Tribal Organization, as awarded on August 24, 2020, by the CDC, New Hampshire Breast &

-Cervical Cancer. Comprehensive Cancer and Cancer Registfy Programs, Assistance Listing
Number (ALN) 93.898, FAIN NU58DP006298, and as awarded on June 30. 2022, ALN
93.898, FAIN NU58DP0.07115.

7. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms. Section 1, by adding Subsection 1.5 as follows:

1.5 State Actions to Improve Oral Health Outcomes, as awarded on June 24, 2022. by the CDC,
Improving and Sustaining Oral Health Outcomes in New Hampshire, ALN 93.366. FAIN
NU58PP006487. .. .

8. Modify Exhibit C, Payrrient Terrns. Section 3, to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basi% for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibit C-1 Budget through Exhibit C-39, Amendment #1 SFY26. The Contractor
shall:

3.1. Meet the in-kind rhatch of an amount-equal .to a minimum of 33% of the funding in thiis
^  contract from"the federal WISEWOMAN grant as^specified in Section 1, Subsection 1A

^

JSl,Research & Training tnslilule, Inc. j, A-S-1.3 • Contraclor Initials, V

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01 . Page 1 of 4
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3.2.

3.3.

of this Exhibit C.

Ensure the annual required match is In non-federal contributions either in cash or in-kind
related directly to carrying out the WISEWOMAN activities and goals that may include
ah in-kind match of non-NH DHHS funded contributions of time, equipment, space, or
dollars.

Submit a bi-annual report of itemized matching funds to the Department no later than
December 1st and June 1st, annually.

9. Add Exhibit C-19, Amendment #1 SFY24 Budget (Heart)

10. Add Exhibit C-20. Amendment #1 SFY24 Budget (Diabetes)

11. Add Exhibit C-21. Amendment #1 SFY24 Budget (WISEWOMAN)

12. Add Exhibit C-22, Amendment #! SFY24 Budget (Breast and Cervical Cancer)

13. Add Exhibit C-23, Amendment#! SFY24 Budget (Comprehensive Cancer)

14. Add Exhibit C-24, Amendment#! SFY24 Budget (Arthritis)
»•

15. Add Exhibit Cr25, Amendment #1 SFY24 Budget (Oral Health)

16. Add Exhibit C-26, Amendment #1 SFY25 Budget (Heart)

17. Add Exhibit C-27, Amendment,#1 SFY25 Budget (Diabetes)

18. Add Exhibit C-28. Amendment #1 SFY25 Budget (WISEWOMAN)

19. Add Exhitjit C-29, Amendment #1 SFY25 Budget.(Breast and Cervical Cancer)

20. Add Exhibit C-30, Amendment #1 SFY25 Budget (Comprehensive Cancer)

21. Add Exhibit C-31. Amendment"#! SFY25 Budget (Arthritis)

22. Add Exhibit C-32, Amendment #1 SFY25 Budget (Oral Health)

23. Add Exhibit C-33, Amendment #1 SFY26 Budget (Heart)

24. Add Exhibit C-34, Amendment #1 SFY26 Budget (Diabetes)

25. Add Exhibit C-35. Amendment #1 .SFY26 Budget (WISEWOMAN)

26. Add Exhibit,C-36, Amendment #1 SFY26 Budget (Breast And Cervical Cancer)

27. Add Exhibit C-37, Amendment #1 SFY26 Budget (Comprehensive Cancer)

28. Add Exhibit C-38,:Amendment #1 SFY26 Budget (Arthritis)

29. Add Exhibit C-39, Amendment #1 SFY26 Budget (Oral Health) '■

30. Modify Attachment 1, Event Checklist, by replacing it in its entirety with Attachment 1, Event
Checklist - Amendment #1.

JSI Research & Training Institule, Inc.

RFp.2021-DPHS.03-eDUCA-01-A01

A.S-f.3
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective July 1. 2023, upon Governor and Council approval, whichever is later.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

4/14/2023

Date

• OeeuSlan«d br:

M. Ttlley

Title:
01 rector

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

4/14/2023

Date

—0©«u8lffn«d by:

Name:

Title:

Katherine Robert

Director

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

RFP.2021-DPHS^3.EOUCA-01-A01

A.&.1.2
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

f  OocuSigMd by:

4/17/2023

.  Name- Luarino '
'Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ..(date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. A-S-1.2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and
.Manage Chronic Disease

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work for AH Services

1.1.^ The Contractor shall provide educational trainings to medical, behavioral
health, and public health "professionals statewide to promote evidence-based
strategies-for preventing and managing chronic diseases, including:

1.1.1. Cancer;

1.1.2. Diabetes;

1.1.3. Prediabetes;

T.1.4: Heart Disease; ^
K  ■

1.1.5. Arthritis; and , '

1.1.6. Oral Health. ^
1.2. _ The Contractor shall provide technical assistance and the trainings, as
' specified in 1.1 above, to targeted populations including: ^

1.2.1. Medical providers including, but not limited to:

1.2.1.1., Medical doctors.

1.2.1.2. Advanced practice registered nurses.

1.2.1.3. Physician assistants.

1.2.1.4. Dentists.

,,, T.2.1.5. Dental Hygienists.

1.2.2. Behavioral health professionals including, but, not limited to:

1.2.2.1. Peer support staff. ^ y

1.2.2.2. .Social workers.

1.2.2.3. Psychologists.

^1.2.2.4. Public health professionals.

1.2.3. Healthcare team members including, but not limited to:

M.2.3.1. Pharmacists. .

1.2.3.2." Pharmacy technicians.

1.2.3.3. Certified diabetes educators.

1.2.3.4. Registered nurses.

1.2.3.5. Registered dietitians.
__ ^ M

1.2.3.6. Licensed practical nurses. •

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EbUCA^f Contractor Initials
.  ̂ 4/14/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and
Manage Chronic Disease

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

1.2.3.7. Community health workers.

1.2.3.8. Patient navigators.

1.2.3.9. ■ Medicai biliing and coding staff.

1.2.3.10. Heaithcare administrators.

1.2.3.11. Medicai assistants.

1.2.3.12. Care managers/coordinators.

1.2.4; National Diabetes Prevention Program (NDPP) lifestyle coaches and
members of the Diabetes Prevention Advisory Group (DPAG).

1.2.5. Individuals who fit within the current United States Preventiye
Services Task Force (USPSTF) breast and cervicai cancer screening
guidelines.

1.2.6. Aduils with, and at risk for, prediabetes.

1.3. the Contractor shall ensure all services under this Agreement are provided in
' accordance with the foiiowing goals and strategies, as applicable:

1.3.1. Improving - access to and, participation in American Diabetes
Association (ADA) and Association of Diabetes Care and Education
Specialists (ADCES) accredited Diabetes Self-Management
Education and Support (DSMES) programs in undferserved areas;

1.3.2. Increasing engagement of pharmacists in the provision of hiedication
• therapy management;

1.3.3. Assisting -health care organizations in implementing systems to
identify people with prediabetes and referring them to NDPP for type
two-(2) diabetes prevention;

1.3.4. Promoting the adoption of evidence-based quality measurement .at
the provider level;

1.3.5. ■Facilitating the use of Self-Measured Blood Pressure monitoring
(SMBP) tied with clinical support among adults with hypertension;

1.3.6. Implementing systems to.facilitate systematic referral of adults with
hypertension and/or high blood cholesterol to community programs
and resources approved by the Centers for Disease Control (CDC);

1.3.7. Counseling and referring patients to increase physical activity.
1.3:8. Adopting innovative and systems-based approaches to

establish/enhance healthcare provider patient counseling about
physical activity for arthritis management, including walking and
Arthritis-Appropriate Evidence-Based Intervention '(AAEBI)',re'^""'"^

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01 Conlraclor Initials
'  4/14/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Professional Educatiori and Promotion to Prevent and
Manage Chronic Disease

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

1.3.9. Promoting walking and state walking initiatives addressing the unique
needs of adults with arthritis:

1.3.10. Raising, awareness about arthritis burden and management via
promotion of AAEBIs, patient counseling, physical activity and
walking;

1.3.11. Developing a comprehensive and coordinated approach to inform
policy, systems, and environmental changes that decrease the

.  burden cancer has on individuals by: , '

1.3.11.1. ' Working with community, clinical,.and national partners to
reach disparate populations;

1.3.11.2. Using culturally appropriate interventions and/materials
that are tailored for the communities to identify barriers to
breast and cervical cancer screening, ways'to address

/  barriers, and opportunities for outreach;

1.3.11.3. Reaching out to communities which include but are not
limited, to: Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, and
Queer/Questioning (LGBTQ) community partners;

1.3.11.4. Supporting a state-wide cancer coalition to achieve
cancer plan goals and objectives;

1.3.11.5. Leveraging community resources to implement
evidenced-based interventions that are aligned, with

-■ ■ promoting the primary 'prevention and early detection of
cancer; addressing cancer survivor needs, and promoting
cancer-related health equity; and

1.3.11.6. " Fostering and sustaining relationships with key
organizations whose missions align with the reduction of
cancer related morbidity and mortality.

1.4. The Contractor shall submit applications for Continuing Education Units (CEU)
to appropriate credentialing bodies on behalf of training attendees.

1.5. The Contractor shall provide CEU completion documentation to all attendees
in accordance with credentialing body regulations.

1.6. The Contractor shall obtain Department approval for:

1.6.1. Training opportunity location: ■
1.6.2. Training session scheduling;
1.6.3. Training promotion;
1.6.4. Contractor identified trainer(s); «

l-iX .
RFP-2021-OPHS-03-EDUCA-01 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and
Manage Chronic Disease

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

1.6.5. Collection of exhibitor fees;

1.6:6. Training materials and handouts; and

1.6.7. Training session evaluations and survey materials."

1.7. The Contractor shall participate in monthly In-person or conference call
meetings with the Department to review and discuss project development and
implementation, including, but not limited to;

1.7.1, Activities;

1.7.2. Trainings;

1.7.3. Interventions;

1.7.4. Challenges;

1.7.5. Progress; and

1.7.6. Funding.

1.8. The Contractor shall schedule a meeting with the Department at least 60 days
prior to each event to understand the desired outcome of the event, including
but not limited to the following factors:

1.8.1. Venue.

1.8'.2. Registration Platform;

1.8.3. Speakers.

1.8.4. Fee Structure, if any.

1.8.5. Marketing and Outreach.

1.8.6. Promotion.

1.8.7. TypeofCEUs.

2. Diabetes and Heart Disease Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall coordinate support, for training attendees/members of the
covered populations above to implement evidence-based strategies by
providing technical and financial assistance, which shall include but is not
limited to:

2.1.1. Initial start-up cost.

2.1.2. .Planning, capacity and readiness assessments.

2.1:3. Other supports approved by the Department.and CDC. ,

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01 Contractor Initials
4/14/2023'
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and
Manage Chronic Disease

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

2.2. The Contractor shall,coordinate and.facilitate a minimum of one (1) Diabetes
and Heart Disease training event each State Fiscal Year (SFY) of the Contract
Period for the medical, behavioral health, and public health professionals
identified in Section 1.2.

2.3. The Contractor shall conduct the SFY 2024 training, identified in Subsection
2.2, virtually, online.

2.4. The Contractor shall, beginning in SFY 2025, request Departnient approval for:

2.4.1. The training dates;

2.4.2. Conducting each training virtually online or in-person;

2.4.3. The .location of each in-person training, as applicable; and

2.4.4. The training materials for each training no later than 45 days prior to
the training.

2.5. The Contractor shall proyide technical assistance to organizations to
implerhent any of the evidence-based strategies, upon request by the
organization.

2.6. The Contractor shall provide logistical support to the Department to conduct an
awareness campaign to increase enrollment in NDPP in targeted areas of the
state. Logistical support activities include, but are not limited to;

2.6.1. Development of a plan for education activities. ■

2.6.2. Educational materials.

2.6.3. Educational events.

2.7. The Contractor shall coordinate campaign planning and development with the
Department's web team, as needed.

2.8. The Contractor shall assist the Department with prompting the strategies
identified in Subsection 1.2. Assistance activities include, but are not limited to:

2.8.1. Outreach at statewide professional events.

2.8.2. - Communication to stakeholders.

3.. Arthritis Scope of Work

3.1. The Contractor shall coordinate and facilitate an arthritis community
engagement session each SFY of the Contract Period for the purpose of
coordinating planning efforts for the arthritis program. Community engagement
sessions shall include, but are not limited to:

3.1.1. . Admihistrative details which include, but are not limited to:

3.1.1.1. Coordinating the facility, or virtual online meeting.

RFP-2021-DPHS.03-EDUCA-01 .. Conlraclo'r InUlals I
^  4/14/2023
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and
Manage Chronic Disease

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

3.1.1.2. Invitations.

3.1.1.3. . Registration of stakeholders.

3.1.2. Trainings on the following, which include, but are not limited to:

3.1.2.1. Arthritis mitigation.

3.1.2.2. Walking programs.

3.1.2.3. Focus groups.

3.1.2.4. Distribution and collection of patient surveys.

3.1.2.5. Distribution and collection of provider survey.

3.1.2.6. Key stakeholder interviews. v

3.2. The Contractor shall provide a written summary of the key points discussed at
each engagement to the Department within 30 days of the engagement.-

3.3. The Contractor shall have participants complete a post-engagement survey
and provide a summary of.the survey responses to the Department within 30
days of the engagement.

3.4. The Contractor shall provide trainings to health care providers on the Walk With
Ease (WWE) program, which shall include, but is not limited to:

.3.4.1. Administrative details which include, but are not limited to;

3.4.1.1. Coordinating the facility or virtual.meeting.

3.4.1:2. Invitations.

3.4.1.3. Registration stakeholders.

3.4.2. Trainings on the following, which includes, but are not limited to:

3.4.2.1.. Education .on walking as an exercise.

3.4.2.2. Walk with Ease journals.

3.4.3. Focus groups.

3.4.4. Distribution and collection of patient surveys.

3.4.5. Distribution and collection of provider survey.

3.4.6. Identifying and compiling a comprehensive list of stakeholders, in the
following areas:

3.4.6.1. Coos County..

3.4.6.2. Sullivan County.

3.4.6.3. Manchester Area.
,  1>8

3.4.6.4. Nashua Area.

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EOUCA-01 " Contractor Initials ̂
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and
Manage Chronic Diseiase

EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

3.4.6..5. Other locations, as determined by the Department.

3.4.7. Identifying individuals who have lived with conditions.

3.4.8.. Developing an approach for stakeholders to refer participants to Walk
With Ease programs.

4. Cancer and WISEWOMAN Scope of Work

4.1. The Contractor shall conduct awareness campaigns for the cancer program,
with oversight from the Department, for the purposes of:

4.1.1. Educating individuals in target areas of the State on the availability of
services through-the .New Hampshire Healthy Lives Breast and
Cervical Cancer Program (BCCP).-This includes targeted media
campaigns throughout the year with a larger emphasis in the months
of October and January.

4.1.2. Increasing knowledge about the BCCP among LGBTQ populations
through" targeted education and outreach. This includes the
development of materials as needed that are specific to the LGBTQ
population. Materials must be market tested for the targeted
population.

4.2. The Contractor shall provide logistical support activities to'the Department,
upon approval by the Department, to support the cancer program awareness
cariipaigns. Logistical support activities include, but are not limited to:

4.2.1. Development of a plan for education activities.

4.2.2. Refinement of existing educational materials. ,

4.2.3. Educational events.

4.3. The Contractor shall monitor and refine the.activities for the cancer program
awareness campaigns that includes, but is not limited to:

4.3.1.' Tracking campaign progress for delivery, spend and placement
performance, engagement, and attribution modeling.

4.3.2. Assess the response/engagement of intended audience in order to
optimize campaign awareness.

4.3.3. Gathering audience insights via focus groups on developed rnaterial.

4.3.4. Ongoing evaluation.

'  4.3.5. Processing metrics and post-buy awareness analysis to incorporate
a quality improvement, cycle to assess and adjust the campaign
tactics.

RFP-2021-6pHS-03-EOUCA-01 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and

Manage Chronic Disease
EXHIBIT B - Amendment #1

• 4.4. The Contractor shall submit evaluation .data from the Breast and Cervical
Cancer Program to'the Department at the following intervals:

4.4.1. ■ One (1) rnonth post campaign launch,end

4.4.2. Quarterly or at campaign cycles.

4.5. The Contractor shall provide logistical support activities to the Department,
upon approval by the Department, to support the WISEWOMAN program
awareness campaigns; Logistical support activities include, but are not limited
to:

4.5.1, Refinement of existing educational materials.

4.5.'2. Printing of existing educational materials."
4.5.3. Purchasing of materials to support Healthy Behavior Support

Services.

4.6. The Contractor shall ensure existing data utilized for the BCCP is used, in
ongoing market research.

4.7. The Contractor shall provide technical assistance to organizations that may
need additional support. Technical Support activities include, but are not limited
to:

4.7.1. Marketing. (

4.7.2. Graphic design.

4.7.3.^ Social media content.

4.8. The Contractor shall, in collaboration with the Department, plan, organize,
manage, provide CEUs, and evaluate meetings related to:

4.8.1. Comprehensive Cancer Collaboration quarterly meetings. These
meetings may be held virtually and/or in person meetings in
consultation with the Department.

4.8.2. BCCP clinic educational events. These rneelings may be held virtually
and/or in person meetings in consultation with the Department. .

4.9. ' The Contractor shall provide program evaluation assistance for .the BCCP,
which shall include, but is not limited to:

4.9.1. Review of program efforts.

4.9.2. Effectiveness of the programs. v

4.9.3. Participant outcomes and behavioral changes.

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EOUCA-01
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5. Diabetes, Heart Disease, Arthritis; Oral Health and Cancer Scope of Work

5.1. The Contractor shall' utilize an Event Checklist equivalent or comparable to
Attachment #1 - Sample Event Checklist, th^t will-be shared with team
members and the Department. v ,

5.2. The Contractor shall assist the Department to identify, contact, and secure
speakers/trainers with subject matter expertise In the strategies Identified, as

■ appropriate, to present information at the scheduled trainings.

5.3. The Contractor shall, as requested by the Department, coordinate planning
committees of professionals to provide input and guidance on planning events,
which may not be necessary for all events, and shall be at the discretion of the
Department;-

5.4. The Contractor shall provide logistical support to the Department and
speakers/trainers, as needed, which shall include, but is not limited to,
preparing and mailing paperwork to speakers that includes:

5.4.1. The scheduled date, time, and location of the training;

5.4.2. Directions to the training; .

5.4.3. Collecting Conflict of Iriterest statements from speakers/trainers,
which must be signed and returned to the Department;

5;4.4. Other information as specified by the Department.

5.5. The Contractor shall provide logistical support to the Department, that.includesi,
but is not limited to;

5.5.1. Receiving, accepting, .and compiling registration forms for the
scheduled training.

5.5.2. Collectirig registration fees.

5.5.3. Securing meeting space and audio/visual equipment.

5.5.4. Securing accommodations for speakers who require overnight hotel
reservations..

5.5.5. Providirig refreshments in accordance with United States Office of
Management and Budget (0MB) guidelines. _

5.5.6. Providing sufficient staff to manage the training.

5.6. the Contractor shall promote the scheduled training to the target population of
poteritial attendees as identified in Subsection 1.2 Covered Populations, which
may include, but is not limited to:

,  5.6.1. Purchasing mailing lists.

5.6.2. Sending email announcements., .

RFP.2021-OPHS-O3-EDUCA-O1 Contractor InUials ^ ^—
4/14/2023
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5.6.3. Creating, copying, and mailing flyers.

5.6.4. Posting announcements online and through list serves.

5.7. The Contractor shall submit a draft of the marketing plan .to promote training
events to the Department no later than 60 days prior to each event.

5.8. The Contractor shall Incorporate the Department's feedback into the marketing
plan and re-submit the plan to the Department for final approval no later than
45 days prior to each event.

5.9. The Contractor shall assist the Department to develop registration questions,
evaluations and compile registration and evaluation results following .the
training.

5.10; The Contractor shall utilize information gathered through registrations and
evaluations to develop content for future trainings and improve the quality of
trainings offered.

5.11. The Contractor shall present an annual report on the outcome of the trainings
to the Department no later than fvlay 31'st each State Fiscal Year.

5.12. The Contractor shall provide,support services that include, but are not limited
to: .

5.12.1. Securing the training venue.

5.12.2. Identifying and -organizing Vendor Exhibitors to sponsor training
activities by purchasing vendor space at the training.

5.12.3. f\^aking initial contact with Vendor Exhibitors to measure interest in
purchasing a vendor space. '

5.12.4. Securing Vendor Exhibitor attendance at the training, which includes,
but is not limited to, processing Exhibitor registration forms.

5.12.5. Providing logistical support for the Vendor Exhibitors, as needed.

5.12.6. Preparing and mailing follow-up .papenwork to Vendor Exhibitors to
ensure vendor spaces are filled.

5.13. The Contractor, in consultation with the Department, shall review and update
existing marketing plans, which shall include, but is not limited to:

5.13.1. Identifying activities to transition.

5.13.2. Identifying resources which may include, but is not limited to:

5.13.2.1. Demographic/population data.

5.13.2.2. fyiarkeling formats newspapers, print ads, etc.

5.14. Upon Department approval, the Contractor shall negotiate any med^feuys,
which shall include, but is not limited to: |

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01 Contfaclor initials
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5.14.1. Requesting invoices from media vendors.

5.t4.2. Leveraging relationships with media vendors.

5.14.3. Paying for media buys. ■'
5.14.4. Working with the existing media subcontractors and develop new

creative as determined by market research.
6. Exhibits Incorporated

6.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 GFR Parts 160 and 164) under, the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HlPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has beeri executed by the parties.

6.2. The Contractor shall manage all confideritial data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

6.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K. which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

7. Work Plan

7.1. The Contractor shall adhere to the SPY 2024 Work Plan in accordance with
Exhibit B-2, Work Plan, Amendment #1. The Contractor shall submit Work
Plans for SFYs 2025 and 2026 to the Department no later than 30 days prior
to the start of each SPY, which must include, but is not limited to:

7.T.I. Baseline aind target numbers.
7.1.2. A plan to meet each obligation under the resulting Agreement.
7.1.3. An estimated timeline. >

8. Reporting Requirements

8.1. The Contractor must deliver the plan for the free breast and cervical cancer
screening program's awareness campaigns to the Department within 90 days
of the effective date of this Amendment.

8.2. The Contractor, shall submit all cancer program awareness campaign
materials, as required under this agreement, to the Department for approval of
any updates or revisions prior to distribution.

8.3. The Contractor shall submit evaluation data from the BCCP, awareness
campaigns to the Department at the following intervals:
8.3.1. One (1) month post campaign launch, and ^o#

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-bl ContfactOf Initials ■
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8.3.2. Quarterly, or at campaign cycles.

8.4. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports for Department approval within
'  30 days of the end of each quarter that shall include, but are not limited to:

8.4.1. Brief narrative of the work performed during the reporting period.

8.4.2. Summary of work plans for the upcoming quarter including challenges
and/or barriers to corripleting the requirements of this Agreement and
documented achievements.

8.4.3. Progress made toward meeting the performance measures.

8.4.4. Recommendations for project improvement.

8.4.5. , Documented progress on Event Checklists (Attachment 1).

8.4.6. Summary of the oral health activities, which include, but are not
limited to: ^ .

8.4.6.1. Work accomplished during the reporting period.

8.4.6.2. Updated project schedule identifying variances to
baseline.

8.4.6.3. Status of prioritized open issues.

8.4.6.4. Planned work for the next reporting period.

8.5. The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports for-the Arthritis trainings provided
to health care providers that includes, but is not limited to:

8.5.1. The number of target organizations contacted.

8.5.2. Method of contact.

8.5.3. Numberof contact attempts per method.

8.5.4. Number of responses. -

'  8.5.5. Number of individuals registered.

8.5.6. Numt)er of individual attended.

8.6. Tbe Contractor shall provide quarterly reports for the Arthritis community
engagement sessions that includes, but is not limited to:

8.6.1. Method of contact.

8.6.2. Numberof contact attempts per method.

8.6.3. Number of responses.

8.6.4. Number of individuals registered.

8.6.5. Numberof individual attended. ds

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01 Contractor Initials -
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8.7. The Contractor shall submit a report on the Information colle.cted at all
meetings, including but not limited to evaluations, to the Department within 30
days of the meeting. •

8.8. The Contractor shall submit to the Department a summary of the oral health
educational .trainings offered and a list of the participating oral health
professionals by August 31st annually.

8.9. The Contractor shall provide an annual report of information collected from all
trainings to the Department by June 15th annually.

8.10. The Contractor shall maintain Income'and expenditure records and provide to
the Department upon request.

8.11. The Contractor shall submit an Annual Evaluation Report no later than 30 days
prior to the end of each State Fiscal Year that includes, but is not limited to;

8.11.1. A summary of the free breast and cervical cancer screening
program's^awareness campaign to educate women.

8.11.2. Examination "of the level of fulfillment- of project objectives as
specified. =

8.1 T3. Problems encountered in the implementation of the campaign and
how,they were remedied.

8.11.4. Awareness achieved and projects and innovations implemented
based on specific methods, of implementation determined at the
project "kick-off meetings and when the work plan is updated.

8.12-. The Contractor shall submit a Final Evaluation Report within 30 days of the end
of the Contract Period that includes the same level of detail as identified for the
Annual Evaluation Report in Subsection 8.11 above.

9. Performance Measures

9.1. The Department will monitor-Contractor performance to ensure the following
performance indicators are achieved annually, and monitored monthly to
measure the effectiveness of the agreement:

9.1.1. Ten percent (10%) annual increase in the number of collaborative
practice agreements between providers and pharmacists: . ^

9.1.2. piy© percent (5%) annual increase in the number of ̂collaborative
practice agreements with dental providers;

9.1.3.- 'A decrease, or no increase, in the baseline data percentage of adults
diagnosed vyith arthritis.

•  RFP-2021-DPHS-63-EOUCA-OI Contractorlrilllals
4/14/2023
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9.1.4. An increase" in the percentage of adults diagnosed with arthritis in
New Hampshire, and among individuals -with pre-diabetes and
diabetes, reporting walking as one (1) of their top two .(2) forms of

y  exercise.

9.1.5. Fifteen percent (15%) annual increase in the number of individuals
with prediabetes enrolled in the NDPR.

9.1.6. CEU documentation provided to one hundred percent (100%) of
training participants and completed in accordance with credehtialing.
body regulations.

9.1.7. Training evaluations distributed to one hundred percent ,(100%-) of
training participants,

9.1.8. . f^inimum of 10'attendees registered for each Arthritis Comhiunity
Engagement session.

9.1.9. Minimum of 10 attendees registered for each Arthritis training event
for healthcare providers.

9.2. The Contractor agrees to participate in training, as deemed necessary by the
Department, on topics, identified by the Department.

9.3. The Contractor agrees to provide ongoing training to Contractor staff as
deemed necessary in consultation with^he Department. Copies of staff training
attendance sheets shall be provided to the Department within one (1) week of
the training. ^

9.4. The Contractor agrees to monthly site reviews, conducted by the Department
onsite or virtually online, of program operations to assess compliance with
applicable contract objectives, as needed, that shall include, but is not limited
to: -

9.4.1. Any tjarriers to achieving contract objectives.

9.4.2. Corrective action plans to resolve any barriers, as specified in 9.4.1,
as applicable.,

9.4.3. .Progress and/or issues with any Corrective Action Plans, as
applicable.

9.5. , Notwithstanding Paragraph 8. Event of Default/Remedies and Paragraph 9.
Termination, of -the General Provisions (Form P-37) of the contract.^ the
Contractor shall annually develop and submit a Corrective Action Plan to the
Department for any performance measure(s) not achieved, by May 30th of
each year of the Contract Period.

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01 ' Conlraclor Inillals,^
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9.6. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes.

97. The Contractor may be required to provide other key .data and metrics to the
■ Department, including client-level demographic, performance, and service
data.

9.8. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the
Department in a format specified by the DepailfTient.

10.Additional Terms.

10.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

10.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future slate or federal
^ , legislation, or court orders may have an impact on the Services

described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreemerit so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

10.2. Federal Civif Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

10.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the contract
effective date, a detailed description of the communication access
and language assistar^ce services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency: individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have speech challenges.

10.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

10.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Contract shall include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a
Contract with tfie State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and
Human Services, wjlh funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire ,and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human

' ** , Services."

10.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

RFP.2021-pPHS-03-EOUCA-0.l Contractor Initials".
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10.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
,  . original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

10.3.3.1. Brochures.

10.3.3.2. Resource directories.

10.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

10.3.3.4. Posters.

10.3.'3.5. Reports.

10.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Departrhent.

11. Records

11.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are. not limited to:

TI.T.I. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income
received or collected by the Contractor.

11.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect .all
such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the
Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,
records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions
and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,
valuations of In-kind .contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and
other records requested,or required by the Department.

11.1.3: During the term of this Contract, and the period for retention
hereunder, the Department, the United States Department of Health
and Human Services, and any of their designated representatives
shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuanj to
the-Contract for purposes of " audit, examination, excerpts and
transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the maximum
number of units provided for In the Contract and upon paymenit of the
price lirriltation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the
parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the. terms of the
Contract.are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract
arid/or survive the termination of the Contract) shall terniinate,
provided however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report
the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the
Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right,
at/its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.
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OBJECTlVE-1: Provide efficient and effective contract management with DPHS contract leads for Diabetes. Heart Arthritis and Cancer initiatives.

Activities Timeline Evaluation/ Quality Measure

Launch contract work paperwork.
No more than 1 week after contract approval Contract signed ^

Meet with each program lead to review contract activltjes. work plan,
subcontracts, roles and responsibilities and timeline and di^us s ariy
proposed modifications to the work plan.

No more than 30 days after contract approval Agenda , revised work plan, .modifications'

documented and minutes

Complete contract paperwork.
No more than 14 days after notification of
contract

Required paperwork submitted

Work with program leads to operationalize the reporting of
pierformancemeasuresandsetbaselinesand target.

No more than 30days after contract approval
Minutes

Develop budget tracking, project tracking using cloud-based
collaboration tool.

No more.than 30days after notification of
contract

Air table. Trello boards and budget spread- sheets
created

Establish regular management meetings (remote or in-person) with contract
leads to review activities, training, interventions, challenges, progress and
funding.

*

Monthly Meetings scheduled and implemented

Pay invoices and track expenses as needed. Monthly POs filed, variance reports

Invoice DPHS monthly by the 19th of each month. Monthly Invoice paid

Submit quarterly narrative reports'to DPHS that include progress and

challenges against the work plan deliverables, suggested improvements,
summary of events.

Quarterly: June, September, December
•Quarterly reports

Submit annuaisummaryreportofalltrainlng'evenlsacross programs.
June 30, 2024 Submitted annual summary report

Maintain audit ready accounting files inaccordance withac- counting
procedures and practices.

Ongoing Accountlrig files with backup papenvork

Ensufeallprintedmatehairefiecttheapprovedstatenientvyith the
attribution of program funds.

Ongoing Approved documents
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GetwrittenpiiorapprovalofwriHen.videooraudiomateriais priorto
distribution.

Ongoing Approval filed

Identify subcontractors and submit commitment letter
Within 30 days of contract approval Subcontractor approval

Submit annualevatuationreportforcancercampaign. June30.
2024

Submitted evaluation-report based on performed
work

Establish subcontracts with vendors as directed by DPHS Contract Start Dale - June, 2023 Subcontracts approved •?

Purchase stipends as needed to support the implementation of evidence-
based interventions in the community.

Contract Start Date - June, 2023 Invoice paid

Submit work plan for activities for each program from July 1,2023- June 30,
2024

May31,2024 Submitted annual work plan

Revise budgets as requested by programs Ongoing Rewsed budgets approved by Contracting/Billing
Unit
f

OBJECTIVE 2: Work across Diabetes, Heart, Arthritis and Cancer programs to efficiently and effectively plan, promote, convene, and coordinate general event logistics for intended audiences.

Activities Timeline Evaluation/Quality Measure

Work with DPHS to assess the feasibility of offering professional
development events or other learning opportunities during SFY 2021

Within 30 days of contract approval Minutes

Coordinate communication and contracting for speakers or subject matter
experts forscheduledevents{i.e.directions, event details). Ongoing Minutes, signed contracts

RFP-2021-DPH^3-EDUCA-01-A01

JSI Research & Training Inslitule, Jnc. Page 2 of 7

Contractor Initials

4/14/2023
D

(2
ate



Obo/Sign Envelope ID: 232E6942-0(MA-4E6r-91AE-4685A3F41D1E :

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Disease

Exhibit B-2 Work Plan - Amendment #1

Wori^withDPHSstafftocoordinaleplanningcomm'ittee(s)for events as •
needed.

As needed for events Minutes, contact list

Complete application to secure appropriate continuing education credits as
needed (i.e. speakerCV. Conflict of Interest, Objectives, Description, and
Evaluation.)

As needed for events Completed application

Secure meeting space if needed. . :■ As needed for events Contract vwth facility

Coordinate necessary technology. As needed for events . Contract

Coordinate details of electronic registration of participants including pre
assessment if needed.

As heeded for events Registration opened,# of registrants

"Collect and track registration fee if needed. As needed for events Income collected

Open income line on contract to collect fee. ^ As needed for events Task# for income line

Disseminateandcompilepostevenlevaiuation from participants.
As needed for events Surfimary of evaluations

Arrange accommodations for speakers as needed and as budget allows if
needed.

As needed for events
Consultant forms

Coordinate refreshrfients in accordance with US Office of Management
and Budget guide lines if needed.

As needed for events
Contract with vendor

Staff event(s) as needed. As needed for events Attendance

Purchase mailing lists for audiences as needed. As needed for events Invoice

Promote evenl(s) via erriaili list serves and other online methods as needed. As needed for events
Email

Create, copy and coordinate mdiling of'promotional material. As needed for events Flyer
Coordinate closed captioning or other accessible communication as
needed.

As needed for events
Invoice and contract

Coordinate debrief of each event to review evaluation summary and.planning
.success/challenges and inform thedevelopment of future learning
events.

As needed for events
Minutes

Submit final summary report of training events. As needed for events Approved report
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Handleoutreachloandcommunicationwithafleventexhibitors if -r-

feasible.

As needed for events
Emails

Collect exhibitor fees. As needed for events Balance in account

Provide exhibitors vnth a vendor prospectus'of each sponsored event. As needed for events
Even! prospectus

OBJECTIVE 3: Work with Diabetes and Heart contract leads to develop and promote workforce development opportunities. 'V'

Activities Timeline - Evaluation/Quality Measure'

Work with'Diabetes and Heart staff to identify their training needs for up to 2
per year professional development leamlrig activities in subsequent years for

target professionals;

Within 30 days of contract approval.

Training plan

Coordinate the logistics for 1 or 2 virtual learning events including promotion,
planning, hosting, evaluation, accessible sen/ices.

Between April - June 2024 Training Plan

Compiete the'applicatioil for professional .education units as necessary.
As needed for events Application completed

Develop plan to host and offer trainings/networking events for NDPP coaches.
Advisory group.

April 2024 & June 2024 Post event survey ■

Work with Diabetes and Heart staff to assist with training and promotion of
evidence-based strategies to prevent and manage chronic conditions. Contract Start Date - June 2024 Activities identified

Identify strategies toimproveaccess toandpartidpation in ADAand.
ADCES; DMES program in underserved areas.

Ongoing with program staff Minutes

Work with Diabetes arvj Heart staff to increase engagement of pharmacies
to offer medication therapy management.

Ongoing with program staff Minutes

Explore ways to increase screening ofat-risk patients and referral of NDPP
among health systems.

Ongoing with program staff Minutes

Support efforts to promote adoption of evidence -based quality measures
among healthcara providers.

Ongoing with program staff Minutes

Support staff (1) promote use of self-measured Wood pressure monitoring
link and (2) link to clinical support.

Ongoing with program staff Minutes

..ii—OS
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Support staftto implement referral of al-risk patients to com- munity
programs or CDC resources;

Origbing with program staff Minutes

OBJECTIVE 4: Work with Arthritis proqram staff to (1) coordinate and facilitate arthritis community engagement sessions to inform planning efforts and (2) support Walk wilh Ease provider trairjing.

Activities Timeline Evaluation/ Quality Measure

Schedule exploratory meeting with program staiff to understand the purpose
and intent'of community engagement sessions and identify best format to
solicit stakeholder input (i .e..focus group,* interview, consumer / provider
survey)^ . .

April 2024 Minutes

Draft multi-faceled community engagement plan including objectives,
recruitment and outreach of key stakeholders.

April - June 2024 Plan drafted

Draft invitation language. April 2024 Invitation drafted

Identify each community engagement session. Ongoir>g v Minutes

Depending on the approved approach and budget for community
Engagementassislprogramstaffwilh event script orresearch questions
for survey.

April 2024 Script suggestion drafted"

Coordinate logistics of Walk with Ease provider training to provide
stipends as budgeted; By June 2024 Invoices

OBJECTIVE 5: Increase awareness of the NH Healthy Lives. Breast and Cervical Cancer Program (BCCP) reaching (1) individuals in targeted areas in NH and (2) individuals identifying as
LGBTOI.

Activities Timeline i Evaluation/;Quality Measure

Meet with program staff to explore goal, objective, call to action, and
intended audience of BCCPcampaign.

Within 30 days of conlract.approval Minutes with action items

Support Marketing consullant to support the development of a strategic
marketing and communication plan for BCCP campaign in lajgeting areas and
to LGBTQ Individuals including core strategy and tactics and key performance
indicators (KPI).

Within 60-days of G & C contract
approval

Plan approved

f—^
Retain Marketing corisultant as directed by DPHS. By June 2020 Consultant approved!

JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc. Page 5 of 7 bate 4/14/2023



OocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-OD4A^E6F-91AE-468SAi3F41D1E
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Professional Education and promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Disease

Exhibit B-2 Work Plan - Amendment #1

Draft plan to conduct formative research as feasible TBD Report

Identified media as budget allows. TBD . ■ Invoices •'!

Establish social accounts as feasible. TBD Accounts

Work with Marketing consultant to identify monthly on KPIs to report. As needed Report submitted.

Develop new content as needed based on feedback and improvernent .
process.

As needed . ^ Content approved

Gainpnorapprovalonailcampalgnmdterialspriortodistnbution. Ongoing
Approval files

Work with Marketing consultant to submit campaign perfprrriance report one.
month after campaign launch, then quarterly.

Ongoing Report submitted

Submit annual report on effectiveness of BCCP awareness campaign
indudihg: summary of placement and promotions, impressions t>ought and
delivered, post-buy analyses and additional metrics such as #of clicks, *
followers, tikes, and comments for social, and # of placerhents and
potential impressions for IradKional (based on plan). KPIs, reach and
frequency of media and recommendations for improvement.

June 30, 2024

•*

Report submitted . . .

i

Submit report on all information collected of any cancer related nneeting
such asevaluations within 3D-davs of meeting(s).

Within 30-days of meeting Report Submitted

OBJECTIVE 6: Support DHHS staff to Increase enrollment into WISEWOMAN program

Activities Timeline Evaluation/ Quality Measure

Meet with program staff to understand WISWOMAN program goals, and
how JSl staff can support enrollment

ApriI2024 Minutes "

Draft strategy. 30 days from signed contract Strategy report

Retain Marketing consultant as directed by OPHS.
Within 30 days of contract approval Consultant approved •;= r

RFP-2021-OPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

JSI Research & Training InsUtute, Inc. Page 6 of 7

. Contractor Initials.
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DocuSign Envelope ID; 232E6d42-OD4A-4E6F-9lAE-468SA3F41Dl6 * . ^ .
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Disease

Exhibit B-2 Work Pian - Amendment #1

Help design, create print and disseminate marketing materials for programs as
needed by DHHS staff

As needed Materials created

Support consultant todraftstrategicmarketingandcommunicatiori
plan with key messages, strategiesand tactics, and calMo-action.

100 days from signed contract Plan approved

Work with Marketing consultant to draft materials based on prior efforts
and testimonials from past participants

130 days from signed Materials approved

Work with Marketing consultant to identify media to purchase with
vendorsbasedonmarketing plan.

130 days from'signed contract Invoices and in kind documented

Develop and create media assets such as digital and print ad, outreach
flyer, social media content. As needed Assets approved

RFP.202.1-DPHS^33-EDUCA-01 .A01

JSI Research & Training InsUtute. Inc. Page 7 of 7

Contractor initials
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Date
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Exhibit C-19. Amendment #1,

SFY24 Budget (Heart)

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

Now Hampthiro Dopartmtnl of Htsllh and Human Sarvlcti

Comptata on* budget form for **«h budg*t p*Hod.

Contractor Namt: JSf Rbso»/th i Tntlnlna InttlMd. Inc.

Bud0*1 RaauatI for; Pnfoislonal Education and Promollon to Pfavani and Managa Chmnie Utaaaa

Portod Juty l. 7023 ■ Juno 30. 2024

Indlract Cost Rata (If «ppllcat>la)'2l.23% .

Una ftam

^*1

Program Cost-Funded by OHHS

1. Sstarv & Whom $15,024

.

2. Frinoo Baneftts $7,046

3. ConsuSanis SO
I

4. Equlpmani
Indlract coal rata cannot ba appUad lo OQulprneni coats par 2 CFR 200.1
and ADoandbt IV to 2 CFR 200. .

$»

...

$.(a) Suixtlies • Educodonal $0

S.fb) SuopNas • Lab $0

5.(0) SuDollea • Pharmacy so

S.fd) SuDOliaa • Medical $0

S.(a) SupoUasOfnca -  . $0

6. Traval • ? so

• T.

7. Software $0

8. (a) Other - Markedno/ Communlcstions $123,284

8. (b) Other - Education and Trelnino so

8. (cl'Othor • Other (soedfv below)

•

Other folaosa soacAV) •  so

Otbar/oleasa aoaedfl so

Other lohesa soecdV) so

Other/o/aase soec^l so

9. Subredoient Cororacts so

Total Direct Costa $144,354

.  TotsUndiraci Costs $30,646

TOTAL $179,000

Pt0« 1 of 7

Contractor Initials

Date VM/JOij
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Exhibit C-20, Amendment #1
SFY24 Budget (Diabetes)

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUGA-01-A01

Now Hampohiro Dopartmont of HoalUt and Human Sarvlcai
*  ' Compfaft eno Ourfpaifonn fo'aaefi Oudpatporfod.

Contractor Nama: JSIRtstanh i Tnlnino InstHult. Inc.

Budnot Raouoit for: Pmft»ssk>nDl Education'and Promotion to Pivvvnt and Uenego C/ironic Oiaaaaa

Budfloi Porlod Jufy 1. 2023 - Juna 30. 2024

Indlroci Coat Rata (If applkabla) 21.23%

Una Itam Program Cost' Fundad by DHKS
1

1. Satarv&WDoat SIS.024

.

2. Frinoa QanaSu 57,046
-

3. Consultarus .  . 50

4. Equipment

Irtdkoct coat rote canrtot i>o appliad lo equipment ooals per 2 CFR 200.1
and Anoandtx IV to 2 CFR 200.

'<■ 50

S.tal SuDoKet • Educational SO

S.fbl SupoGaa • Leb •  so
S.tcl SuDOlles • Phnrmacv 50

S.tdl SuDolies • Medical ■  SO
S.tal SuDOUas Ottlca V $0

6. Travel *- 50

"• ' V -

7: Seftwora SO

S. lal Other • MarVaUno/Communlcalion* $122,204

0. tb) Other - Education ar>d Trainlno rf 50

0. tc) Other • Other (SDOCifv belowl
Othsr tofaosa socclfvl $0

Other toiaasa aoaciiV) SO
Other toiaaaa soacifv) • • 50

Oltwloh6S«so«cHv) < ' $0

9. Subredolant Coniracte 50
..

V. . '. Total Direct Costs 5144,354

Total Indiroci Costa 530,646
.  .

TOTAL 5175,000

P«0* 2 of 7

Contractor Initials

Daie
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Exhibit C-21, Amendment #1 RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

SFY24 Budget (WISEWOMAN)
■ Ntw Htmpahiro Dapadmant of Hoalih and Human Servlcas

CoMpfar* on* budffaf foftn 7or ««cA trvrfpal pvfod.
ContxKiotNnmf.'JSIRoseachSTnlnlnglntlllute.lnc. t

Budgal Rtquast for Protosslonai Eiivcation and PromoUon to Provont and Manago Chronic DIsaaso (WISEWOMAN)

.{Bud^ PaHod Juty >. 20i3 Ovough Juno 30. 2074
Indiract Coat Rataflfappllcabla) 21.23%

Lino Itom Program Cost • Funded by OHHS Program Cost • Conlractor Share/ Match

1. Salary &Waaas $4978 SO

... ■

2. FrlnoA Berwfils -  $2 335 SO

3. Contultanis $0 so

.

4. Equlpmont

mdlraol c«*l rolo cannot Oa appllad to aqulpmonl coals per 2

CFR 200.^ and Aooondlx Mo 2 CFR 200.

SO .. *0

■ i

i.(a) SuDoiies • Educational SO so

Suoodoi'Lab $0 '  • so

5.(c) SuDollaa • Pharmacv $0 so

S.fdt Suooila* - Madlcel $0 so

S.fe^ 'SuDollAS Offica so so

,

0. Travol so so

.

7. Sonwara so so

8. (a) Olhar - MatVoUno/ Communications $17,434 $9,900

8. fb) Other • Education end Tralntno -- SO so

8. (c) Other • Other (soeclfv bolovr)
Oihar lolaaso soociM . $0 so

Other/o/eese soedM •  SO so

Other lolaaaa aoadM $0 so

Other lolaaso soocitv) < ■ so so

9. Subrociptenl Contracta so so
•

Total Direct Coals S24.747 S0.900

.

total Indirect Costa S5.254 so

TOTAL '  $30,000 S9.90O

!/■

Pate 3 o> 7

Cootraclor Inltlah
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Exhibit C-22. Amendment #1 .RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

SFY24 Budget (Breast and Cervical Cancer)
Now HompsMro Dopartmont of Hoollh and Human Sacvleaa

Comp(«(*ono0ud9o(/on«i for budget pvlod.

Contractor Namo: JSl Rttovth i TnMng kistHwlo. Inc.

Budoot Roouoat lor Proftttlontl Eductlion and Pmtmthn to Rnvont tnd Ktanagt Cttronlc OlMtta

Bu6atiPorib6Jvfy1.2023-Juno30.20H

(ndlroct Coat Rat* (If aoplfeablo) 21.23%

Uno llom'
^•y

■.s. Prograrn Cost • Funde'd By DHHS

1. Salarv&WMM $10,107

9  Frinqa Rnnaflts $4,776

3. Conautianu. $0

4. Equipment
indirect coot nsle cannot b« opplod lo equipment coats per2 CER 200.1
and Appendix IV lo 2 CFR 200.

SO

S.fa) Supoliea • Educational $0
S.fbi'SupoUea • Lab $0

S.fct Supples - Pharmecv so
3.(d) Supotiea - Medical so

S.fftl Supplies ontce so

8. Tfowl . -"N so
•

7. Softwera so

0. (a) Other - Martcetlna/ CommunicsUons S26.128
8. fbi Other • Education end Treinina 50

8. fci Other • Other (loecifv below)
Othtr fo/este saodM SO
Ofhar'^pfoese spac^ $0
0(/>errol«flse soecrA'l •  • so

1

1

1

so

0. SubredDlenl Coolracia :  SO

.  Total Direct Coats $43,003
•  -T.

Total indirect Costa S9.149

TOTAL $52,241

Pigt 4 of 7

Contractor Initials

Date .
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Exhibit C-23. Amendment #1 RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01
SFY24 Budget (Comprehensive Care)

Now Hampohlro Doportmont of Hoollh and Kumtn Strvfcos
Compftfo OAo Oi/tfpot fomi for oocft Podpoi po/fod. ' .

Contractor Namt: JSf Rotoarcft i TrolnInQ Instituiv. Pre.

Budsot Raout It for Piohstionol EduuOon end Promotion to Provont end Manege CfuoiMc DIseate
Sudoot Portod Jut/ 1. 2023 ■ June 30. 2024

Indlroct Coit Rato (If apptlcatjfo) 21^3% * '

Ltnoltom Program Cost • Funded by OHHS

Sl.04fl

..

.  (492

SO

4. Etpilpmonl

Indirect coU rate cannot bo eppOod lo oqulpmoni oools par 2 CPR 200.1

so

so

so

S.fd) SwdoNss . Modlcd so

so

so

so
' ■

B. (e\ Other • Marfcetino/ Cammunlcationo •  .• S6.709

8, (b) Other • Education end Troinlna SO

so

so

so

10

•

so

Total OiroclCoaU 18.240

,'

Total Indlroct Coots 51.751

TOTAL S10.000

P»9«'S of 7

Contractor Initials

Date
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Exhibit C-24, Amendment #1

SFY24 Budget (Arthritis)
RFP-2021-DPHS-03^EDUCA-01-A01

New Hainpthfre Oiparmtant of Haalth and Human Sarvlfrn
CempMra eaa dvcTpat tonii ref aacA eudperpaHotf.

Centreetor Name: JS/ReaMmr>a T/Blf)hgl7«lifufa'tfte.
'  BudDat Raaueti for Pro/asabne/ education and Promotion to Pnvonl and Manaoo Ctuonk Olsoato

Budget Period JuV 1. 2023 ■ June 30. 202i ^

Indirect Coct Rate (if appllcabla) 21 J3%

l.lne Ham' Program Coal • Funded by OHMS

1. Selan&Waaet J1.572

2. Frtnae BenaSls S737

3. Censuftania SO

4. EqulpmenI
Indlieci coal rate cannot be appBed to equipment ooets per 2 CFR 200.1
and ADOcndlx'lV to 2 CFR 200.

SO

SJa) SuDolief • Educational *• so

.  - so

tJc) SuDoBet • Ptvarmacv so

so

S.(e) SuoolieeOnce so

V.' •••

6. Travel so

7. Software so

8. (a) Other • Msricoliral Ccmmunicsikxn SIO.084

8. fbl Other • Educadon end Trainino so

1

1

l
«b

8

«>

Other teteeae $oadfv) so

Other folaasa ioodfv) so

Otnarioioasa tpadfv) so

Othar toiaasa toadM .so

9. Subrectolent Car\(racts so

■J-

Total Direct Coats S12.373
.

1.

Total Indirect Costa S2.627
•  - .

TOTAL S19.000

Pa^t 6 el 7

Contractor Initials

Date
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Exhibit C-25. Amendment #1

SFY24 Budget (Oral Health)
RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

Now Hampahiro Oapartmint of Ha«|(h and Human S«Mc««

Cotnphf on* OudpW (om for McA budgot fibrtod.

Contractor Nama: JS! Rdtttrch t TrtlnkiQ Insliuto, Inc.

Budfltl Raouaat for; Ptofosstonat £<fi;co(fon and PromoUort to Pravont and Uanaga Chmnk Oitaata

Budgal Por(od Jufy >, 2023 ■ Juna 30. 2024

Indirect Coat Rata (If appllcabia) 4.14%

Lina Itam Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Solanr&WMea $)0.2M
Sv .. • I.;-

2. fitnoa Berwnii S9.0$2

3. Consulianis $0

4. Eqidpmani

Indlract coal rate cannot be applied to equlprncnl ooets per 2 CFR 200.1
and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

SO

p

S.(Bl SuppUea • Educattonal SO

S.lb) SuDoVee - Lab so

S.fc) SuDOlies • Pharmacv SO

S.(d) Supplies • Medical so

S.lel SuppUea Office so

fl Tmvd so

7. Software so
'

8. fa) Other • Madtatlnof CommunicaUona so

0. fb) Other • Education and Ttsinirxr so

0. (c) Other - Other (tpecIN t>elow)
Oihor fofeeae aoeclM ' so

Other fpteesa soec^l .  - • so

Othar foleaae aoadtv) so

Other (olaasa loactfvi so

9. Subredpient Contracta SI17,000
•*

Tola! Olract Costs St45.3Sl
.

Tots! Indirect Costs S6.0IB

TOTAL 8151,389

Pa0* 7 of 7

Contractor Initials

Date .
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Exhibit C-26, Amendment #1
SFY25 Budget (Heart)

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

Now Hompofilro Oopartmant ol Haalth and Human Sarvlcas
Compfafa ont Otrdpaf fom for aacfi Oudotf paffed.

Coht/aetor Nama: ./S/Aatatrcf) i Tnlnlng Instltut*, Inc.

Budaat Raauait for; Pr9f«$tion»l Educator) and Promodon lo Pnyani and Manapa Cdmnfc Dlsaasa
Budoat Parlod Juty 1. i024 ■ Jvna 30. 2025

Indlract Coat Rata (If apoMcaWa) 2t.23K
'

Una tlam Pioeram Coat - Funded by OHHS-

$15,024

V-. ' $7,046
• •

3. ConsutienU $0

4. Equlpmont

tndirocl coal ralo cannot ba apptiod to oquipmant coata par 2 CFR 200.1
and ApoerMlx (v to 2 CFR 200.

$0

S.ra) SuDoBea • Educational $0

$0

4 ret Runnnaa • Pharmocv •  $0

S.fd) SuDoUaa • Modical $0

$0

$0

.

7. Soflwara $0

-

8. (at Olber - Madietina/ CommunicatioAa
$122,284

8. (bt Other - Edircatlon end Tratnlno $0

8. (c) Other - Other (spedfv belowl
$0

Oihar lolaasa soadM $0

^  $0

Oihar tolaasa soodtv) $0

$0
'

Total Direct Coata $144,354

Total indiraci Coata $30,040

TOTAL $175,000

PiB«1 of?

Contractor Initials

4/1V702J

Date
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Exhibit C-27, Amendment #1

SFY25 Budget (Diabetes)

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

•v. New Hampshire Oepartmani of Haslih and Human Services
Cpmphi* »fi* tuOgtt form tor budg*t

Contractor Name; </S/RetearcTi a Tralnfrig fnsf&ule, Inc.

Budflst Request for: Profostioritl Eiiucalion end Pro/no don lo Pnvani end Menage C/ironte Ofeeese
V  Budoat Period Jufv 1,2024- Juna 30. 2025

Indirect Cost Rate (if sspllcaMe) 21.23%

Lirteliem'

1  • . i'*

Program Cost • Fuhdad'by OKHS

1. Sajarv & Waoss
515.024

7  Fflnae Boneftts
$7,046

3. Consullanis •'
50

4. Equipment
IndUecl coal rola cannbl'be ap^iod 10 equlpmonl ccels per 2 CPA ZOO.t
and Appendix IV to 7 CFR.200; >

. W

50

... ;• 50

50

$0

50

N. $0

7. Software
50

$122,264

50

50
50

: » 50

Othar Co/ease aoadtv)
50

9. SubreciolenI Conlracis
SO

Total Dlract Costa 5144.3W

-

Total Indlract Costs 530.046

TOTAl. .  - 5175,000

Page 2 of 7

Contractor Initials ■

4/umti
Date
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Exhibit C-28, Amendment #1
SFY25 Budget (WISEWOMAN)

RFP-2021^DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

' Htw H*mpthlr« D«|Mrtm»ni of H«atth and Human S*rvte*t,

Comp'tttonaaudcnf/omi/o/aKhavdtHipaHod.

Contractor Nama; ./S'/Tasaacft < Trabifrtp/ntUrufo. Inc

Gudoat Raquait for; Ptoftsthnal Edvcoifon and Pmmollon lo Pnvoni tnd Uantgo Chronic DItaata (WtSEWOUA^f,

Budgat Parfod July 1. 2024 Ih/ough Juna 30, 2025

tndtractCoalRata(lfepplleabla) 21.23%
1

Una Item f^rogram Cost ' Funded by DHHS Program Coat 'Contractor Share/ Match

1. Stderv&WMOS S4.978 $0

2.- Frlnoa Baneflia S2.335 SO
V

3. ConauStanU $0 $0

j

4. E^ulpmaftt
Irtdlr^ cost rale canrtd ba lo OQuipment costs per 2 CFR
200.1 and AooandU IV to 2 CFR 200.

SO

S.lal RuooKaa • FdueaikMiftI .  . SO $0

so so

5.(0) SuppUn • Phsmacv so so

5(d) Supplies • Medical so $0

5.(a) Suppliea Oflke so $0

,

6. Travel so '  • SO
-

7. Sotwere $0 SO
•.'

8. (a) Other • Market^ CommunicaUon* .  517.434 S9.900

8. (b) Other • Education and Trainir>Q SO SO

8, (c) Other - Other (spedfv t>alewr)

. Oihar (olaata eoaeifvl V $0 $0

Oi/iar folaasa soadtvl ' so so

Othar lolaoaa soaclfvi so so

Othar lolaasa ipacifr)! so $0
.

9. Subredplsnt Contraas . so ^  SO
'

y

Total Direct Costs 524,747 S9.900
•k

ToUl Indirect Co>U 55,253 SO

.

TOTAL /  : ■ 530.000 $9,900

Contractor Initially

Date
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Exhibit C-29. Amendment #1 RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

SFY25 (Breast and Cervical Cancer)
. Now Hampthir* Oapartmtnt of Haatth and Human S*ivlc«s

Compfafa ona budgiit form (or atcO budgtl pariod.

-Contractor Nama: JSIdoapaKb 6 Trblnlng Inttitulb. Inc.

Budsat Raquast for: Profossionol Edvcotion and P/omolion to Provonl and Manage Chronic Olsaat

BudgaXParlod July 1. 2024-Juna 30. 2025

-  Iridirect Coat Rata (If appUcablo) 21.23%

Lino item .' Program Cost • Funded by DHHS

1. SaJarv&Waooa $t0.t87
.

2. Frlnoa Baneflis S4.778

3. ConsuliAnta '  $0

4. Equipment
Indlreci coal tale cannot b« appliad to oqulpnxini coats par 2 CFR 200.1

and Aooendix (V to 2 CFR 200.

5.(a) SuDoties • Educationol SO

S.(b) SuDDllos-Lob so

5.(cl SupDilos • Pharmacv .  so

S.(d) SuodIIm - Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Oflica $0

6, Travel . $0
'

7. Softworo so

8. (8l Other - Morketlno/Communlcalions $28,128

8. (t>) Other • Education and Tralnlrxi $0

8. (c1 Other • Other (soodfv betow)

Olhar lolaasa soaclM ' SO

dhor (oloosa soaa'M . $0

Olhar lolaasa soadM . ' SO

■  Other/p/oasaspac'/V} SO
..

9. SubredDleni Contracts SO

Total Direct Coata S43,093

•

Tolailndlrect Coata S9.148

I

TOTAL J$2,241

Pag* 4 of 7

Contractor Initials

Date
4/14/2025
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Exhibit C-30 Amendment #1 RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

SFY25 Budget (Comprehensive Care).
Niw H»mp»hira D«partm«nt ofHaalth and Human Sarvleat

Complaf* e/x Pudpai tonn tor MCfl porM.

•  Contractor Nama: </^'As(*arc2i £ Vn/n/nfffnsf/ruta, Me.
Budaat Raauatt for: Profotsiontl Educotlon and Promotion (o Pmvoni and Managa Ctvonk DIsaata

Budaat Period July 1. 2024 • Juna 30. 2025

Incllract Cost Rata llf appilcabia) 21.23%

Linaliem
1

' t program Cost • Funded t>y DHHS

1. Satarv&Waooa 11.048

3  Frinoa ftanafllJ
$492

1  SO

4. Equipmeni
(ndi/oct cMl rate cannot be applied to oqulpmani ooala per 2 CFR 200.t
and Appendix IV lo 2 CFR 200.

$0

$0

SO

$0

$0

SO

SO

-  .

7. Software
.$0

S6.709

8: (b) Other • Education end Ttalnlnq
SO

%
0

1
•

•

0

1

•  SO

•  $0
$0

0

1

I

i

SO
*•

9. Subrocloiont Contmct* - •
$0

Totat Direct Coats S8.249

*

•

Total Indirect Costs •  $1,751

*

TOTAt. S10.000

Contractor Initials

PaO« 5 o> 7 Date
*/]4/202)
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Exhibit C-31, Amendment #1

SFY25 Budget (Arthritis)

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

Now Hsmpohiro Doportmonl of Hoillh and Human Sorvlcaa
Cempl*t» ono budgtt torih for aae/t Oi/tfptf porfoO.

*  ContraclorNama: JS'/tOMarc/ia IntfAvfO./he.

dudflot Raouaat for: PnitsiiontI Education and Pmnolion to Pravanl and Uanaga Cfuonic Otsaasa
B\tda9XPariodJutf i. 2024 -Juna30.202S ■

Indlroct Coat Rala (If BDOllcabM 31.23%

'  Una ttom IVogram Cost-Funded by OKHS

t. Salerv&WMM $1,572

2. Frlnoo Bortoflta $737

3. Conauttanii $0

4. Equlpmari
Indirect coot rate cannot bo appliod to oqulpmonl cools per 2 CPR 200.1
and AooandlK IV (o 2 CFR 200.

$0

S.la) SuDoUes • Education^ $0

5.(b> SuDoliea • Lob $0

5.(c> SuooBes • Phermacv $0

5.(dl SuDDties • Medica] $0

S.fa) SudoUm Offlce . $0

6. TrBv«i $0

7. Softvrere $0

8. (a) Other • Markeilno/ Communlcstiona -  • $10.0M

B. (hi Other - Rducetlon ertd Trebiho $0

fl. <c1 Other - Other ftoedfv belowl

Other toloasw soaclM $0

Other (otesse JoeciTv') $0

-Other (oJoose soec/hr) $0

Other to/ease soecJV) $0

9. Stibrectoient ConiTKls ' .'•} $0
•

Total Direct Costa $12,373

,

Total tr^lreet Costa $2,627

TOTAL $19,000

Contractor Initials

Pcgt 6 of 7 Date
4/14/Z02)
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Exhibit C-32. Amendment #1 RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01
■ SFY25 Budget (Oral Health)

New Hampebtre Department of Health and Human Servlcet
Cofflp'ete one OuOpet form for each budffot porM.

Contractor Name: JSIRoseorch S Training Inslilule, Inc.

Budael Reaueit for: Professional EtfiKalion end Promotion to Proveni end Manege Cbronfc DIs
V  Budoet Period •/uly f, 2024 • Juno 30, 2025

-.Indirect Coat Rate {If aDDlicablel'S.01%

Line item".' - Program Cost • Funded by DHHS

1. Sn!nrv'& Waaes ' -  . S27.722
-

<  S13.001

SO

4. Equipment
Indiroct cost rate cannot iw applied to equipment costs per 2 CPR 2O0.1 .so

S.I8I SuoDlles • Educational so

so

5.(c) SuDDlles - Pharmacv so

J  . "■ so
so

so

7. Software '' so

8. (el Other - Morlcetirto/ Communtcalions so

B. tb) Other - Education and TrainlnQ so

fi . let Other - Other fsoedfv belowl-
Other fp/oase soecrM so

so
so

Other (oloese soecrM -  . so

$132,000

Total Direct Costs $172,723

Total Indirect Costs $8,646
,

TOTAU $1B1,36B

Pago 7 of 7

Contractor Initials

• ^ ■ 4/14/202J
Date ^
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Exhibit C-33. Amendment #1.

SFY26 Budget (Heart)

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

. Ntw K«sip«hlrt 0«|Mrtm«ni of Hulth «td Hufflop ShvIom
bu^l lotm lor tmh 6>rfp»»p»r<p0.

Conl/sctor Km*: JSlRtttnh I f/iMng'tuttrur*. *ic.
Budott RoGUMt for AoToMionaf £Ac«tion and Aomofion to Av««<w ontfUanogt C/vonfe ObMM

Budfltt Ptflod Jfr f. 7025 • AfW X). 3020

IndlfKl Ce»l RMrflfaiwIIUbN) 2i.23%

Un« ll«fn

1

Program Coil • FunMd'oy OHHS

SIS.024

2. Frtnoo BoooBa
57.040

.50

4. bquipnwni ;

Mkaei CMt rata cvnof b* appliod to oqUpmont cesU p«r 2 CFR 300.1 and Appandb N
iq2CFR2(».

SO

■  $0

$0

SO
SO

so

•

so

so

S122 304

SO

-50

SO

so

50

SO

Total Dlrtcl Cottt SI44.354

Total trxUroct CoiU -• 530,040

TOTAL S17S.OOO

Contractor Initials.

p«o«f »>T Oato.
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Exhibit 0-34, Amen'dment,#1

SFY26 Budgel.{Dlabetes)

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

N*w Hampthlr* Dtpartntnl of Htalth and Human Sarvfcat
■  Coinpltt»on»budg*t(o/ml0f«»chl>v<la9tp9fl9d.

Contractor Nama: J$l Rvsianh i Training IntHtut*. tnc.

Budgat Raquait for: Praltssional eoucalion ana-Pnumtion lo Provant andManaga Ovon/c tVaaaaa
Budgat Partod July '■ 2025 - Juna 30. 20i6

tndlractCeal Rala {If appllcabia) 21.23%

1
■y< Una Horn Progrjim Cost - Fundad.by DHHS

1. Salarv&Waoas
St5.024

S7.046

3. Consunenis $0

4. Equipment
indlroet coat rala cannot ba oppltad to aquipmonrcoata por 2 CPR 200.1
and Appondbc (V to 2 CPR 200.

• T W

.. SO
. so

so

1

c

1

so
so

•'

so
,li

1  so

.  S122.2&4
SO

so
so
so
so

9. SutweciDleni Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs S144.354

..

Total Indirect Costs $30,646

TOTAL S175.000

Contractor. Initials

Paga 2 of 7 '  Date
*/U/20ii
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Exhibit C-35, Amendment #1 RFP.2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

SFY26 Budget (WISEWOMAN)
N«w Himpihlrt Oepsrlmtnl of Hiclth and Human SarvlcM

CotnplHt on* budpa' fotm for mcA budgol period.

Contractar Nimi: JSIRtSMCfi i Training InsVluto. Inc.

Budflat Raquati for Profaislondl Education and Promoliot^ to Provtnl »rtd Manapa Clvordc Oiaaaao (WISEWOMAN)

BudQoiPoiiod July 1. 2025thfough Juno30. 2026 . -j:'

Indlraei Coat Rato (If applleabit) 21.23S

Una litm i' Program Cost •Funded by DHKS -  Program Cost • Contraclor Share/ Match

1. Salarv&Waoet S4.e76 SO
'

2. Frinoa Banaflia S2.335 SO

>•

3  Consiaianis . SO so
-

—

4. Equlpmanl
Indlract oosi fata cannot be eppflad to aqiripmanl eotla par 2 CPR
200.1 endApoandixlvio2CFR200. .

SO "• •• so

5.(fl) Supctlat • EduCBlJonai so so

5.(b) SuDodas • Lab. SO so

5.(e1 SuooUai • Pharmacy so SO

S.fd) Suooilas • Madicel .  so so

S.fa) SuDofia* Otrica so so

6. Travel so so

7. Software so so

B. (8) Other • MarliolInQ/ Commurdcadons S17.434 $9,900

fl. (b)'Other. Education and Tralnlno SO JO

8. (c) Other • Other (|p«ci^ below) ;

Other (olooae sooclM SO so

Other foieaea toeclM •  $0 so

Other (bIooso soeclM so $0

Other (oleoae toeciM so SO

0. SubrocJplent Conlraett so so
: , l.<

Total Olract Cotla S24.747 S9.900

Total Indirect Cosle S5.2S3 SO
r..-

TOTAL S30,000 $9,900

Contractor Initials

Date A/u/ibu
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Exhibit C-36, Amendment#!. RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01
SFY26 Budget (Breast and Cervical Cancer)

Now Kamp»hlr« D«partmtm of Hailth and Human Sorvlcai
CompJaf• o»« Ou^*( forni for •M'l Ov^iir*'

Contnelor Kama: JSI Rasaarcfi & TrtbilnQ Mt/Aufa, Inc.
Budoat Raouail tor: Piofttslonal Educnion end Pmmodon lo Pmvnl and Manama Chmnic Ofaaaaa

Budaat Parlod July 1. 2025 • Jun* 20. 202$

IndlractCoct Rata (If appllcabia) 21.23%

Una Itam Program Cotl - Fundad by DHHS

1. SaUfv&Waoat
S10.I87

S4.778

»o

4, Equlpmoni
inoirad ceat ma cannot ba appOod lo aqulpmani ooala par 2 CFR 200.1
end ADMOdix IV10 2 CFR 200.

to

to

:• to

to

to

to

•

to

7. Softwara
to

S28.12B

■ • ; to

to
to

to

O'Oar fofaasa soodff)
$0

to
.*

Total Olracl Coats t43.093

Total Indlraci Cosla f  --i-. • $8,146

TOTAL $52,241

Pi9« 4 of 7

Contractor Initials

4/14/702)
Date
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Exhibit C-37. Amendment #1- RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

SFY26 Budget (Comprehensive Care)-
,  Now Hornpghiro DoparVntnl of Hialth and Human Sorvfcot

CompNtaonoOvOpoi form for oocfiOuOoofporioO. .

Contractor Namo: JS/PoJoa'V/) A 7>a/nfr>p MsfAufo. fr>o.

Budool Roauoil lor: Prolouiiona/ EdMtVton and Pnmotton lo Pnvm and Manapa Cfironfc CVioata
Budaat Poriod Mf I 2025 • Jwt* 30. 2026

tndlroetCoatRatadfaoplkablo) 21.23% * - .

Uno Horn Program Cost • Funded by OHHS

t. SstarvSWaoot $1,048

$4S2

$0

4. Cqulpmeni '
IndlrocI coot rato cannot bo appllod to oqulpmont eootg per 2 CPR 200.1
and AMwndtx IV to 2 CFR 200.

i-

$0

5.(a) SuDOties - EducatJanal $0

.  10

5.(c) SuDolloa - Phormacv w

S (a) !)uDoU»s • Madical 10

s.ta) SuootiM Office 10

'k*

8. Tfovd $0
•

7. Software 10

B. (a) Ottter-Martcotina/CominuntCBllons 16.709

B. lb) Other • Education end Tminlno ■  - SO

B. (c) Other - Other (soeciN below)

Other lolaaaa aoacAV) JO

Other loleasa aoac^) 10

Ofhtr ipleaM aoec^ir) - •  10

Other loteasa SMC/fv) $0

9. Sutxedolont Coniracte $0

Total Direct Coata $8^249

Total Indirect Coata 11.751

•

TOTAL 110,000

Contractor Initials.

P«S« 5 of 7 Date
4/14/207)
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1
I  Exhibit C-38,-Amendment #1
!  SFY26 Budget (Arthritis)

RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

Ntw Hampthiro Dapartinant of Haalth and Human Sarvfcaa

Comp(«(* on« bt/tfp«t forni foraocA Ou<fjr«f pariod

Contractor Nam«: JSlR9a»»nhi Tninlnn lnttllut». Inc.

•  Budgat Raquaat for: PmltsahntI Education and Promotion to Prayani and Managa Chronic DIsaasa

Budgat Pariod Jufy l 2025 ■ Juna 30. 2026

Indirael Coat Rata (If applkabia) 21.23%

Una Ram Program Cost -.Pundad by OHHS

1. SsiarvSWaoas 81.572

2. Prinoa Banafiis $737

3. Consuflanit $0

\ *  2\

4. Equlpmant

Indbad eoat rato cannot ba appiiod to aquipmanl'cotta per 2 CFR 200.1
and Aooendtx IV to 2 CPR 200.

so

S.(at SuDOlies • Educolionai $0

S.fbV Supotias • Lab SO

S.fcl Supolloa • Pharmacv $0

5.(d] SuDoila* - Modlcal ■■ $0

S.(a) SuooUat ORlco $0

6. Travd $0

7. Software . so

8. (n) OlRar • Madcallno/ Comnxunlcatlons •  sto.ow

8. fb) OtRer - Education and Trahlno $0

8. fcl Other - Other (soodfv belowl

Orftarfofaasa soadM so

OfharfofaaM aoac'M • so

Other (ofaesa aoadtv) >  so

Other fofOAM .tDOoDVI 1.- • $0

9. SubredoiarM Ccntracis" so

Total Direct Costa •  1 $12,373
■ -

Total Indirect Costs S2.627

TOTAL ■>< sts.ooo

Pa9«0 of?

Contractor Initials

Date .
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Exhibit C-39, Amendment #1

SFY26 Budget (Oral Health)
RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUCA-01-A01

Ntw-HafflpsMrt D«partm*nl of HaalUi and Human Sarvlcaa
C«mpi9i»oi>»bvaglhfntfof—ehbudgMp*rtQa. ' ^

Contractor Nama: 'JSlft*t0tKh A Tnkihg h'utiul*. he.

Budaat Raouaat (or Prot»tsion$l Education and P/omodon to Pravtni and Manama COnwdc tXaaasa

Budaat Parted duly >. 2025 • June 30. 2026

IndlracI Coat Rata 0'appCoaMa) S.Ot%

Una Ram - Proflram Coat • Fundad by OHMS

t. Salarv&Waoas ,  i . 127,722

A

7  Ranafiti 113.001

.

3. Conauitanu 10

4. Equipmeru

IndVact coat rala cannot ba applied to aqulpmant coata par 2 CFR 200. t
and Aooendtx IV to 2 CFR 200.

. w

.

S.tal Suoollaa • Educational 10

S.fb) SuDOll«-Lob 10

S.fel SuDOliaa • PRarmocv .10

S.tdl SuDDliea • Madical 10

5.(0) SuDOtiai Odica 10

6. Travel so
•

7. Softwar* so

8. (a) Other • MarKotlrta/ Communlcstiona 10

8. (b) Other • Education and TraMno -  10

8. (c) Other • Other (spactfr bekw)

Orhar (oieose aoacriVl- $0

OlhartolaoiaapaclM * $0

Other (otoeie toedfvi so

Other (blaoM aoacdv) $0

9. Subredoieni Coritracis '  SI32,000

Total Direct <;ost« 1172,723

Total tndlract Coata 58,046

TOTAL 1181.389

V-

p«et 7 et 7

Contractor Initials.

Date '
4/14/2023

-A
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OocuSign Envelop© ID: 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F.91AE-4685A3F41D16

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. (d.b.a. Community Health Institute)
Key Personnel

'HEAI^T SFY 2024'.

Name Job Title Annual

Salary

% from

contract

Amount from

contract

Faith Bouchard Project Director $68,250.04 8.9% $6,037.50

Taylor Salvato Proiect Manager $68,000 8.7% . $5,884.62

Robert Weiss Events Coordinator $67,200 . 4.6% . . $3,101.54

DIABETES-SFY-202;4' ■■ ■■

Faith Bouchard, Proiect Director $68,250.04 8.9 % $6,037.50

Taylor Salvato Proiect Manager $68,000 8.7% $5,884.62

Robert Weiss Events Coordinator $67,200 4.6% $3,101.54

WISEWOMAN S.FV 21)24 . ■' -•■ ■'V \ ^ :

Faith Bouchard Proiect Director $68,250.04 3.5 % $2,362.50

Taylor Salvato Proiect Manager $68,000 3.8% $2,615.38

BjCCP SFY 202
. ♦

♦  ■" . . . . * .
•4 V*»

Faith Bouchard Proiect Director $68,250.04 5.8 %• $3,937.50

Taylor Salvato Project Manager $68,000. ,5.8 % $3,923.08

Robert Weiss . Events Coordinator $67,200 3.5 % $2,326.15
COMP GANGER SFY 2024. ; /,

Faith Bouchard Project Director $68,250.04 .75 % • $525

Taylor Salvato Proiect Manager $68,000 .75 % $523.08

ART^TIS SPY 2024.
•"■v; !• •' '

.Faith Bouchard Project Director $68,250.04 I % $787.50

Taylor Salvato Proiect Manager $68,000 1 % ,$784.62

ORAL HEALTH SFY'2024

Karyn Madore Project Director $155,200 7.52% $11,666

Debbie Love Project Manager $79,380 9.62% . $7,633



OocuSifln Envelope 10: 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F41D1E

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. (d.b.a. Community Health Institute)
Kev Personnel

HEART SPY 2025:

Name Job Title. Annual

Salary

% from

contract

Amount from

contract

Faith Bouchard Project Director $68,250.04 8.9 % $6,037.50

Taylor Salvato Project Manager $68,000 8.7% $5,884.62

Roben Weiss Events Coordinator $67,200 4.6% $3,101.54 ;

DIABETES SPY 2025

Faith Bouchard Project Director $68,250.04 8.9 % $6,037.*50

Taylor Salvato Project Manager $68,000 8.7% $5,884.62

Robert Weiss Events Coordinator $67,200 4.6% $3,101.54

WISEW.OMAN SPY 2025
•  •

• • . .

Faith Bouchard Project Director $68,250.04 3.5% $2,362.50

Taylor Salvato Project Manager $68,000 3.8% . $2,615.38

BCGP SPY 2025

Faith Bouchard Project Director $68,250.04 •5.8% $3,937.50

Taylor Salvato Project Manager $68,000 5.8% $3,923.08

Robert Weiss Events Coordinator $67,200 3.5 % $2,326.15

CGMP GANGER SFY 2025

Faith Bouchard Project Director $68,250.04 .75 % $525

Taylor Salvato Project Manager $68,000 .75 % $523.08

ARTHRITIS SPY 2025

Faith Bouchard Project Director • $68,250.04 1 % $787,50

Taylor Salvato Project Manager $68,000 1 % $784.62

ORAL HEALTH SPY 2025

Karyn Madore Project Director $155,200 1 1 %■ ■ ' $17,036

Debbie Love Project Manager $79,380 . 13.46% $10,686



OocuSign Envelope ID; 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-91AE-4665A3F41D1E

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. (d.b.a. Community Health Institute)
Key Personnel

HEART SFY 2026 .

Name Job Title Annual i

Salary

% from

contract

Amount from

contract

Faith Bouchard. Proiect Director $68,250.04 .8.9 % $6,037.50

Taylor Salvato Proicct Manaj^er $68,000 8.7% . $5,884.62 -

■Robert Weiss. Events Coordinator $67,200 4.6% $3,101.54
DIABETES SF^f 2026

Faith Bouchard Project Director $68,250,041 8.9 % $6,037.50
Taylor Salvato Project Manager $68,000 8.7% $5,884.62
Robert Weiss Events Coordinator $67,200 4.6% $3,101.54
WISEWOMAN SFY 2026 _ i.

Faith Bouchard . Project-Director '$68,250.04 3.5 % $2,362.50
Taylor Salvato Project Manager $68,000 3.8% . $2,615.38
BCCP SFY 2025

Faith Bouchard Project Director $68,250.04 ^ 5.8% $3,937.50
Taylor Salyato Project Manager .$68,000 ■ 5.8% $3,923.08
Robert Weiss Events Coordinator $67,200 3.5 % $2,326.15
CO.MP CANCER SFY 2026 ' !

Faith Bouchard Project Director $68,250.04 .75 % $525 ■
Taylor Salvato Project Manager $68,000 .75 % $523.08
ARTHRITIS SFY 2026

1

Faith Bouchard Project Director $68,250.04 1 % $787.50

Taylor Salvato Project Manager $68,000 ■ 1 % .$784.62
ORAL HEALTH SFY 2026

Karyn Madore Project Director $155,200 11 % $17,036
Debbie Love Project Manager $79,380 13.46% $10,686



DocuSlgn Envelope 10; 232e6942.0D4A-4E6F.91AE-4685A3F41DlE £iPDA-7»ot
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

l>imJOyOFPVBUCHEALTNSERyiC£S

UH A. Sbtble«tr 29 HAZEN DRIVE, CX}NCORO. NH 0^1
Coaalwiontr 60M714S0] I40D4S3 J34S Eit 4S0I

Fex: tf03-271'4S27 TDDAceest: 1-800-79M9M
UMM;MDrrti www.dl>b>.Qb.fov

OirceCor i

April 5. 2021

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

' Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to enter into a contract with JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. (VC#i616l1-6001),
Bow, NH in the amount of $994,723 toproylde.professional development opportunities on chronic
disease prevention and rnanagement of evkferice-based programs to medical, behavioral health
and public health professionals, wth the option to renew for up to three (3) additional years,
effective upon Governor arid Council approval through June 30. 2023.100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available in the follov/ing accounts for State Fiscal Year 2021, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, upon the availability and
'Continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the'authority to adjust budget
line iterns within the price limit^ion and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the

■ Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See Attached Fiscat Details

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to provide educational trainings'for
medical, behavioral health, and public heaRh professionals to promote evidence-based strategies
for preveriting and managing chronic disease (including cancer, diabetes, prediabetes,
hypertension, and arthritis].. The Contractbr will contributes to the ongoing development of
statewide capacity to prevent and manage chronlediseases by providing trainings, professional
education, and meetings targeted to commOnity programs, healthcare providers, medical team
members- and public health professionals. Training and other activities will continue to promote
the benefits of care teams referring patients to quality community programs and resources;
allowing patients to easily follow provider guidance and take charge of their own health. .

The target population for this Contract includes healthcare providers, medical team member,
and public'health professionals. By June 30, 2023, approximately twelve (12) training events will
be held. The services covered in this contract will increase healthcere provider knowledge and
skills to. better provide preventive clinical and community services to people statewide; and will
lead to improved health outcomes for many of the 86,504 adults with diabetes; 63.369 adults
with prediabetes, 311,000 people with hypertension, 270,000 adults with arthritis and 80,000
cancer survivors.

Examples of activities that will be conducted through this contract indude coordinating
training events for medical providers, healthcare team members, certified diabetes educators,
pharmacists, lifestyle coaches, behavioral health providers and professionals serving those with
disabilities. This contract will support at least 10 gatherings of professionals involved in improving

7h* Oeporl/nenl o/ f/nllA and Humen Sefviett'Misticn it lojoin com/?iuniiui ond/omilie*
in providingopp^rUiniliti/or eiliitiu to oehUvt health ond independence.
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the delivery of healthdare fiervtces to Inform the mtk of Department. The contract will also support
information gathering to understand the current context around use of community health workers.

Sjjecifically, the Contractor, will support the Department, to provide training and
consuttation to increase referrals to arid participation in:

•  Diabetes Setf-Management Education and Support programs

National Diabetes Prevention Programs

•' . Medication Therapy .Management services for high blood pressure, high
cholesterol, and diabetes

•  Self-measured blood pressure monitoring tied with clinical support

Walk with Ease programs for arthritis

CorhmunHy Health Worker services

The Department will monitor contracted, services using the following performance
measures:

■ • 4% annual Increase in referrals and enrollment in .the Breast and Cervical Cancer Program;

•  10% annual Increase In enrollment in evidence-based' programs (e.g. Diabetes Self-
Management Education and Support, National Diabetes Prevention Program, Bipod
Pressure Self-Mpnitoring Program)

•  '10% annual increase in the number of collaborative practice agreements between providers
and pharmacists

•  A decrease or no increase in the baseline data percentage of adults diagnosed with arthritis.

:  • An increase In the percentage of adults diagnosed wth arthritis in New Hampshire, and
among individuals with pre-diabetes and diabetes, reporting walking as one their top two (2)
forms of exercise.

•  CEU documentation provided to 100% of training participants and completed In accordance
with credentialing body regulations.

•  Training evaluations distributed to 100% of training participants.

•  Minimum attendance of ten 10 attendees for each Arthritis Community Engagement
sessions.

•  Minimum of 10 attendees for each Arthritis training event for healthcare providers.

The Department selected the Contractor through a competitive bid process using a
Request for Proposals (RFP) that was posted oh the Department's website from 9/30/2020
through 11/19/2020. The Department received two (2) responses that were reviewed and scored
by a team of qualified individuals. The Scorir^ Sheet is attached.

As referenced in Exhibit A of the attached contract, the parties have the option to extend
the agreement for up to three (3) additional years, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request the Department may be
unable to educate New Hampshire, healthcare professionals on available cancer screenings,
diabetes prevention programs and arthritis appropriate physical activity programs.. Prevention
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services help individuals maintain their health and allow for earty diagnoses of diseases, which
reduces medical costs and promotes good quality of living.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.426, FAIN NU58DP006515: CFDA #93.945, FAIN
NU56DP006448; CFOA #93.898, FAIN NU58OP006298: and CFDA #93.436. FAIN
.NU58DP006836

In the event ttiat the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds.vyjlt.not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shlblnette

Commissioner
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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and

Manage Chronic Disease

05-9^090-902010-1227 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND

HEALTH SERVICES, COMBINED CHRONIC DISEASE

100% Foderal Funds

Slate Fiscal

Year
. Class/ Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2021 102/500731 . Coniracis for Program Services 90017002 582.500.00

2021 '  102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 90017003 582,500.00

.  2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 90017002 ■  $115,000.00
2022 102/500731 • Contrects for Proqrom Services 90017003 $115,000.00

2023 102/500731 . Coniracis for Program Services 90017002 5115.000.00

2023 102/500731 Contracls for Program Ser\nces 90017003 $115,000.00
Sub Tola) 5625.000.00

05.95^090.902010-5659 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND

HEALTH SERVICES. COMPREHENSIVE CANCER

100% Fodoral Funds

State Fiscal

Year
•Class / Account ClassTiile Job Number •Revised Amount

2021 102/500731 Grants for Public Asst arid Relief 90080081 '  525.241.00

2021 102/500731 Grants for Public Asst and Relief 90080DB3 55,000.00

2022 074/500589 Grants for Public Asst and Relief 90080081' $52,241.00

2022 074/500589 Grants for Public Asst and Relief .  90080083 $5,000.00

2023 074/500589 Grants for Public Asst and Relief •90080081 • $52,241.00

2023 .  074/500589 ' Grants for Public Asst and Relief 90080083 $5,000.00

Sub Total V. 5144,723.00

05-95.090-902010-7045 HEALTH AND'SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND

HUMAN SVS. HHS; DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND
HEALTH SERVICES. WISEWOMAN

100% Federal Funds

Slate Fiscal

Year
Class/ Account Class Title Job Number Revised Amount

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Sen/ices' 90070450 $60,000.00

2022 102/500731 ■ Contracts for Progra'm'Services 90070450 $60,000.00

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 90070450 $60,000.00

Sub Total $180,000.00

05.95.090.902010.7046 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPt OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF COMMUNITY AND
HEALTH SERVICES. ARTHRITIS

100% Fodoral Funds

State Fiscal

Year
Class / Account Class Title Job Number Revised Amount

2021 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 90017717 $15,000.00

2022 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services 90017717 $15,000.00

2023 102/500731 Contracts for Program Services' 90017717 '  $15,000.00
• ,  . Sub Total .  . $45,000.00

Overall Total $994,723.00

AKdchmenl - Bureau of Behavioral Health

Fihanciai Delall '

Page i of 1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations

Contracts & Procurement Unit

Scoring Sheet

Professional Education and Promotion

to Preverrt and Manage Chronic

Disease
RFP Name

Bidder Name

1.

2.

Indiana University

JSI

3- 0

4.
0

5-0

6. ft

7.

RFP-2021-OPHS-0S-EDUCA

RFP Number

Pass/Fail

Maximum

Points

Actual
Points

1085 696

1085 722

1085 0 .

1085 0

1085 • 0

■  1085 *0

•: 1085 0

Reviewer Names

1.

2.

3.

4.

Whitney Hammond. Chronic
Disease Director

Maiisa Lara. Adminisirator I

Adrian® Burke. Cancer Programs
Matiager

Adam Burch, Chronic Disease

Pair) Mngmt. Coordinator

Monica DeKico. (.;hronic Utsea^

EHen Chase-Lucard. Administrator

Program Specialist

6.

7.

8.

9.
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FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 12/11/2019)

Subject: Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Disease (RFP-2021 -DPHS-03-
EDUC^Ol)

Kotice: This agrccmeni and all of its aiiachmcnts sholl become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprieta^ must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

agreement

The Stale of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

CENERiVL PROVISIONS

J.I Slate Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 Slate Agency Address

129, Pleasant Street
Concord,NH 03301-3857

1.3 Comracior Name v

JSI Research & Training Institute^ Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

501 Souih Street, 2nd Fl.
Bow, NH 03304

•

1.5 Comracior Phone

Number

(603)573-3331

1.6 Account Number

05-095-090,902010-

1227; 05-095-090-
902010-5659; 05-095-,
090-902010-7046; 05-

095.090-9D2010-7045

1.7 Completion Date

June 30, 2023

1.8 Price Limilaiion

S994,723

1.9 Contracting Officer for Slate Agency

Nathan 0. While, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

l.ll Comracior Signature

3/30/2021'
1

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Katie Robert
Director

1.13 ignaiurc 1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Director, ic Health Srvcs.

1.15 Department of Administration, Division ofPcrsonncI (ifapplicable)

By: Director, On:

I  16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution),fi/applicable)

B. on. VS/:on

1.17 Approval byT1i'^C6vemor and Exccuiivc Council (ifapplicable)

C&.C item number; G&C Meeting Date: y—oj

Contractor initials
D,„T7W7Un
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2. SERVICES TO. BE PERFORIMEO. The State of New
Hempshirc, acting through the agency ideniiftcd in block I.I
("Stale"), engages cohlracior idc"niified in block - 1.3
("Contractor") (o perform, and the Conlriactor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT 8 which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the panics hercundcr, shall
become effective on the-'date the Governor and Executive

Council'approve this Agrccmcni a.s indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in wKich cose the Agreement
shall become elTeciive on the date the Agreement is .signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("EfTective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences (he Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective .Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that (hi.s Agreement docs noi become
effective, (he State.shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including withqui limitation, any, obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion" Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT,
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligation.s of' the Stale hercundcr, including,
without lim'itation, the continuance of payments hercundcr, are
contingent upoi) the availability and continued appropriation of
fund.c affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
aciion that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT 8, in whole or in
pan. In no event shall the.State be liable for any payments
hercundcr in excess of such available appropriated fund.s. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement Immediately upon
giving the .Cont.ractor notice of such reduction or icrminaiion.
The State shall not be required to (nmsfcr funds from any other
account or source to (he Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRJCE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method ofpayment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described .in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference. -
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the compleic reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred, by the Contractor in the

• performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for.ihe Services. The State shall
have no liability (0 the Contractor other than (he contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from ony amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision oMaw.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and noiwiihstandirig unexpected circumstances, iri'no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or aciuolly made
hercundcr, e.xcecd the Price Limitation set forth in block I !8.

■  \

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS.
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the pcrformoncc of the Service.*, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable .statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment cpponuniiy laws. In addition, if this AgrMment Is
funded in any pan by monies of the United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all. federal c.xccuiive orders, rulesi regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regtjlalions and gui.delines as the

. State or the United State.* i.<t*ue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
di%riminaie against employees or^applicants for employmeni
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take ofTlrmaiive action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose ofoscenaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agrccmcni.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified (0
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
oiherwi.se authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized In uTlling, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date In block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firin or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined cfTort to
perform the Sers'iccs to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially irivolyed in (he procurement,
odministroiion or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive .termination of this Agreement,
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for (he State.'

Page 3 of5
Contractor Initials

D,„:3/lU/20n
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.) Any one or more of Ihe following acis or omissions ofuhe
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hcreunder ("Event

of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hcreunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, lerrri or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2'. I give the Contractor a uriiten notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring It to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thiny (30)day.«! from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Defaull is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contraciornoiice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Defaull and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the ponion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Defaull
shall never be paid to the Coniractof;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Eycni of
Defaull ond set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 gi ve the Contractor n written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8-3.,No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a'waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any .'Subsequent Event of
Default, No express failure to enforce any Event of Default .shall",
be deemed a w'ajvcr of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of ihe provisions hereof.upon any further or other Event of
Defaull on the pan of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph-8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in pan, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is.cxercising its option to terminate the Agreement. •
9.2 In the event of.on early termination of-ihis Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the Stale's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fi ftccn (15) days after the date
of Icrminaiion. a report ("Termination'Report") describing in
detail oil Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in the attached
EXHIBIT 8. In addition, at the Stnic's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

Paged

) ■

submit .10 the State a Tmnsiiion Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. data;access/confidentiality/

preservation.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shallmean all
information and things developed or obioined during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
flics, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, g^phlc
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

I0;2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be Ihe properly of the Stole, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination •
of this Agreement fprony reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other e.xisiing law. Disclosure ofdata requires
prior-uTitien approval of the Slate.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither .an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Comracior nor any of its
officers, cmpioyecs,-agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compcnsniion or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. assicnment/delecation/subcontracts.

12.1 The Contractor .«:hall not a.«»gn, or oihcrwj.'te transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to ihe State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the Slate. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (o) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or scries of related transactions in
which a third party, together ̂ with its afniiaies, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50Vo) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests,, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or subsianiially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the Stale.
The Slate is entitled to copies.of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or nn assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless Otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold-harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement', or other claims asserted against
the Slate, its officers or employees, which arise out of(0£dyhich

< may be claimed to arise out oQ (he acts or omissfoir'^ the
of 5 L5-'

Contraclor Initials
D,,,173577071
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Controcior, or subcontrtciors, including but not llmiled lo (he
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The Sole shall not
be Noble for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding (he foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
Slate. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, (he
foltowing insurance:
14.1.1 cornmcrcial general liability insurance against dI! claims,
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in am6uni.<t of not
less than 51,000,000 per occurrence and 52,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
SOV# of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph U.I herein shall be
on policy forms and endorserrvenis approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the Stole of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to (he Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or he; successor, a cenincate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting OfHccr identified
in block.1.9, or his or her succes^r, cenincale(s) of insurance
for alt renewalfs) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to (he expiration date of each
insurance policy. The cenificmc(s) of insurance and any
renewals (hereof shall be attached and arc incorporated herein by
jcfcrencc. . ,s

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.

I S.I By signing this agreement, the Contnscior agrees, certifies
.and warranis that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
•from, the requirements of N.H, RSA chapter 281 -A ("Workers'
Compcnsoilon").
IS.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to (he requiremeni.s
of N.H. RSA chapter 28I>A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the pcrsori proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. Thcpontraclor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9. or his or her successor, proofof Workers'
.Compensation in the manner dc.<icribcd in N.H. RSA chapler
281'A and any applicable rcncwal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and arc incorporated herein by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payrheni of any Workers'
^Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under appNcabIc State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a pany hereto to the other pany
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addres^s given in
block.s 1.2 and 1.4, herein. ■

17. AA1ENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
panics hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and E.xccutivc Council of
the Stale of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuaini to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the.State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construct iori shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
-Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be'brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive juri.sdiction thereof.

19. CONFUCTINC TERMS. In the event of a. conflici
between the terms oflhi.". P-37 form (as modified in E>n4IBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, (he terms of (he
P-3? (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The panics hereto do'not intend to
benefit any third parties and (his Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement ore
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall m no way be held (o.explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agrccmeni.

22. SPECIAL .PROVISIONS. Arlditiona) or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached, EXHIBIT A ore incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVER/\BILiTY. In the event any ofthc provisions of this
Agreement are hcld by a coun of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary lo any slate or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement,-which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed on original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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r

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

j  •

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows;

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to three (3) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the

•: Governor and Executive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12, Assignment/pelegation/Subcontracls. is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows; y
12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the

Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and .take corrective
action as necessary.-The Contractor shall annually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors provided for under this Agreement and notify
the State of any inadequate subcontractor performance.

JSI Resdsrch S Trslning insUtuto, Inc. EidtlbU A • Ro^sions lo Standard Contract Provtsioro Contractor Iniilals "
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Scope Services

1. statement of Work for All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall provide educational trainings for medical, behavioral
health, and public health professionals to promote evidence-based strategies
for preventing and managing chronic disease, including the following:

1.1.1. Cancer;

1.1.2. Diabetes;

1.1.3. Pre,diabetes;

1.1.4. Heart Disease; and

1.1.5. Arthritis.

1.2. ■ The Contractor shall target populations for training, technical assistance, and
promotion of evidence-based strategies for preventing and managing chronic
disease statewide to include:

1.'2.1. Medical providers, including, but not limited to: i

1.2.1.1. Medical doctors.

1.2.1.2. Advanced practice registered nurses.

1.2.1.3. Physician assistants.

1.2.2. Behavioral health professionals, including, but not limited to:

1.2.2.1. Peersupportstaff.

1.2.2.2. Social workers.

1.2.2.3. Psychologists.

1.2.2.4. Public health professionals.

1.2.3. Healthcare team members, including, but not limited to:

1.2.3.1. Pharmacists. - r

1.2.3.2. Phannacy technicians.

1.2.3.3. Certified diabetes educators.

1.2.3.4. Registered nurses.

1.2.3.5. Registered dietitians.

1.2.3.6. Licensed practical nurses. I M
RFP-202l-DPHS-03-EOUCA^1 Contrector Initials

3/30/2021
JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc. Page 1 of 18 Dale



OocuSIgn Envelop® ID: 232e6942-DD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F41DlE ,

OocuSign Envelope 10: P781E629^77mQ1A-94C4-C68C0702PCA4 '

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and

Manage Chronic Disease
EXHIBIT B

1.2.3.7. Community health workers. ' . ,

1-:2.3.8.. Patient navigators.

1.2.3.9. Medical billing and coding staff.

1.2.3.10. Healthcare administrators.

1.2:3.11. Medical assistants.

1.2.3.12, Care managers/coordinator^s.

1.2.4. National Diabetes Prevention Program (NDPP|lif8style coaches and
members of the Diabetes Prevention Advisory Group (DPAG).

^  1.2.5. Individuals who fit within the current United Slates Preventive

Services Task Force (USPSTF) breast and cervical cancer
screening guidelines.

1.2.6. Adults with, and at risk for, prediabetes.

•  1.3. The Contractor shall ensure all services under this Agreement are provided in
accordance with the following goals and strategies, as applicable:

1.3.1. Improving access to and participation, in American Diabetes
:• Association'(ADA) and Association of Diabetes. Care and Education

Specialists (ADCES) accredited Diabetes Self-Management

■  Education and Support (DSMES) programs in underserved areas;

1.3.2. Increasing engagerhent of pharmacists in the provision of medication

'  therapy management;

1.3.3. Assisting, health care organizations in implementing systems to
identify people with prediabetes and referring them to NDPP for type
two (2) diabetes prevention;

1.3.4. Promoting the adoption of evidence-based quality measurement at

the provider level;

1.'3.5. Facilitating the use of Self-Measured Blood Pressure monitoring
(SMBP) lied with clinical.support among adults with hypertension;

1.3.6. implementing systems to facilitate systematic referral of adults-with
hypertension and/or high blood cholesterol to community programs

and resources approved by the Centers for Disease Control (CDC);

1.3.7. Counseling and referring patients to Increase physical actlvily^w

&RFP-2021-OPHS-03-EDUCA-Q1 . Contfactor Initials
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1.3.8. Adopting innovative and' systems-based approaches to
lestabjish/enhance healthcare provider patient counseling about

physical activity for arthritis management.' including walking and
Arthritis-Appropriate Evidence-Based Intervention (AAEBI) referrals;

1:3.9. Promoting walking and state walking initlatiyes addressing the
unique needs of adults with arthritis;

1.3.10. Raising awarenes's about arthritis burden and management via
promotion of AAEBIs, patient counseling, physical activity and
walking;

1.3.11. Developing a comprehensive and coordinated approach to inform
policy, systems, and environmental changes that decrease the
burden cancer has on individuals by: .

-- 1.3.11.1. Working with cornmunity and national partners to reach

disparate populations;

1.3.11.2. Using culturally appropriate interventions (hat are tailored
for the communities to Identify barriers, to breast and

cervical cancer screening, ways to address barriers, and
opportunities for outreach; ^

1.3.11.3. Reaching out to communities which include but are not
limited to: Lesbian, Gay. Bisexual, Transgender, and
Queer/Questioning (LGBTQ) community partners;

1.3.11.4. Supporting a state-v/ide capcer coalition to achieve
cancer plan goals and objectives; -

1.3.11.5. Leveraging community resources to implement
evidenced-based interventions that -are aligned with

promoting the primary prevention and early detection of
cancer, addressing cancer survivor needs, and promoting
cancer-related health equity; and

1.3.11.6. Fostering and sustaining relationships with key
organizations whose missions align with the reduction of - .
canper related morbidity and mortality.

1.4. The Contractor shall submit applications for Continuing Education Units (CEU).
to appropriate credentialing bodies on behalf of training attendees. ,

&
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1.5. The Cphtractor shall provide CEU completion documentation to all attendees
In accordance with credenlialing body regulations.,

1.6. The Contractor shall obtain Department approval for:

1.6.1. Training opportunity location:

1.6.2. Training session scheduling;

T.6.3. Training promotion; ^

1.6.4. Contractor identified trainer(s);

1.6.5. ■ Collection of exhibitor fees; ' -

1.6.6. Training materials and handouts: and

1.6.7. Training session evaluations and survey materials.

1.7." The Contractor shall participate In monthly In-person or conference call
meetings with'the Department to review and discuss project development and
Implementation, iriclading, but not limited to:

1.7.1. Activities:

1.7.2. Trainings;

1.7.3. Interventions:

1.7,4. Challenges;

1.7.5. Progress: and

1.7.6. Funding.

1.8. The Contractor shall schedule a meeting with the Department at least 60 days
prior to each event to understand the-deslred outcome of the event, Including
but not limited to the following factors:

1.8.1. Venue.
'  \ / r

1.8i.2. Registration Platform.

1.8.3. Speakers. -

1.8.4. Fee Structure,.if any.

1.8.5. Marketing and Outreach,

.1.6.6. Promotion.

1.8.7. TypeofCEUs.

RFP-2021-OPHS-03-EOUCA-01 Contractor Inilials
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2. Diabetes and Heart Disease Scope of Work

2.1. The Contractor shall coordinate support for training attendees/members of the
covered populations above to Implement evidence-based strategies by
providing technical and financial assistance, which shall include but is not
limited to:

2.1.1. Initial start-up cost.

,2.1.2. Planning, capacity and readiness assessments.

2.1.3. Other supports approved by the Department and CDC.

2.2. The Contractor shall coordinate:

2.2.^. Six (6) training events for covered populations outlined Section 1.2.,

2.2.2. Two (2), additional, training and/or networking opportunities for
NDPP lifestyle coaches and the Diabetes Prevention Advisory
Group.

2.3. The Contractor shalLhold ali training? identified in Section 2.2 virtually In Slate
Fiscal Year (SfV)*2021.

2.4. The Contractor shall receive Departrnent approval, after State Fiscal-Year 2021
for all virtual or online trainings, or networking opportunities utilized.

2.5. • The Contractor may subcontract for expert consultants to provide technical
assistance to organizations that desire to Implemenl any of the evidence-based
strategies. r.

2.6. The Contractor shall provide logistical support to the DepartmenI to condcict an
awareness campaign to increase enrollment in NDPP in target areas of the
slate. Logistical support activities include, but are not limited to:

2.6.1. Development of a plan for education activities.

2.6.2. Educational rnaterials.

2.6.3. Educational events.

2.7. The Contractor shall process metrics and post-buy awareness analysis to
incorporate a quality Improvement cycle to assess and adjusit the campaign
tactics.

2.8. The Contractor shall coordinate campaign planning and development with the
Department's web team, as needed.

2.9. The Contractor shall assist the Department to promote Strategies listed in
Section 1.2.2., which shall include, but is not limited to:

2.9.1. Outreach at statewide professional events.
/  M

2.9.2. Communication to stakeholders. ^
RFP-2021.DPHS-03-EDUCA.01 Contfadof Initials
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3. Arthritis Scope of Work

3.1. The Contractor shall coordinate and facilitate a minimum of three (3) arthritis
community engagement sessions for the purpose of coordinating planning •
efforts for the arthritis program. Community engagement sessions shall include
but are not limited to:

3.1.1. Administrative details which include, but are not limited to:

3.1.1.1. ■ Coordinating the facility or zoom meeting.

3.1.1.2. Invitations.

3.1.1.3. Registration of stakeholders,

3.1.2. Trainings on the following, which include but are not limited to:

3.1.2.1. Arthritis mitigation.

3.1.2.2. Walking programs.

3.1.3. . Focus groups.

3.1.4. Distribution and collection of patient sun/eys.

3.1.5. Distribution and collection of provider survey.

3.1.6. Key stakeholder interviews.

3.2. The Contractor shall proyide a whiten summary on the key points discussed
• during each engagement.

3.3. The Contractor shall have participants complete a post-engagement survey
and shall provide a summary of the survey responses to the Department.

3.4. ■ The Contractor shall provide trainings to health care providers on the Walk With
Ease (WWE) program,. which shall include, but is not limited to:-

3.4.1. Administrative details which Include, but are not limited to:

3.4.1.1. Coordinating the facility or virtual meeting.

3.4.1.2. Invitations.

3.4.1.3. Registration stakeholders.

3.4.2. Trainings on the following, which include but are not limited to:

3.4.2.1. Education on walking as an exercise.

3.4.2.2. Walk with Ease journals.

3.4.3. Focus groups. "

3.4.4. Distribution and collection of patient surveys.

&
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3.4.5. Oislribulion and collection of provider survey.

3.4.6. Identifying a comprehensive list of stakeholders, in the following
areas:

3.4.6.1. Coos County.

3.4.6.2. Sullivan County.

3.4.6.3. Manchester Area. i

3.4.6.4. Nashua Area.

3.4.6.5. Other locations, as determined by the Department.

3.4.7. identifying Individuals who have lived with conditions.

3.4.8. Develop an approach for stakeholders

4. Cancer and WISEWOMAN Scope of Work v

4.1. The Contractor shall conduct awareness carhpaigns for the cancer program,
with oversight from the Department, for the purposes of:

4.1.1. Educating individuals in target areas of the Slate on .the availability
of services through the New Hampshire Healthy Lives Breast and
Cervical Cancer Program (BCCP). This includes targeted media
campaigns throughout the year with a larger emphasis in the months

^  of October and January.

4.1.2.- Increasing knowledge.about the BCCP among LGBTQ populations
through targeted education and outreach. This includes the review
of current. campaign materials for needed adjustments that are
specific to the LGBTQ population. Materials must be market tested

•- for the targeted population.

4.2. The Contractor shall provide logistical support activities to the Department,
upon approval by the Department, to support the cancer program awareness
campaigns..Logisticai support activities include, but are not limited to:

4.2.1. Development of a plan for education activities.

4.2.2. Refinement of existing educational materials.

4.2.3. Educational events. -

4.3. The Contractor shall monitor and refine the activities for the .cancer program
awareness campaigns that includes, but is not limited to:

4.3.1. Tracking campaign progress for delivery, spend and placement
performance, engagement and attribution modeling.

4.3.2. Conducting regular A/B testing to assess the response/engaaement
of Intended audience in order to optimize campaign awarenepsjt^

RFP-2021-OPHS-03-EOUCA-01 ' Contrectof Initials
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4.3.3. Gathering'audience insights via focus groups on deveioped material.

4.3.4. . Ongoing evaluation.

4.3.5. Processing metrics and post-buy awareness anaiysis to Incorporate
a quality Irnprovement cycle to assess and adjust the campaign
tactics.

4.4. The Contractor shall submit evaluation data from the Breast and Cervical
Cancer Program to the Department at the following Intervals:

4.4.1. One (1) month post campaign launch, and

4.4.2. Quarterly or at campaign cycles.

4.5. The Contractor shall coordinate a minimum of one (1) WISEWOMAN training
event, as needed and: to be deterimiried by the Department and Center for
Disease Control, for medical providers and healthcare team members that will,
include, but is not limited'to submitting training participants' applications for
CEUs to appropriate credentialing bodies.

4.6. The Contractor shall coordinate the evaluation of cancer related legislation.

4.7. The Contractor shall ensure existing data being utilized for the Breast and
Cervical Cancer Program is used in ongoing market research.

4.8. The Contractor shall develop and implement_ awareness activities for the
WISEWOMAN program pilot sites that isdesighed to increase referrals;to and
enrollment, within six months of Governor and Executive Council approval of
■the Agreement The Contractor and the Department will work with the pilot sites '
to determine their needs related to promotion of the program. The marketing
plan shall include but is notlimited to: .

4.8.1. Target worrien; aged 40-64, who are enrolled in the BCCP with
information about enhanced services available to reduce
cardiovascular risk, ;

4.8.2. Performing market research, which shall include, but is not limited to:
4.8.2.1. ■ Conduct inventory of existing internal marketing"

materials.

4.8.2.2. Identify existing national social mari^eting campaigns
that have related content. • •

4.0.2.3. Review of ftve other states WISEWOMAN services,
materials, and branding.

4.8.2.4. Conduct formative research to assess factors that help
or hinder enrollment into WISEWOMAN services from
those eligible for services and referral sources,
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4.8.2.5. Draft-strategic marketing for at minimum two (2) pilot
sites and communication plan with key messages,
strategies and tactics. KPl, and call-to-action.

4.8.2.6. Gather audience insight on key messages from those
eligible for services and referral sources ■

'  4.6.2.7. Finalize materials based on audience insights.

4.9. The Contractor shall monitor and expand the activities for the WISEWOMAN
program activities after completion of pilot site awareness activities that may
Include, but is.not limited to:

4.9.1. Tracking campaign progress for delivery, spend and placement
performance, engagement and attribution modeling.

■  4.9.2. Conducting regular A/B testing to assess the response/engagernent
of intended audience in order to optimize campaign awareness.

4.9.3. Gathering audience insights via focus groups on developed material.

4.9.4. Ongoing evaluation. ■

4.9.5. Processing metrics and post-buy awareness analysis to incorporate
a quality improvement cycle to assess and adjust the campaign
laclics.

4.9.6. Developing marketirig material, such as digital and print ads, which
shall include, b.ut is not limited to:

4.9.6.1. Compelling .stories of personal challenge, empowerment
and real-world successes through each program's web,
digital and print assets and through existing referral
systems

4.9:6.2. Using the network of chronic condition or public health
programs such as: National DPP, DSME, NH Certified
Diabetes Educators and other Chronic Disease Seif-
managemenl Programs. The media messages shall
inform, the following, that include but are not limited to;

4.9.6.2.1. NH adults in populations identified as having
risk factors. ■

4.9.6.2.2. Women in each segment idenliried by the
■  BGCP and WISEWOMAN programs.

4.9.6.2.3. Providers that serve those eligible .for BCCP^
andWISEOWMAN.and

fer
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y. 4.9.6.2.4. Partners and providers making referrals to
increase referral and enrollment in each of the

programs.

4.9.7. Branding new services.

■4.9.8. Soliciting input from clinicians delivering WISEWOMAN services as
well as the target audience. .•

4.9.9. Including how the plan will .be evaluated for reach and impact, this
plan shall include but is not limited to:
4.9.9.1. Demographic data.

4.9.9.2. Sociographicdata.

4.9.10. After the marketing plan is approved .by the Department, the
Contractor shall implement the marketing plan within six months of
G&C contract approval.

4.9.11. The Contractor shall, in collaboration with'the^ Department, plan,
organize, manage, provide CEUs, and evaluate meetings related to:

4.9.11.;1. Comprehensive Cancer Collaboration quarterly meetings. These
meetings may be held-virlually and/or in person meetings In consultation
with the Department.

4.10. The Contractor shall provide program evaluation assistance for the Breast and
Cervical Cancer Program, which shall include, but is not lirnited to:

■  4.10.1: - Review of program efforts!

4.10.2. Effectiveness oflhe programs.

4 .'10.3. Participant outcomes and behavioral changes.
5. Diabetes, Heart Disease, Arthritis and Cancer Scope of Work

5^1. The Contractor shall utilize an Event Checklist equivalent or comparable to the
one in Appendix A that will be shared with team rhembers including ,the
Department. . -

5.2. ' The Contractor shall assist the Department to identify, contact, and contract
with'Speakers/trainers with subject nnatler expertise in the strategiesjdentified,
as appropriate, to present information at the scheduled trainings.

5.3. The Contractor shall, as requested by the Department, cocrdiriate planning
committees of professionals to provide input and guidance on the planning of
events. This may not be necessary'for all events and is up to the discretion of
the Department.

5.4. The Contractor shall provide logistical support with follow-up cont
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speakers/trainers, as needed. Logistical support shall include, but not be
limited to:

5.4.1. Preparing and mailing paperwork to scheduled speakers, that
includes, but is "not limited to:

1.8.7.1.1. •'Attendance with the specific date. time, and location
of the training.

1.8.7.1.2. Directions to the training.

'  1.8.7.1.3. Conflictof interest statements from speakers/trainers.
that must be signed and returned to the Department.

1.8.7.1.4. Other information as required by the Department.

5.5. The Contractor shall coordinate:

5.5.1. With attendees/participants to receive, accept, and compile
registration forms for the scheduled training; ^

5.5.2. .Collecting registration fees;

5.5.3. Securirig meeting space and audiovisual equipment;

5.5.4. Event accommodations for speakers who require overnight hotel
resen/ations;

5.5.5. Refreshments in accordance vyith United Slates Office of
r.j Management and Budget (OMB) guidelines; and

5.5.6. Providing sufficient staff to manage the training.

5.6. The Contractor shall promote the scheduled training by marketing to the target
population .'(potential attendees) as outlined in section '1.2 Covered
Populations. This may include, but is not limited to:

5.6.1. Purchasing mailing lists.

5.6.2. .Sending email announcemerits.

5.6.3. Creating, copying, and mailing flyers.

5.6.4. Posting announcements online and through list serves.

5.7. The Contractor shall submit a draft of the marketing plan to promote training
events 60 days prior to each event.

5.8. The Contractor shall incorporate Department feedback on training event
marketing plans and submit to the Department 45 days prior to each ev6nl for
final approval.

5 9 The Contractor shall assist the Department to develop registration questions,

lif.
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evalualions and compile regislratlon and evaluation results following the
training.

5.10. The Contractor shall utilize information gathered through registration and
evaluation to develop content for future trainings and improve the quality of
trainings offered.

5.11. The Contractor shall present a final report on the outcome of the trainings to
the Department annually.'

5.12. The Contractor shall provide support services that Include but are not limited to
securing the "training venue and organizing training. Exhibitors. Support
services shall Inciude. but not be limited to:

5.12.1. Identifying training .Exhibitors to sponsor training activities by
purchasing vendor space at the training.

5.12.2. Making initial contact with training Exhibitors to measure interest In
purchasing a vendor space.

5.12.3. Securing training Exhibitors for the training, which includes but is not
limited to processing vendor registration forms.

5.12.4. • Providing logistical support to follow-up with training Exhibitors, as
needed.

5.12.5. Preparing and mail follow-up paperwork to training Exhibitors to
ensure vendor spaces are filled.

5.13. .The'Contractor, in consultation with the Department, shall work with existing
marketing plans developed. This shall include, but is not limited to:

5.13.1. Identifying acliyities to transition.

5.13.2. Identifying any consultants or subcontractors needed to implement
marketing activities. " •.

5.13.3. Submit commitment letters for any consultants and subcontractors
within 30 days of contract approval.

5.13.4. Upon Department approval, the Contractor shall negotiate any media
buys, which shall include but is not limited to:

5.13.5. Requesting invoices from media vendors.

5.13.6. Leveraging relationships with media vendors.

5.13.7. Paying for media buys.

5.13.8. Working with the existing media subcontractors and
develop new creative as determined by market
research. fT^
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6. Exhibits Incorporated

6.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

6.2. The Contractor shall manage.all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

6.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

7. Work Plan

7.1. The Contractor shall wort^ with the Department to finalize Exhibit 8-1 Work Plan,
which is attached hereto, for year one (1), of the Contract period within thirty
(30) days of the initial "kick-off meeting, and work plans for year two (2) and
-year three (3) of the contract periods no later than thirty (30) days prior to the
end of year one (1) and year two (2) respectively, which shall include, but is not
limited to:

7.1.1. Baseline and target numbers.

7.1.2. A plan to meet each obligation under the resulting Agreement. •

7.1.3. An estimated timeline.

8. Reporting Requirements

8.1. The Contractor must deliver the plan for the free breast and cervical cancer
screening program's awareness campaigns to the Department within sixty (60).
days of the contract effective date.

8.2. The Contractor shall submit all cancer program awareness campaign
materials, as required under this agreement, to the Department for approval
and revisions prior to ̂ stribution".

8.3. The Contractor shall deliver the plan for the WISEWOMAN pilot site awareness
activities to the Department within sixty (60) days of the contract effective date.

8.4. The Contractor shall submit evaluation data from the Breast- and Cervical
Cancer and WISEWOMAN Program awareness campaigns to the Department
at the following intervals:

8.4.1. One (1) month post campaign launch, and

8.4.2. Quarterly or at campaign cycles.
I Wt,
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8.5. The Cohtraclor shall submit quarterly reports, approved by the Department,
within thirty (30) days of the end of each quarter that shall include, but are not
limited to:

8.5.1. Brief narrative of the work performed during the reporting period.-

8.5.2. Summary of work plans for the upcoming quarter including
challenges and/or barriers to completing the requirernents of this
Agreement.

8.5.3. Documented achievements.

8.5.4. Progress made toward meeting'the performance measures.

8.5.5. Recommendations for project improvement. '

8.5.6. Documented.progress on Event Checklists as referenced in 5.2. and
Appendix A. '

8.6. The Contracfor shall provide quarterly reports for the Arthritis trainings,to health
care providers that includes, but is not limited to:

8.6.1. The number*of target organizations contacted.

8.6.2. Method of contact

8.6.3. Number of contact attempts per method

8.6.4. Number of responses \

8.6.5. Number of individuals registered

8.6.6. ■ Number of individual attended.

8.7. The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports for the Arthritis community
engagement sessions that includes,- but is not limited to:

8.7.1. Method of contact

8.7.2. Number of contact attempts per method •

8.7.3. Nurnber of responses

8.7.4. Number of individuals registered

8.7.5. Number of individual attended

8.6. The. Contractor shall submit to the Department a report on information
collected, including evaluations, at all Cancer related, meetings within 30 days
of the meeting.

8.9. The Contractor shall provide an annual report of information collected from all
trainings to the Department by June 15th annually.

8.10. The Contractor shall maintain income and expenditure records and providclo
the Department for review upon request. -
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8.T1. The Contractor shall submit an Annual Evaluation Report no later Ihan'thirty
(30) days prior to the end of the State Fiscal Year that Includes, but is not limited
to:

8.11.1. A summary of the free breast and cervical cancer screening
program's awareness campaign to educate women.

8.11.2. A summary of the WISEWOMAN program's awareness activities.

8.11.3. Examination of the level .of fuinilment of project objectives as
specified.

8.1-1.4. Problems encountered in the implementation of the campaign and ■
how they were remedied.

8.11.5. Awareness achieved and projects and innoyations implemented
based .on specific methods of implementation determined at the
project 'kick-ofT meetings and when the work plan is updated.

8.12. The Contractor shall submit a Final Evaluation Report withiri (thirty) 30.daysof
the end of the contract period, that includes the same detail as identified for the
Annual Evaluation Report in Subsection 8.11. above.

9. Performance Measures

9.1. The Department will monitor performance of the selected Vendor by ensuririg
that the following performance indlcators^are achieved annually and monitored
monthly to measure the effectiveness of the agreerrient:

9.1.1. ■ Four percent (4%) annual increase in referrals and enrollment in the
Br.east and Cervical.Cancer Program.

9 1.2. Ten percent (10%) annual increase in enrollment in evidence-based
programs (e.g. WISEWOMAN. Diabetes Seif-Managemenl
Education and Support, National Diabetes Prevention Program.■
Blood Pressure Self-Monitoring.Program)

9.1.3. Ten percent (10%) annual increase in the number of collaborative
practice agreements between providers and pharmacists

9.1.4. A decrease or no increase In the baseline data percentage of adults
diagnosed with arthritis.

9.1.5. An increase In the percentage of adults diagnosed with arthritis in
/  New Hampshire, and among individuals with pfe-diabetes and

diabetes, reporting walking as one their lop two (2) forms of exercise.
9.1.6. CEU documentation provided to one hundred percent (100%) of

training participants and completed in accordance with credentlaling
body regulations.

9.1.7. Training evaluations distributed to one hundred percent (10p®iy!O^
RFP-202l-OPrtS-03-EOUCA^l ConUacIOf Initials '
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training participants.

9.1.8. Minimum attendance.-of ten 10" attendees for each' Arthritis

Community Engagement sessions.
j

9.1.9. Minimum of ten (10) attendees for each Arthritis training event for
healthcare providers.

9.2. the Contractor agrees to participate in training for staff, as deemed necessary,
by the Department, on topics identified by the Department.

9.3. ̂  The Contractor agrees to deliver ongoing training to their staff as deemed
necessary in consultation with the Department. Copies of attendee sheets
shall be provided to the Department within one week of attendance..

9.4. The Contractor agrees to r^onlhly site reviews, conducted by the Department
onsite or virtually, of program operations to assess compliance with applicable
contract objectives, as needed that shall include, but is not limited to. the review
of the: '

9.4:1. . Operations

9.4.2. Contract-issues

9.4.3. . Subcontractor(s) performance and/or issues

9.4.4. Any needed corrective action plans

9.4.5.- Any progress or issues with any existing corrective action plans

- , / ■ 9.4.6.

9.5. .'Notwithstanding Paragraph 8,- Event of Default/Remedies and Paragraph:9;
Termination, of the General Provisions (Form P-37) of the. contract, the
selected Contractor shall annually develop and subrriit a Corrective Action Plan
to the Department for any perforrnance measure{s) not achieved, by May 30lh
of each year of the contract.

9.6. The Department seeks to actively and regularly collaborate with providers to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and'policy based on successful outcomes.

9.7., The Department rpay collect other key data and metrics from Contractpr(s),
Including client-level demographic, performance, and service data.

9.8. The Department may Identify expectations for active and regular collaboration,
including key performance measures, in the resulting contract. Where
applicable, Contractor(s) must collect and share data with the Department in a
format specified by the Department.

9.9. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management, improve results, and adjust program delivery
and policy based on successful outcomes. '
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9.10. The Conlraclor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
Department, including client-level demographic, performance, .and service
data.

9.11. Where applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the
Department In a format specified by the Department.

10, Additional Terms

10^1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Leglslativer Changes '•

10.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements-under this Agreement so as to achieve
corripiiancetherewith.

10.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

10.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, vrithin ten (10) days of the contract
effective date, a detailed description of the communication access
and language assistance services to be provided to ensure

!  " meaningful access to programs and/or'services to individuals with
limited English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have.speech challenges.

■  10.3. predlts and Copyright Ownership

10.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared'during or resulting from the performance'of the
services of the Contract shall include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a
Contract with the State of f^iew Hampshire. Department of Health and

;  Human Services, with funds provided in part by the Stale of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

10.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the contract shall have
prior approval from the Department before prihtlng. production,
distribution or use.

10.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

10.3.3.1. Brochures. p,

10.3.3.2. Resource directories. . ■
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10.3:3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

10.3.3.4. Posters.

10.3.3.5. Reports.

10.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior written approval from the Department.

10.3.5. hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

11. Records

11.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

11.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all Income received
or collected by the Contractor.

11.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and property reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original

• evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisition's for materiais. inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or;required by
the Department.'

t1.2. During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the
Departnient, the Uriited States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained.pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number .of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of
"the price limitation hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties

■  hereunder (except such obligations as. by the terms of the Contract are to be
performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive the
termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon
review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any
expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the Department shall
retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor,

5
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nRiPnT(VF1-PrnviHAPffif.iPnTanripffeclivecontracimaMqementwilh;bPHScontractleads7ofOiabetw.Heart:AYthritlsandC3ncer'»tives.'^'^ - -

Activlti&s Timeline Evaluation/ Quality Measure

Launch contract work papenwork.
No more than 1 week after contract approval Contract signed

Meet with each program jead to review contract activilies. work plan,
subcontracts, roles and responsibilities and timeline and discuss any
proposed modiTicalions to the work plan.

No more than 30 days after contract approval Agenda. revised work plan, modifications
documented and minutes

Complete contract paperwork.
No more than 14 days afler notification of
contract

Required paperwork .submitted ^

Work with program leads to operationafize ihe reporting of
performance measuresandsetbasclinesand target.

No morethan 30 days after contract approval
Minutes

Develop budget tracking, project Iraddng using doud-based
collaboration tod.

No more than 30daysafler notification of
contract

Air table. Treilo boards and budget spread- sheets
created

Establish regular management meetings (remote or ir^-person) with contract
leads to rewew activities, training, interventions, challenges, progress and
funding.

Monthly Meetings scheduled and implemented

Pnv invoices and track expenses as needed. Monthly PCs filed, variance reports

Invoice PPHS montWy by the 19lh of each month. Monthly . Invoice paid

Submit quarterty narrative reports to DPHS (hat indude progress and
challenges against the wrk plan deBverables, suggested improvements,
summary of events.

Quarterly: June, September, December Quartetfy reports

Submit arihual summary report ofall training eventsaaoss programs i June 30, 2021 Submitted annual summary report

Maintain audit ready accounting files in accordance with ao- couriting
procedures and practices. -

Ongoing Accounting files with backup papervwk

OS
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Ensure at! printed material reflect the approved statement with the ,
attribution of program funds.

.Ongoing Approved documents -

Get writtenprior approval of written,vidTO or audio materials prior to
distribution. .

Ongoing Approval filed

Identify subcontractors and submit commitment letter - ^
f.

Within 30 days of ccx^trad approval Subcontractor approval ""

Submitannualevaluatron report forcanccr campaign. June30.
2021

Submitted evaluation report based on performed
work

Establish subcontracts with vendors as directed by DPHS Contract Start Date - June. 2021 Subcontracts approved

Purchase stipends as needed to support the implementation of evidence-
based Interventions In the community.

Contract Start Date - June. 2021 Invoice paid

Submit wortc plan for aclivHies for each program from July 1.2021 - June 30.
2022

May31.2021 Submitted annual work plan

Revise budgets as requested by programs Ongoing Revised budgets approved by Conlracting/Bjlling
Unit

OBJECTIVE 2:Wotk across Diabetes. Heart Artfiritls and Cancer progra.rra to efficiently and effectiveiy plan. promote.,convene. and coordinate gefftral evenflogistits for intended audiences.

Activities Ylmeiine Evaluation/ Quality Measure ^

.Wort< with OPHS to assess the feasibiRty of offering professional
development events or other learning opportunittes during SPf 2021

Within 30 days of contract approval Minutes
r~

—^ rff—-
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Coordinate commurccation and contracting for speakers .or su^ect matter
experts for scheduledevents (i.e.diredions. event details). Ongoing Minutes, signed contracts

Work with DPHSslaff tocoordihate pl3nn}ngcommittee{s) for events as
needed.

As needed for events Minutes, contact list

Compieteapplicationtosecureappropriatecontinuiftgeducationcfedits as
needed (i .e. speaker CV. Conflict of Interest, Objectives, Description, and-
Evaluation.)

As needed for events Completed applicalion

Secure meeting space if needed. As needed for events / Contract with facility-

Coordinate necessary technology. As needed for events Contract

Coordinate details of etecfrortic registratjon of parttcipanls including pre
assessment If needed.

As needed for events - Registration opened.# of registrants

Collect and track registration fee if needed. As needed for events Income collected

Open income line on contract to collect fee. As needed for events Task# for income line

DisseminateandcompileposteventevaluaUon from participants.
As needed for events Summary of evaluations

Arrange accommodations for speakers as needed and as budget alkjws if
needed.

As needed for events Consultant forms

Coordinate refreshments in accordance with US Office of Management
and Budget guide lines if .needed!

As needed for events Contract with vendor

Staff eveni(s) as needed. As needed for events Attendance- ^

Purchase mailing fists for audiences as needed. As needed for events Invoice ' ^ ~

Promote event(5) via email, listsenres and other onfinc methods as needed. As needed for events =•' Ema3

Create- copy and coordinate mailing of promotional material. As needed for events' Flyer
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Coordinate dosed captiorvng or other acc8ss2>le communication as

needed.

As needed.for events ^
Invoice and contract

Coordinate detTrief of each event to review evaluation summary and planning
success/chanehgesandinformthedevelopment of future learning events

As needed for events

Minutes

Sybrnil fina! sunvnary report of training events. As needed for events " Approved report

Harfdleoutreachfoandcommunicationwithaireventexhibi' torsif

feasible. "

As needed for everits
•'t, Emails

Collect exhibitor fees. As needed for events • Balance m account

Provide exhibitors with a vendor prospectus of each sponsored event. As heeded for events
Event prospectus

OBJECtiVE 3: Work with'Diabetes and Heart contrkt leads to develop and promote w^icforce development^ppportunfties.

Activities Timeline ^ Evaluation/ Quality Measure

Wod< with Diabetes and Heart staff to iden^fy their training needs hv up to 2
per year professional development learning activites in subsequent years for
target professionals.

Within 30 days of contract approval

Training plan

Coordinate the logistics for 1 or 2 virtua) leaming events induding promotion,
planning, hosting, evaluation, accessible services.'

Between April • June 2021 Trairung Plan

Complete the application for professional education units as necessary.
As needed for events Application completed

Develop plan to host arxf offer Irainings/netwoiVing events for NDPP coach^,
Advi^ry group.

April 2021 & June 2021 Post event survey

Work with Diabetes and Heart staff to assist with training and promotk)n of

evidencerbased strategies to prevent and manage chronic conditions. -Contract Start Date - June 2021 Activiiies identified

Identifystralegies toimprove access toandparticipation in AOAand
A0CE5, OMES program in underserved areas.

Ongoing with program staff Minutes ,—«

U*

I
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Wor1( with Diabetes and Heart staff toincrease engagement of pharmacies
tooffermedication therapy management.

Ongoing wilh program staff Minutes

^plorewaystcincreasescreerur^ofal-nskpalienlsandreferral of.NOPP
among health systems.

Ongoing wilh program staff - Minutes

Support efTorts to promote adoption of evidence -based quality measures
among healthcare providers.

Ongoing with prograrh staff M'inutes

Support staff (1) promote use of self-measured blood pressure monitoring
link and (2) link to clinical support.

Ongoing with program staff • • Minutes

Support staff to implement referral ofal-risk patients to com- munily
programs Of CDC resources.

Ohgoing-with program staff Minutes =:

pBJECTlVE.4: Work with Arthritis program staff to (1) coorifinate and facilitate arthritis communityengagement.sessions to inform planning efforts.and (2)'support Walk wjth Ease providerjraimng.

Activities _ Timeline Evaluation/Quality Measure

Schedule exploratory meeting wilh program staff to understand the purpose
and intent of community engagement sessions and identify best format to
soPcH stakeholder input (i .e. focus group. Inlervievv. consumer /prowder
survey).

April 2020 Minutes

Draft multi-faceted community engagement plar) Induding ottjectives..
recruitmeni and outreach of key stakeholders.

April.-June 2020 Plan drafted

Draft invitaUon language. April 2020 Inwtalion drafted

Identify each cdmmuriity engagement session. Ongoing'.. Miniftes .

Depending on the approved approach and tHidget for community

Engagemeni.assistprogram staffwith event script orresearch questions
for survey.

April 2l)21 Script suggestion drafted

Coordinate logistics of Walk with Ease provider training to provide
stipends as budgeted. By June 2020 Irtvoices

/«—OS"
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and
Manage Chronic Disease

.  EXHIBIT B-1 Work Plan

OBJECTIVE 5: Increase awareness of the NH Healthy Lives. Breast "and.Cenicai-Gaffcer Program (BCGP) re'a'cliiiig (ifjndividuats in iafgl®3!?rea?.in NH and (2) InM as_
■LGBTOI. _ - „ - ■' ■ o =

Activities TIrwIInc Evaluation/ Quality Measure

Meet wlh program staff to explore goal, objedive. cail lo action, and
Intended audience of BCCP campaign.

Within 30 days of contract approval Minutes with action items

Support Marl^eting consultant to .support the development of a strategic
mari^eling and communication plan for BCCP campaign in targeting areas and
to LGBTQ individuals induding core strategy and tactics and key performance
indicators {KPiy

Wjlhin 60-days of G S C contract
approval

Plan approved

Retain Marketing consultant as directed by DPHS. By June 2020 Consultant approved

Draft plan to conduct formative research as feasible TBD Report

Identified media as budget altows. TBD Invoices

Establish social accounts as feasible. TBD Axounis

Work with Marketing consultant to identify monthly on KPIs to report. As needed Report submitted

Develop new content as.needed. based on feedback and im- provemenl
process.

As needed Content approved

Gainpriorapprovalonalicampaignmaterialspriortodistribu- lion. Ongoing Approval files

Work with Marketing consultar?t to submit campaign performance report one
month after campaign launch, then quarterly.

Ongoing Report submitted

Submit annual report on effectiveness of BCCP awareness campaign
^ including; summary of placement and promotions, im- pressions bought and

defivered. post-buy analyses arfo additidrv almetricssuchas#cfclicks,
followrers. likes, andcomments
for social, and# of placements and polenlbl impressions for traditional
{based on plan). I^ls, reach and frequency of media
and recommendations for irfiprovement.

June 30.2021 Report submitted

m—^
RFP-2021-OPHS-03-eDUCA^1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services Professionai Education and Promotion to Prevent and

Manage Chronic Disease

EXHIBIT B-1 Work Plan

Submit report on aD information collectedcf any cancer refated meeting
suchasevaluationswithin 30-daysofmeeting(s).

Within'30-days of meeting Report Submitted

OBJECTIVE 6: Develop and Implement a public awareness campaign to.iricfease referrals to-and enrollmeot in the WISEWOMAN program. " ^ 9 "
•  •• • ■ rt ~ hT* a

Activities Timeline Evaluation/ Quality Measure

Meet with program staff to explore goal, objective. calHo action, and'
intended audience of WISEWOMAN campaign.

April 2020 Minutes

Draft strategy. 30 days from signed contract Strategy report

Retain'Marketing consultant as directed by DPHS.
Within 30 days of contract approval Consultant approved

Perform environmental scan of WSEWOMAN sodal markebng activities and

campaigns in up to 5 other states.
60 days from signed contract Brief report

Prepare application to JSIslnstitulionat Review Board for human subject
research for formative research w expected exempt status app/pval if

needed.

60 days from signed contract Application

Work with Marketing consultant and DPHS to determine the need for formative
research to determine imowledge. attitudes. andbehaviors(KAP)ofintended
audience forWISEWOMAN

(i .e. individuals between 40- 64 years who are enrolled in "
.8CCP) in subsequent contract years.

60 days from sigr>ed contract Brief report

Draft plan to conduct formative re^rch to assess factors that help or hinder
enrollment into WISEWOMAN services from those eligible for services
and referral sources as needed. ■{■

60 days from signed contract Brief report of findings

RFP-2021 -OPKS-O^-EOUCA-01

JSi Researct> & Training Institute. Inc.
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EXHIBIT B-1 Work Plan

•Support consultant to draft strategic marlteting and ccmmunicaiion
plan with key messages, strategies and tactics. l^t. aridcalMo-action.

100 days from .signed contract Plan approved

Explore the rteed with Marlceting consultant and DPHS staff to gather
audiertceinsighlonkeymessagesfromthosedigiblefor services and
referral sources.-

100 days from signed contract Summary of findings

Work with Marketing consultant to draft materiafs based on prior efforts
and audience insiohls. u

130 days from signed Materials approved

Draft plan to test social media (A/B testing) to optimize ptacement ofdigital
advertisements in subsequent contract years as needed.

50 days from Market Plan approval Results

Work with Marketing consullanl to.identify mediajo purchase with
vendors based on niarketing plan.

130 days from signed contract Invoices and in kinr^documented

Develop and create media assets such as digital and print ad. outreach
flyer, social media content. 150 days from signed contract Assets approved

Work with Marketing consultant to submit annual report on

effectiveness of W1SEW5MAN ̂rencss campargri induding: summary
of placement and pro- motions, impressohs bought and delivered, post-buy
analyses andaddrtionai metrics such a$#ofdicks, foflowers. likes, and
Gomrnentsforsodai.andffofplacementsandpotentialimpressionsfor
traditional (based on plan). KPis.reachandfrequency
of media and recommendations for improvement..

June 20. 2021 Report approved

RF P-2021 -DPHSe3-eOUCA-01
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and
Manage Chronic Disease

EXHIBIT C
Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by'100% Federal Funds from:
1.1. Improve the Health of Americans Through Prevention and Management

of Diabetes and Heart Disease, and Stroke; as awarded on August 25,
2020, by the Centers for Disease Control, and Prevention (CDC),
Prevention and Management of Diabetes and Heart Disease in NH.
CFDS #93.426. FAIN NU58DP006515;

1.2. Assistance Programs for Chronic Disease Prevention and Control;
National Center for Chronic Disease Prevention and-Health Promotion
as awarded on October 19, 2020, by the CDC, New Hampshire Public
Health Approaches to Addressing Arthritis, CFDA #93.945, FAIN#

'■ . NU58DP006448
1.3. Assistance Programs for Cancer Prevention and Control Programs for-

State. Territorial and Tribal Organizations, as awarded on August 24,
2020, by the. CDC, New Hampshire Breast & Cervical Cancer,
Comprehensize Cancer & Canoe Registry Programs, CFpA#93.898,
FAIN NU58DP006298; and .

1.4. WELL-INTEGF^TED SCREENING AND EVALUATION FOR WOMEN
ACROSS THE NATION (WISEWOMAN). as awarded on November 30.
2020, by the CDC. New Hampshire WISEWOMAN. CFDA #93.436,
FAINNU58OP006836

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:
2.1. The Departmeni has identified the Contractor as a Subreceipient , In

accordance with 2 CFR 200.330.

2.2. The Department has Identified this Contract as NON-R&D, in
accordance with 2 CFR §200.87.

2.3. The de minimis Indirect CosfRate of 10% applies in acoordance with 2
CFR §200.414.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures'
.  incurred in the fulfillment of this. Agreement, and shall be In accordance with

the approved line item, as specified In Exhibits C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-
.  18, Budget. The Contractor shall:

3.1. Meet the jn-kind match of an amount equal to a minimum of 25% of the
funding in this contract from the federal WISEWOMAN grant listed in
Section 1.4, in compliance with the funding requirements listed |h
Section T -

3.2. Ensure the annual required match is in non-federal coritributions either
in cash or in-kind related directly to carrying out the WISEV^f^Nj^

JSI Research 4 Tf#jnlrtg InsUiuJo. Inc. ExhibilC CoAlrector Initials,
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EXHIBIT C

activities and goals that may include an in-kind match of non-NH DHHS
funded coritributions of time, equipment, space, or dollars.

3.3. Submit bi-annual reports of itemized matching funds to the Department
no later than December 15th and June 15th annually.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the Department
by the frfteenth (15!h) working day of the follo>ving month, which identifies and
requests reimbursement.for authorized expenses Incurred in the'prior month.
The Contfaclpr shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the
Department in order to initiate payment.

5. The Contractor shall provide backup documentation with each monthly invoice
that includes, but is not limited to:

■5.1 .General Ledger inlcuding all revenue and expenses for this contract. ,
6. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and

emailed to DPHSContractBillinqOdhhs.nh.QOv. or invoices maybe mailed to:.
Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Plea^nt Street
Concord, NH 03301

7. The Department shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each Invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted Invoice and
if .sufficient funds are, available, subject.to Paragraph 4 of the General,
Provisions Form Number P-37 of this Agreement.

8. The final invoice shall be due to the Department no later than'forty (40) days
after the contract completion date specified in Form P.37. General Provisions
Block 1.7 Completion bate. \ '

9. The Contractor must provide the services in Exhibit B, Scope of Services, in
compliance'with funding requirements.

10. The Contractor agrees thal'funding under this Agreement may be withheld. In
vA\o\e or in part in the "event of non-compliance with the; terms .and conditions

-  of Exhibit 8. Scope of Services.

11. Notvyithstanding anything to the contrary herein, .the Contractor agrees that
funding under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event
of non-compliance with any Federal pr State law. rule or regulation applicable
to.the services provided, or if the said services or products have not been
satisfactorily completed In accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

12. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37. changes
limited to 'adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjustingencumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines thrPu^^e

JSI RwMrch & Tf8lrtlt>o Imlltoio, inc. ExhlWlC Controclor Initials
3/30/2021
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EXHIBIT C
Budget Office may be made by written .agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive CoOncil, if needed and
justified. . .

13. Audits

13.1. .The Contractor is required to submit an annual audit to the Department
if any of the following conditions exist:

13.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

13.1 ;2. Condition 8 - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:20. Ill-b. pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more:

13.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
^  by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to

subrnit an annual financial.audit.

.,i 3.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit'
perfomied by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
"200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost
Principles, and'Audil RequirementS'for Federal awards..

13.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by ari independent CPA within 120

.  days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

13.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than
$250,000 from the,Department during a single fiscal year, regardless
of the.funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual
financial audits performed by an independent CPA if the Department's
risk assessmerit determination indicates the Contractor is high-risk.

.. ' 13.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation pf obligations of the
'  Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the

.  Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments rnade under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

JSI Res«»/ct) & Tr^nlng InsUluto. Inc.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name: JS( Research & Training Institute. Inc. (JSI) d.b.a Community Health Irtstitute

Budget Request for; NH OHHS Professional Education and Promotion to Prev^and Manage Chronic Diseases
OlABSTnS

Budget Period: G & C Approval • Juno 30,2021

Total Program Cost Corrtractcr Share / Malch Funded by OHHS.corrtfact.sharo

Line Item ' Direct Indirect -Total Direct Indirect - Total - Direct -a ndlrecl Total

1. Total SalarviWages S 23.684.00 $ - S 23.684.00 S $ S S 23.684.00 S - S  23,684.00

2. Employee Bertents s 7.863.00 S $ 7,863.00 S S 5 s 7.863.00 S 5  7.853.00

3. Consultants % . 5 $ - s s S s • $ $

4. Equipment: s S S s s S  - - $ % $

Rental $ $ s 5 $ s $ s $.

Repair and Maintenance s $ $ 5 $ $ $ s

Pu^haseAJepreciation s . S - s - S 5 s $ s - S -

S. Supplies: s S 1.137.00 s 1.137.00 S $ $ s s 1.137,00 s 1.137.00

Educational s S . s - S $ s $ - s - s -

Lab s s s 5 s s s s s

Pharmacy s i $ $ $ s s $ s

Medical s s s $ s s s $ $

Offics $ s $ % s s s s s

6. Travel $ $ $ - % s s s $ $ -

7. Occupancy s 2,652.00 s - s 2.652.00 s s s s 2.652.00 s ■ s 2.652.00

8. Current Expenses s - $ 2.132.00 s 2,132.00 s 5 s s - S 2.132.00 s 2,132.00

Telephone s s $ - s $ s $ $ $ -

Postage , s $ s s $ s s s 5

Subscriptions i s $ 5 s s s 5 5  ' - •

Audit and Legal s s J s s s s S $ -

Insurance s 5 $ s s s. s s S •

Board Expenses s 5 s s s $ s $ s

9. Software s - S $ - s $  - - $ s - s $ •

10. Martcelirxj/Corrvnunici s 32.500.00 S - $ 32.500.00 5 % $ 32.500.00 5 • $ 32^500.00
11. Staff Education and Ti % . s 474.00 $ 474.00 S $ s s - $ 474.00 s 474.00

12. Subconiraets/Aqreerm s s s . s $ $ s - s -

13. Other s $ - $ • $ s s s -

Diabetes Events • Venue i s 5,000.00 $ $ 5.000.00 $ $ s 5 5.000.00 s $ . 5,000.00

Indirect costs s . % 7.058.00 7.058.00 s S s $ - S 7.058.00 > 7.058.00

• TOTAL s 71.699.00 $10,801.00 S itSOO.OO s i i s I 82,500.00

General Indirect As A Percent of Direct 15.1%

JSI Research Training Institute. Inc.
RFP-2021-OPH&O3-E0UCA-01
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Exhibil C -2 Heart Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name: JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc. (JSI) d.b.a Community Health Institute

Budget Request for: NH OHMS Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases
HEART

Budget Period: G & C Approval • June 30. 2021

Total Proqram'Cost Contmctor Share / htatch Fur>ded by.OHHS contract shaie .'t
Urto Item ■Direct Indirect Total ' Direct „ „• - .Ir^irect oTotel -., Direct • .  Indirect •-o , cTotfll a
t. Total Salary/Wages $ 23:421.00 $ S 23.42.1.00 6 ■ j . $ $  23.421.00 8 23.421.00
2. Employee Benefrts S 7.776.00 ■$ s 7.776.00 $ s * J  7.776.00 S 8  7.776.00
3. Consultants $ -

.  . $ - $ $ % 8 8
4. Equipment: s $. s S S s s 8 8
Rental ' $ $  .T ''' $-• ;• s s % 8 8  ••
Repair end Maintenance $  ■ $  - ^ $ s $ J  r'.. $ 8
Purchase/Depredation s s s $ $ $ $ 8 8
5. SuppDes: s $ 1.124.00 s 1.124.00 $ s $ $  • $  1.124.00 $  1.124.00
Educational $ s $ s $ $ S '8 8
Lab s $ $ s $ s s $  >
Pharmacy s i  •=- J I s s s 8 8  •'
Medical $ s s $ s s s 8 %

Offce s $ s $ s  - $ 8 8
6. Travel s - $ s . s $  •> • $ 8 8 8
7. Occupancy s 2.623.00 ■ S s 2.623.00 s J s S  2.523.00 8 8  2.623.00
6. Currer>t Expenses s S 2.108.00 i 2.108:00 { s $ 8 8  2.108.00 8 2,108.00
Teiephorte s  ̂ $ $ >  • $ $ -.5 8 8 s
Postaqe s $ $ $ s '$ 8 8 $
Subscript!or>s s $ $ s s 8 8
Audit and Leqal s s s s •-J s 8 X • 8
Insurance s $ $ $  - .• S  v $ 8 8 8
Board Expenses $ s s S  v.- J- • s 8 8 8
9. Software t ■ i  " ' s $ % i 8 8 8
10. Ma/ttelinq/Communi i 30.000.00 s s 30.000.00 s % % 8  30.000.00 8  • 8 30.000.00
11. Staff Education and i S  468.00 s 468.00 s $  -.i. '8 8  468.00 8  468.00
12. SubcontractsfAqree $ s •  . 5, $  'li $■ 8 8 8
13. Other.
Heart Events Venue & N s .  8.000.00 s $ 8.000.00 s $ S  '• 8  8,000.00 8 8 8.000.00

.

General indirect costs $-:6.980.00. 6.980.00 J -J," 8 8  6.980.00 $ 8.980.00
TOTAL s 71.820.00 $ 10.680.00 $ 82,S00.M s 1 ••J I  Yi.820.06 8  10,680.00 8 y2.600.00

General Indirect As A Percem of Direct

JSI Research Training Institute. Inc..
RFP.2021-OPHS-<J3-60tJCA-0t
Exhtbli C*2 Heart Budget
Page i .of t
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Exha>it C-3 ArthriUs Budget

^ New Hampshire Department or Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name: JSI Research 4 Training'lnstitutei Inc. (JSI) d.b.a Community Health Insthute

Budget Request for: NH OHHS Professiohal Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases
MTHfVTIS

Budget Period: G 4 C Approval.- June 30.2021

Total.ProQram Cost ■ ContractorShare/Match^ .-v..-. Funded by OHHS contract-share

Line, Item. -.t' -v "A Direct •  Indirect ^ Totals • ' Direct. ' Indirect • -  Jotal .  Direct- -  Indirect Total

1  Total Saldry/Waqes 1 6.924.00 J $  6.924.00 $ $ 3 6.924.00 3 3  ■ 6.924.00

2: Employee Benefits $ 2.299.00 $• • 5  2.299.00 s S 3  .i.-,- 3 2.299.00 $ 3  2.299.00

3. Consultants $ $ $ $  - $ $ 3 $

4  Equipment: 5 s  •- $ s S $ 3 $ S  •*-'

$ S S s _ S  -V. 3 $ $ s

$  • $ s S $ S 3 $ . 5

$ J $ $ $  • S •- 3 $ $

$ $  332.00 $  332.00 • $ $  rV $ S 3  332.00 S  332.00

S S  •?: S 5 S $ S - $ $

S s $ S  - ' S,V! s 3  -.-• • • $  - • 5

$ 5 3 3  f;. 3 3 3

$ $ S s $ 3  i-t. S 3  ' • '

5 5 $ $ $ 3  •: 3  • 3  . •••■ • 5

$ . 5 $  - S • S . 3 3 3

776.00 S  776.00 s $■ 3 $  776.00 5 3  776.00

$ %  623.00 S  '623.00 S $ 5 3  623.00 $  623.00

$ j s $ $ 3 3 3  • ;• •• 3

$ S • $  . J 5 3 3  r-.. 3 3  ••

$ $ $ 5 J 3 :St - ; 3 3

$ 5 $ s 3 • ' 3 $ 3 ' • *'•

;S $ $ $ S $  - 3 3 5

$ g $ $ s 3 :t:, ♦ 3  r 3 . 3

9. Software . s S  * $ S s s  ••• ' 3 3

10. MarttelinqfCoiTimunic s j j 3  - ■' 3 3 $ . 3

11. Staff Education and ' ' s ■ ^ S  138.00 S  138.00 J. r---.- .$ 3 3  - 3- 138.00 3  138.00

5 j $ $' 3 3 3 3 3

13. Other (specific detail. S j 5 $ 3 S 3 $

% 345.00 j 5  345.00 $ 3 $ 3  345.00 3 $  345.00

Stipend for Walk with Ea* S •  1.500.00 $ 5  1.500.00 s 3  • S' ■ ♦ S 1.500.00 "3. 3  1.500.00

General lr>direct costs
'  TOTAL- :;

% S . 2.063.00 5  2.063.00 s 3. -j 3 3 s ^oe3.oo 3  2.063.00

i 11,844.00 S  3,156.00 S  15.00O.OO 1 5 13 1 3 . • 311,844.00 1 3 3,1S6.0b IS. -1S.UO.00

General Indirect As A Percent of Direct

JSI Research Training Institute, inc.
RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDUC/W)1
Ejdiibit C-3 Arthritis Budget
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name: JSl Research & Training ImiUute, Inc'. (JSl) d.b^ Community Keaith Irrstitute

Budget Request for NH DHHS Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent arid Manage Chronic Diseases
8CCP

Budget Period: G & C Approval • June-30, 2021

.. Total Program Cost ~ Contractor Share 1 Match, a Funded'by OHMS'cdfnractstiare': a:-

Line item .* Direct .indirect- Total' •--■•Oirect ,r- .  Indire^-r' -Total. HOIrect 6. " Indirect,^b- Oijotah
1. Tola! SalaryiWaqes S  7.938.00 S $ 7.938.00 S s -•$ s -$ 7.938.00 8 8 7.938.00

2. Employee Benefits J  2.836.00 S  -i $ 2.636.00 s  .--y S  ■; 8 S  . 2.636.00 S 2,636.00

3. Consuflanis j J S - S S  7 8 8 8 8 -

4. Eoulpment; j J $ s  • $ S  ' • 8 8

Rental $ S s  .% $ 8 8 8  • 8

Repair and Maintenance s $  7. s S s 8 8 8

Purchase/Depreciation S -• $ S 5 8 $ $ J 8

5. Supplies: s S  381.00 S 381.00 s  > 8 8 8 $  381.00 8 381.00

Educational $ s "■ $ s 8 S S 8 8 -

Lab s s $  i' s 8 8 8 8

Pharmacy s s t S  7 8 S  -y 8 8 . S

Medical $  ?• $ 8 s 8  7 8 S 8 8

Office S $ S $ $  - 8 8 8 8

5. Travel s s S •- y 8 8 $ 8 8 -

7. Occupancy $  889.00 $ s 889.00 $  i- 8 8 8  689.00 8 8 689.00

e. Cufreni Experwes j S  715.00 s 715.00 $  > 8 8 s 8  715.00 8 715.00

Telephone % $ S  i- S 8 s 8 8

Postage s $ i 8  ■ 8 8  • $  - 8

Sut»c/iptions $ s s $ S 8 $ 8 8

Audit and Legal $  ri s J s S 8 8 8 $

Insurance i  1- $ s 6* 8 S 8 8

Board Exoerrses j  - • $ s 5 $ 8 8 8 8

9. Software : s - $ s -- S S 8 $ 8 S • 7':

10. Marhetlfvi/Commumcations S  7.000.00 s s 7.000.00 $  ;• $ 8 8  7.000.00 8 8 7.000.00

11. Staff Education and Training s S . 159.00j s 159.00 $ $ 8 8 8  159.00 8 159.00

12. Sut>contracts/AQreements $ " s V- $ s  - 8 8 8 -

13. Other (specific details mandatory): s $ $ J $  • - 8 8 8 8 -

Madtetino • Purchase & Place Media S  2.500.00 $ s 2.500.00. S s  -♦ S $  2.500.00 S 8 2.500.00

s $  • 7-' s $ S  . S- <8 -;■-•••• 8 8 •

General Indirect As-A Percent of Direct s S  3.023.00 s 3023.00 S S 8  - s $ • 3 023.00 8 3.023.00

TOTAL S 20,963.00 S 4.278.00 I 25.241.0^ i  - i ,8 - 1 8 20,963.00 i  4^78.00 i 25,241.00

General indirect As A Percent of Oiroc • 20.4%

-JSl Research Training inslituta. Inc.
RFP.2021-DPHS-03-eDUCA-01
Exh%)tt C-4 BCCP Budget
Page i ofi

(5
Contractor Initiab

Date.
3/30/2021



bocuSIgn Envelope 10: 232E6942-004A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F4.1DtE
OocuSIgn Envelope 10: r78l£62»«577^BtA-94C44::e6C0792FCA4

Exnitit C-S Comprehenshw Cancer Budget

General indirect As A Percent of Olrvtt t$.2%

Now-Hampshirv Department of Health and Human Services

eiddtrfPregrem Ktme: JSI Research a Training Institute, Inc. (JSI) d.b.a Comrsunfry Hnaltn InstlTute

Bttdgrt Request for NH OWS Professional Education ar>d Promotion to Prevent end Manege Chronic

COaifPOuicas

Diseases

r-

Budget Parted: G a C Approval ■ June M. 2021
'

;  Total Proqram Cost Contractor Share 1 Match Funded by DHHS contract share T]

One Item Direct Indirect Total . Direct Indirect Total - Direct - Indlract Total l

1. Total Satsryrwaoes S- 1.000.00 s 3  1.000.00 3 3 3 3 f.OtXI.OO 3 3  1.000.00

2. Emplovee BcneTits S  333.00 3 3 . 333.00 3  •••'- 3  - 3 33J.00 3  -• 3  3J3.00

3. Consi,at8nt9 S  ; •< 3 3 3 3  -. 3  -.-v.- 3

4. EouiDmeni: » 3 3  - i 3 3 3 . . i"!-. 3

Rental s 3 ' 3 '3 3 3 S 3 • ■ 3

Reoafr and Maintenance S 3 .3 3 3 3  r-r' 3 3

Puntfas^Depreeiation $ 3  -v.- 3 • 3 3  v.- • $ $ 3- 3

5.. Suppdes: 5 3  40.00 3  40.00 3  • .V 3  '-V . 3 3 3  40.00 3  40.W

Educational' a  i,—. 3  ..j 3 3 3 3  -■?. 3 3 3

1 yn S 3 3 3 3  • 3 3 3

PnamacY i 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

Medical » 3  '"o 3 3 3  v 3 3  •: . 3  • 3

Oitioe j 3  .-I 3 S 3  .• 3 S

6. Travel s s 3 3  -i. 3 3 3  -• 3 .

7. Oocuoancv i  112.00 3 3 . 112.00 3 3  'i 3 3  112.00 3 3  112.00

8. Current expenses J 3  90.00 3  90.00 3  . 3 3 S 3  90.00 3  90.00

Telephone s 3 3 3 3  i. 3  .rv- 3 3 3

Pestaoo 3 3 3  -r- ' 3 3  ' - 3  -i 3

Subseriotions 3 $  •• 3 3  :• 3 3  ..-.i- 3 3

Autftertd Leoal J 3 3  ;j.,. 3 3 3 3 3
Insurance s 3 3 3 3  i' 3 3 3  -C 3

Boerd Exoensas 5  , .... 3 S 3 3 3 3 3

9. SoRware 3 3 i3 '• 3 3 3 •3 3

10. Marttetinq/Comfflunications S 3 3 3- 3 S

11. Staff Education and Trairtnq 3 3  20.00 3  20.00 3 3 3 > 3  r 3  20.00 3  2aoo

12. Subcontraets/Aqrecnents 3 3 3 3 . 3 3 3 3 3

13. Other (specific details mandat 3  • • 3 3 3 3  <•' 3 3 3 3

SuMvorVtip Event • Food & VcfM 3 3 3 3 -i.. 3 3

Cancer Cooaoorative Meeting 3  2.897.00 3 3 2.097.00 $  -■i-. 3 3 3 2.097.00 3  . i- 3 2897.00

General intfreet costs 3 3  SOO.M 3  SOO.OO 3  .. 3 3  SOO.OO 3  SOO.OO
•Toraj;" S  4.342.00: 3  830.00 I  - 3  • 4  , ri^.ii'2.IU} 3 . 830.00 3  5.000.00 1

survNcrxtdp events vMont m taUng piaea

JSI Reaeareft TraWng insjiiuie. tnc.
RFP-»i1^PHS-O3-EOUCA-0l
ExniUt C-5 Comprehensive Cancer Budget
Page i ol i

(5
Convactor Mtiais
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Odte-



DocoSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-OD4A-4e6F-91AE-4685A3F41DlE

DocuSign Envelope ID: R81ES^S77-4aiA-9<C4-Ce8C0792FCA4
. EsMkl 06 WISEWOMAN Ekjdget

Now Hampshiro Department of Health and Human Services

Sldder^rogrBm Name: JSI Research & Training Instltuto. Inc. (JS1) <Lb.a Community Heaith Institute

Budget Request for. NH DKKS ProTessionsI Education and Promotion to Prevent and Martsge Chronic Diseases
VMSfMOWAW

Budget Period: C & C Apprevai • June SO. 2021 '

TotsFProoram Cost Contractor Share / Match -.Funded by.l>HNSxontr8ct share

Una Item Direct .T indirect Yetal - Diroct ;• Indirect > Total . Olrect.-i x>cr.-indirect/rT«vjnT otal,

1. TotaJ Satary/waoes S  13.733.00 s 8 13.733.00 8  • $ 8 8  • 13.733.00 8 8 13.733.00

2. Emctoree Benem i  4.560.00 I . .X 8 4.560.00 8 S 8 8  4.560.00 8 8 4.560.00

3. Consiitarts i  ' 8 • V-' 8  •• 8 8 8 8 8 -

4. Eoiipmenc % 8 8 8 $ 8

Rerttai $ 8 $ s  -- 8  >': S 8 8

Reoair end Main:enarx:e $ - v s . 8 8 8 8 8 8 8  .

Purchase/Oeoredation S s - 8 8 s 8 8 8 8 •

5. SuDOfies: 5 661.00 8 661.00 8 8 8  •/. 8  •• -8 661.00 8.  661.00

Educatioral 5 8 • • 8 S 8 8 8  •• 8

Lob j J 8 ■ 8 8 . 8 8 8 8

Pharmacv j S 8 8 8  ?• 8 8 8

Medical S $ 8 8 8 8 8  • 8 8

Oftee $■ S 8 • 8 8 8 5 8 8 -

5. .Trovei S  200.00 % 8 200.00 8 8 8  -< 8  200.00 8 8 200.00

7. Occupancy S  1.S3S.OO % i.- 8 1.539.00 8 8 8 8  1.539.00 8 8 1.539.00

8. -Current E»ertses S 1.237.00 8 1.237.00 8 8 8  . 8 1.237.00 8 1.237.00

Telephorte s  V s v.. 8 •V- 8 8  •• 8 8  . 8 S •

Postaoe $ s 8 8 8 8 8 / i. 8  V ■ 8

Subscrtpiions s 8 8 8 8 8  •- 8 8 8

Audit and Leoai s 8  r':--. 8 8 $ 8  .•> 8 8

insurance $ 8 8 8  .- 8" 8  • 8 8

Board Expenses s 8 8 8  . -L 8 8  • 8 S 8

9. Sotlware s 8. 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 -

10. MarketifKi/Cooinuricalion: S  17.500.00 8 ... 8 17.500.00 8- 8 8 8  17.500.00 8 8 17.500.00

11. Sun Education ard Trair« s 8 276.00 S 276.00 8 8  • • 8 8 8 276.00 8 276.00

12. Subcontraos/Aoreemems i 8 8 •  .. 8- .-ij- 8 8 8 8 •

13. Other (spedSc details mandatory): 8 8 8 -• 8 $• 8 8 8 -

Metfa Camoaign 8 Print Mater S  30.700.00 S 8 30.700.00 8 15.000.00 8 8 15.000.00 8  15.700.00 8 8 15.700.00

Phouvideo License 5  300.00 8 8 300.00 8  i. 8 8 8  300.00 8 8 300.00
:•> •

Website Plugins 8 Suptnn S  200.00 8 - 8 200.00 8 8 8  ' 200.00 8 8 200.00

Gerwra) Indireet cosb s 8 4.094.00 8 4 094J 0 8 ^  ■ ■- 8 8 8 4.094.00 8 4.094.00
TOTAL S .-68.732.00 8 6,268.00 8  15.000.00 i .8 -15.000.00 8 6.266.00

no suvey this FY
'noFGthriFY

JSI Research Treinirg inc.
RfP.2021-OPHS-03-EOUCA^1
Exhibit C-S WISEWOMAN Budget

'Pago 1 of 1

Contractor Initials.
3/30/2021

Date.



DocuSign Envelope ID; 232E6942-OD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F4101E

DocuSign Envelope ID: F78tE629-65r7-4BlA.94C4-Ce8C0792FCA4
Exha)-! C -7 Diabetes BuOget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

BidcJef/Program Namo: JSI Research & Trainlng lnsUluto. Inc. (JSI) d.b.a Community Haalih Institute

Budget Request tor NH OHHS Professional Education end Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases

Budget Period: July 1.2021 - Juno 30. 2022

Line Item

1.- Total Salary/Wages

2. Employee Benefits

Direct

Totel Program Cost
Indirect * Total

33.15B.00

ii.ooe.oo

S 33.1&S.00
i 11,008.00

.' Contractor Share i Match'

"Direct Indirect - S TottI

Funded.tjyOHHS contractsherer-
;Direct aq^Chlhdi.ract .l. IPnTotaW
33.158.00

11.008.00

33.158.00

11.008.00

3. Consultants

4. -Equipfneof

Rental S •

Repair erwl Maintenance
$■
$ 1.592.00 S  1.592.00

Educational
Ub
Pharmacy
Medical
Office
6. Travel
7. Occuparrcy 3.714.00 S 3.714.00

S 2.984.00 8 2.984.00

3.714.00
i 2.384.00

3.714.00
2.984.00

Telephone
Postage
Subscriptions
Audit and Legal
Insurance

9. Scftvwc
10. MattetinQ/Conimunica 10.000.00
11. SlaH Education and Ti 683.00

10.000.00 10,000.(

663.00 i  663.00

12. Subcontracts/Aqreeffw
13. Other Diabetes Stiper 23.000.00 S 23.000.00

2 Diabetes Events - Venue 19.000.00 S 19.000.00

23.000.00
19.000.00

10.000.C
663.00

23.000.00
19.000.00

General.Indirect Costs
TOTAiL

i 9.881.00
99.880.00 1 815.120.00

9.881.00
Sif5.0M.OO IL

S 9.881.00 9.681.00
115.000.00

General Indirect As A Percent of Direct

JSI Research Training Institute. Inc.
RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EDtJCA451
Exhibit C-7 Diabetes Budget
Page i of 1

15.1%

Contractor Iniitais.
3/30/2021

Dale.



DocuSign Env8k>pe ID: 232E6942.DD4A-4E6F-91AE-46d5A3F4101E

DocuSign Envelope 10: F781E629^77^Sia.94G4-C68c6792FCA4
E^ibH C Head Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Sidder^rogram Name; JSI Roaeareh & Training Inatituto, Inc. (JSI) d.b.a Community Health Institute

Budget Request for; NH OHMS Profosstonal Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases
HSAKT

Budget Period; July 1, 2021 • June 30, 2022

To&l Program,.Cost . Contractor Share-'/ Match - ..Funded by OHMS contract share o 1
Line Item^ • Oifo.ct • ndirect .-i Total ... "Direct „ indirect _■ " Total -* Direct-T s Indirect-

•
Total.

y. Total Saiary/Waqes S 33.158.00 s -- S 33.158.00 s $ S  33.156.00 $  T $ 33.158.00
2. Ennployee Benefits S  11.006.00 s 11.008.00. 5 $ S 5  11,008.00 s $ 11.008.00
3. Consultants s 5 $ S 5 J  . -v $ 5 [T -

4. Equipmenf s 5 $  - 5 s $  • K $  • S s
Rental $  .7. s $ $ $ $ s $  -
Repair arxf Maintenance s $ $ s $ $
Purchase/Depredation $ S s • 5  - s s s s -

S. Supplies:' s s 1.592.00 s 1,592.00 $ $ $ 5  1.592.00 s 1.592.00
Educational s $ • • s S % s $ $ $ .

Lab s s s S $ s $ $ s
Pharmacy s S  =•; J 5  :• $ s s S  IT
Medical .s $ $ 5 s s $ 5
Office s $ . $ s s $ i J
S. Travel s S i 5  - 5 5 S -

7. Occupancy $  -3.714.00 5 . s 3.714.00 5 s 5 5  3.714.00 s $ 3.714.00
8. Current Expenses s S 2.984.00 s • 2.984.00 5 $ $ $ S  2.984.00 $ 2.984.00
Tel8phor>e $ $ . 5 s 5 S j 5 .

Postage s s $ $  - $ " S s s s

Subscrlpiions s $ 5 5 s 5 s 5 5

Audit and Legal s s $ S s S s  - $

Insurence s i  r s S s $ S  r s
Board Ejq>ense$ s 5 $ J 5 S $ s
9. Software s J $ . S s S s s 5 .

10. Marlietinq/Communl S  10.000.00 s ••• $ 10.000.00 j, s $ S' 10.000.00 $ S

o
o

d
8

o

11. SiaK Education and s s 663.00 5 663.00 $ $.• s %  663.00 $ 663.00
12. Subcontracts/Aqree $ s - S - s s s s $ S .

13. Other Heart Stipem 5 23.500.00 $ • $ 23.500.00 $ $■ 5  ' 23.500.00 % 1 $ 23.500.00
Heart Events - Venue & s 18.500.00 s . s 18:500.00 s 5- S  t8.500.00 % 16.500.00

1  1 1 1  •
General indirect Costs s 99380.00 1[T '9.881.001rr 9.881.00 $ 5 s $ i  9.881.00 s 9.881.00

TOTAL 1 S 15.120.00 1nr 5  •

JSI Research Training Institute, Inc.
RFP.2O21-OPHS-03-EOUCA-01 .
Exhibit Heart Budget
Page i of i

Contractor Initials
5

Date
3/30/2021



OocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-91AE-4S85A3F41D1E

DccuSign Envelope fO: F781E629«577-4B1A-9*C4-C88C0792FCA4
ExhibU C-9 Arthribs Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

BidderfProgram-Name; JSI Research 4 Training Institute, Inc. {JSI) d.b.a Community Hoallh Inslrtuto

Budget Request for NH OHHS Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases
ARTHfUTlS -■

i--

Budget Period; July 1, 2021 -June 30, 2022

Lino Item

Total Program Cost » Contractor Share /.Match Funded -by OHNStcontract share . n
Direct Indirect Jotal, • iDirect . .. Indirect '.iTo.tat Direct-- Indirect"" > - "Total

1. Total Salarv/Waqes $  6.924.00 J S  6.924.00 s .s $ 6.924.00 s 5  , 6.924.00

2. Empio/ee Benefits S  2:299.00 S  2.299.00 $ 6 S  .r S 2.299.00 $ J  2.299.00

3. Consultants $ $ $ $ • ♦ S S  .- i.- 5 5 .$

4. EQuipmeni: j $ $ s. > ■••• S S $ .$ S  1?^

Rental 5 } J s s $ $ $ s

Repair and Maintenance $ 5 s 5" $ s

PurchasefDepredation 5 $  - $ s s  • • $ S S s

5. Supplies: s $  332.00 $  332.00 $ $ $  ». , $ •- 6  332.00 S  332.00

Educational $ $ , $ S . s S  :• $ S  . $
j- $ $ s s $ $

Pharmacy j s % $ s S  -• 6 s 6

Medical $ s 5 $ $ S  '.V S 5 S

Office $ • s S  r;- s $ $ s

S. Travel s 5 % $  T- S  - s s $ J  ' •

7.' Occupancy $  776.00 $ 6  776.00 S  . »- s • $ $  776.00 J S  776.00

6. Current Expenses s S  623.00 $  623.00 s S $  .r , S S  623.00 S  623.00

Telephone 5 5 s 6 $ s $ $ $

Postaoe s % s s s $ $

Subscriptions j S $  . s $ $  ~ > 5 5

Audit and Legal s 6 s s $ s s •5 S

Insurance s 5 $ $ $ s $ 5  -r

Board Expenses s 5  • - s S s S  -- $ 5  . • • S. .

9. SoRware 5 $ s S  'V- $ S  --s- ' s 5- $

10. Marketino/Communic % j $ $ s. $  - s $ s

11. Staff Education and ' S  138.00 S  -138.00 s s $ s $  138.00 $  138.00

12. Subconlracts/Aoreerr $ 5 $  • s $  •• $ $ $

13. Other (speciric detail: s $ % 5 s $ J

Incenbves for Focus Groi S  .34S.00 $ $  345.00 S  • $ S  34S.OO $ $  345.00

Stipeertd for Walk with Et 5  1.500.00 $ $  1.SOO.OO s $ $ 1.500.00 S  - S  1.500.00.

GeneraMrtdireci 5 $• 2,063.00. t  2.063.00 s s S s S 2 063.00 6  2 063.00

TOTAL $  11.644.00 1 $• 3,156.00- 1  ̂5,M6.00J_5 * J S1ii844.00 5 3,156.00 1 6 - 15,000.00

JSi Research Training Institute, inc.
RFP-2021-OPHS-03-EDUCA-01

'Exh2>it C-9 Ahhribs Budget
Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials

Oate^
3/30/2021



■OocuSlgn Envelope ID: 232E6942-004A^E6F-91AE-4685A3F41D1E
DocuSJgn Errvelope rO: F7eiE629-6S7?-4BlA-94C4^e8C0792FCA4

Exha>a C-10 8CCP Budget

Hampshire Department of Health arid Human Services

Bidder/Prosram Name; JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. (JSl) d.b.a Community Hearth Irtstltuto

Budget Request for: NH DHHS Professkmal Education and Promotion to Preverlt and Manage Chronic Diseases
eccp

Budget Period: July - June 30. 2022

Line Item
1. Total Satary/Wages

TotalI.
Direct

Prog
^indlrr

ram Cost
ect Tout

S  11.622.00 S 1t.622.00

Contractor Share/Match '

Direct irtdlrect Total.-
Funded by DHHS cortttacfsharep

/lOlreef- litdlreet. . .Totaia
S  11.622.00 11.622.00

2. Employee-BeftenS^ S  3.859.00 3.859.00

3. Consultants

3.859.00

4. Eouipment:
Rental

Repair and Maintenance
Pufchase/Oepreciation ■
5. SuppEes: 558.00 558.00 558.00 558.00

Educational
Lab
Pharmacy
Medical
Office
6. Travel
'. Occupancy 1.302.00 1.302.00 1.302.00

8. Current Expenses 1.048.00 S  1.046.00 1.046.00

Telephonq
Postage
SubscripUons
Audit and Legal
Insurance
Board Expenses

1.302.00
1.046.00

9. SolNvare
10. Martcetinq/Commuf^ications 16.000.00 8 16.000.00 16.000.00 16.000.00

11. Staff Education and Training 231.00 231.00 231.00 231.00

12. Subcontracts/AQfeements
13. Other (specfc details mandatory):
Marltet^ - Purchase 8 Place Media

General Indirect Costs
TOTAL

12.500.00 $ 12.500.00 12.500.00 12.500.'

S  5.123.00

General (ndirect As A Percent of Direct
45.283.00 I t 6,958.00

l5A^f

5  .5.123.00
rrs5!5ms fr

5.123.00 5.123.00

JSI Research Training Institute. Inc
RFP.202l0PHS-03-EDUCA4)1
Exhibit C-10 6CCP Budget
Page 1 of 1

Contractor Irti^ab

Data.
3/30/2031



DocuSign Envelope 10: 232E6942-DD4A-4E6F-91AE-468SA3F41D1E

OocuSign Enve^ lb; F78Ae62«5T7^BlA^C4-Ce8C0792FCA4
E*hiWt C-11 Comprehensive Cencer Sudgel

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

BldderfProgram Name; JSI Research & Trwning Institute, inc. |JSI) d.bji Community Health tnstittrte

Budget Request for NH OHHS Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases
coMP CANcen

Budget Period; Juty t, 2021 - Juno 30. 2022

General indirect As A Percent of Direct

JSI Research Tral/dng Institute, (nc.
RFP.2021-OPHS-03-eOUCAJ)1

Cxh2>ltC-V1 Comprehensive Cancer Budget
Page 1 ofi

Total Program Cost -  . Contractor Share'Match j Funded by DHHS contract share

Line Item Direct Indirect : Total , Direct r< Indirect Total 1 Direct indirect Total

1. Total Salary/Waqes s  1.000.00 $ S  1.000.00 $ J 8 8 1,000.00 s 8  1.000.00

2. Employee Benefits . S  333.00 : 5  333.00 5 8  - 8  333.00 -8 8 - 333.00

5  •• t s 5 S 8  •: 8 8 8

$ % 5  * .V 5 8 8 $

$ i s $ s 8 8 8 J.

S S s  . S 8 $ 8 8:

Fhnthase/Depredation j s $ s 8 8 8 8"

j s  48.00 t  .48.00 S  --V ■ $ 8 8 8  48.00 8  48.00

s s 3* ■ • 8 $ $ 8" 8.

Lab s S S S 8 8  I-

$ $ 8 8 $ 8 8

S ' ■*' s $ 8 $ 8  > $ ■ •? $

S s s $ s 8 8  '• 8,

J s S S 8 8  - 8 8

7. Occupancy S  112.00 s S  112.00 $ 8 8 8  112.00 8 S  112.00

j $  90.00 S  90.00 $ 8 8 8 8  90.00 8  90.00

5  ̂ $ s s 8 8 $ 8 8

5 j i s 8 8 8  r- 8

5 $ s s 8 8 •8. 8

5 s $ 5 $ .8 • 8 S 8

$ J $ S 8 8 8  -> 8 8  j-

j s s s S S 8 8

$ s s s 8- 8 8 8 8

10. MarketinQ/Communcations j s 8  > i 8 8  ;♦ 8 8  >>.*-■ 8

11. Statf Education and Traintnq ) S  20.00 S  20.00 s .8 8 $ 8  20.00 8  20.00

13 Subcontraels/Aareements S $ $ 5 8 8 8 8  -

13. Other (soeofc deta9s mandatd S ■- s s % 8 8  • 8 8 8

.^ufvivofship Event:- Food 4 Venut 1 *• $ S $ $ 8 8 8

Cancer CoQaboraifve Meetmqs 1 S 2.897.00 $ 'S '2.897.00 $ 8 ■ 8 S 2.897.00 8 8  2.697.00

CEl/S *
$ . • S  ■' s 8 8 i" I %

1 i S  500.00 5 - 500.00 s 8  - 8  500.00 s  soo.oo.

V- • TOTAL \ \ 1 4,342.00 -$ • 658.00 i -1 • I ■ 8-4,342.00 18 S^.Oo S  5,0&6.0D
15.2%

Contractor tnitiab-

Dato_
3/30/2021



DodiSign Envelope ID: 232E6942^D4A-4E6F-91AE-4605A3F41D1E
DocuStgn Envelope tO:F7eiE629-6577-4B1A-94(^8eC0792FCA4

Ezhibil C-12 WiSEWOMAN 8udQ8t

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

BldderrProgram N»mo; JSI Rwearch « Training Inatttwte, inc. {JSI) e.b.i Coiwnunlty Heatlh initttuto

Budgot Request'fen NH DHHS Professlonil Education arvd Promotion to Prevantand Manage Chronic .Diseases
WtSSHOWAW

Butfgot PoHod: July 1, 2021 - June 30. 2022 ~ '

Total Program Cost _] Contractor Share 1 Match 1 p ' Funded by OHHS contract Share . j

l.lno Item o Direct Indirect •- •Total" ■ Direct Indirect Total. „• Direct ' Indirect X. ...Tout- •; 1

1.'Total SaiarvfWms S tC.tOS.OO 3 -  1 3 14.105.x 3 . •"•1 3 3 3 14.105.x 3
■

t4.105.X

2. Empioree BeneAis & 4.G83.00 $  .?. 3 4.683.x 3  .r. 5 3 .4.$83.X 3 3 4.683.x

i . 3  •' 3 . -
$ 3 3 3 - 3 3 -  ■

i 3 3  -?> 3 3 3 3

3  • 3  • 3 3 3  .••-:■■ 3
*

3  ••

Repair end Maintenance •3 3 3 • 3 3  .-r- 3  . 3

j 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 -

j 3 677.x S 677.x 3 3 3 3 677.x 3 877.M

3 3 -• 3 3 3 3 3 - 3

s 3 3 3 3  - = 3

j 3 3 3  '- 3 3 3 3
5 j $ 3  '• 3 3 3 3

S .. 3 3 r. 3 3 3 3- 3 3 •  ■

6. Travel 3 300.00 8 3 300.x 3  i 3 3 3X.X 3 3 3X.X

7. Occxrpancv i i.sao.x "♦ ! 3 i.seo.x 3 3 '' 3 1.580.x 3 - 3 1.580.x

8. Current Expenses s . 3 t.270.X 3 1.270.x 3 3 • 3 1.270.x 3 1.270.x

Teiephorte 3 3 -- 3 .'r 5 3  . r. 3 --- 3 •

Postaoa > n— 3 t.- 3 3 3 3 3

Subscript iofts rr 3 3 5  -i 3  - 3  -J 3 3 3

Atxllt and Leoal s 3 <- 3 3 3 3 3 3

Insurance s 3 3 3 3  - 3 3  ;•? 3

Board Doenses $ • 3 3 3 3 3 3 3  ■

9. Software 3 . 3 3 .i. 3 3 3 •• 3 3 -

to. MarketinorCemrmffvcationi s. s.ooo.x 3 3 s.ox.x 3 3  > 3 l:. .-1 5 S.OX.X 3 3 S.OX.X

tt.' Staff Education and Trainir 3 . 3 282.x 3 282.x 3 3' '.i - 3 3 • 3 282.x 3 282.x

12. Subcentracts/Aofeements 1 3 • . • 1 3 3 •> 3 $ 3  r-- 3 3 -

13. Other (specKic details mandatory): 3 3 ■. 3  > 3 ■ 3 3 •

Media Camoaian & Print Materi J 35.000.X 3 3 35:0X.X 3 1 S.OX.X 3 3 tS.OX.OO 20.0X.X 3 3 x.ox.x

Pre-Post Survmr ' 3 6.000.X 3 3 6.0X.X 3 5 3  - - e.ox.x 3 3 e.ox.x

Virtual Focus Groups A. 1.000.x 3 1.0X.X 3 3 3 1.0X.X u. -• - 3 1.0X.X

PhotWdeo License 3 3X.X 3 3 3X.X 3 3 3  t' 3X.X li—^ 3 3X.X

ATBTestmo 3 5X.X 3 3 SXX 3 3 3 3_ 5X.X li- 3 5X.X

Websiia Piugirrs & SuxMd 3 IX.X 1$ /- 3 IX.X 3  • 3  - 3 IX.X LL 3 IX.X

Gerteral Indbeci costs $ . 4.X3.X 1 3 4.2X.X .St S ftj 4.203.x iS_4iOXX
TOTAL 3 68.S88.X iT S,432.W i 3 76.IKXI.00 i 1&.0X.W-

JSI Research TraMng Irsiituta. Inc.
RFP-2021-OPHS-Oa-EDUCAOI
£;dr:bitC'12 W1SEW0MAN Budget
Page t of 1

E
Contracior.lnlttals

Date.
3/30/2021



OocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-DO4A-4E6F-9tAE-46e5A3F4101E
DocuSign Envetope ID; F7eiE629W7-«8lAr94C4-C88C0792FCA4

£xh!M C -^3 Diabetes Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name: JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. (JSI) d.b^ Community Health Institute

Budget Request for: NH OHHS Professional Education and Promotiort to Prevent and Martage Chronic Diseases
oaesTES

Budget Period: July 1,2022 •Juno 30, 2023

•- Total Program Cost t, Contractor Share f Match Funded I>y DHHS'contract share ■■ -

Lino Item Direct Indirect Total • Direct Indirect ■ TotaU - „plrect>:„ .. ̂Indirect."  Total

1. Total SalaryAVages S 33.158.00 3 .S. 3 33.158.00 $ . S :• S S  33.158.00 3 3  33.158.00

2. Employee Benefits s 11.008.00 3 3 11.008.00 3  r- . 5  .. .-.••• S 3  11.006.00 3 $  11.008.00

3. Consultants' s 'i- 3 S - 3 3 3 3 3

4. EQuipment; s 3 3, 3 3  . s 3 3 3  .♦ ..

Rental S  > 'S 3 S $ 3 3 3 5

Repair and Maiidenance J 3 3 $  • % 5 3 3

PurchaseiOepreciation •' 5  i S . 3 . s 3 3  • 3 S 3

5. Suppres: s s 1.592.00 3 1.592.00 $ 3 3 3 5 1592.00 3  1.592.00

Educational S  s .3 - $ • $ 3  . 3 3 3 3

Lab s 3  - 3  - 3 3 3 3 5 3

Phamiacv s 3 $ 3 3  7 3 S 3 3

Medical 5 $ 3 S 3  •" ■• 3  •- 3. 3  -

Offeo S 3 3 s $ 3 s  >. 3 ■ 3

6. Travel s .. 3 3 .. s S 3 S 3

7. Occupartcy s 3.714.00 $ - 3 3.714.00 s  - 3 $ 3  3.714.00 S S  3.714.00

8. Curreni Expenses 3 S 2.984.00 3 2.984.00 % s 3 3  4 3 2.984.00 3  2.984.00

Telephone S 3 . S •• 3  r 3 3 3 3 3

Postage * $ 3 s 5 3 $ 3

Subscriptions S S s 5 3 3 3 3 S

Audit and Legal 5 3 s 3 . 3 S S 3 3
Insurance S 3 3 3 3 3  - . 3

Board Expertses 5 S 3 3 $  - 3 3 S S

9. Software 3 . $ S - 3 3 3 S s 3

10. Mar1(etirK)/CoinmuniC( 3 17,000.00 3 3 17.000.00 s 5  • 3 $  17.000.00 $ 3  17.000.00

11. Staff Education and T<; S 3 663.00 3 .663.00 $ 3 s 3  663.00 3  663.00

12. Subcontracts/AgreerrM S 3 3 . 3  ■ s 3 3 3 S

13. Other. Diabetes Stiper 3 15.000.00 5 3 15.000.00 3 S  .. 3 , S  15.000.00 S $  15.000.00

Diabetes Events - Venue a 3 20.000.00 3 3 20.000.00 $ $ " • 3  20.000.00 3 5  20,000.00

; ..

general (ndireci Costs $ . S-9.881.00 3 9.881.00 3 1 $ - 3 9.881.00 3  9 681.00

TOTAL $ 99,680.00 315,120.00 3115.000.00 3- - 3 3 i 115.120.00 (  liS.OM.OO-
General Irtdireci As A Percent el Direct

JSI Research Trait^ institute. Inc.
RFP.2021.0PHS03-e0UCAJ)1
ExMbft C«13 Diabetes Budget
Page 1 of t

15.1%

(i
Contractor Initials -

Date.
3/30/2021



DooiSign Envelope ID; 232E6942-OD4A-«lE6F-91AE-468SA3F41DlE

DocuSJgn Envelope ID; F78tE629«577-4eiA-94C4-C88C0792FCA4
E)^ibit C *14 Heart Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name: JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. (JSI) d.b.a Community Heatth Institute

Budget Request for. NH OHHS Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases
HEART

Budget Period: July 1. 2022 • June 30. 2023

Total ProqramCost Contractor Share/'Match ' Funded by OHHS contract share ^ I
Lirte Item Direct .  -Indirect Total Direct  a' .* indirect Total - ■■ Direct Indirect Total- 1

1. Total Salary/Waqes S 33.158.00 s •  . S 33.158.00- $ $ S  33.156.00 S r$ 33.158.00

2. Employee Benefits 11.008.00 s  =•• 5 11.008.00 s s $ 5  11.008.00 i 11.008.00

3. Ccnsultar^ts s . $ S .i. % $  •> $ s $ s •

4. Eoutpmeni: s $ ,5 % 5 S $• - $  t

Rental $ s S  • '$ 5 5 5  .• $ s

Repair and Maintenance $ J $ .$ 5 $ S s %

Purchase/Oepredation s s S >>. ' s 5 s s i •  -

5. Suppfies: s 1.592.00 $ 1.592.00 $ S S $  1,592.00 s 1,592.00

Educational $ s . $ - 5 s S i $ -

Ub s $ j S $ S s $ s

Pharmacv J $ S $ $ S $ i 5

Medical $ s $ S $ $ $ i $

Office s s J s S  • $ i $

6. Travel $ S S  r s  - $ s i $ r.

7. Occupancy s 3.714.00 $ - $ 3.714.00 s $ S $  3,714.00 s )3.714.00

8. Current Expenses s . $ 2,984.00 S 2.984.00 S s S S 5  2.984.00 S 2,984.00

Telephone 5 s . $ s $ s 5  -X- s s -

Postage s s s  : 5 5 s s $ $

Subscriptions s s s  i $  >. $ s

Audii and l^gal s rr.  - -
s  - s S $ $ $

Insurance s 5 $ s $ 5 $ $

Board Eja>en&es s i s % $ s s $

9. Software s . $ $ • • $ $ s s- $ $ -

10. Marlcsting/Communi $ 8.000.00 $ i • s 6,000.00 % $ s 5  8.000.00 $ $ 6.000.00

11. Staff Education and s •- s 663.00 s 663.00 $  :• 5 $ $  663.00 s 663.00

12. Subcontracts/Agree s * • « s • s s i $ -

13. Other Heart Stipem s 23.500.00 s s 23.500.00 $ $ S S  23.500.00 $ Is 23.500.00

Heart Events Venue & rn 20.500.00 s $ 20.500.00 s S *5 *«*» ' %  20.500.00 $  >;•■ 20.500.00
• 1  ■ i A, 1

General Indirect Costs |s^ [T 9.881.00 rs _9jM1^ s  - $: • s 9.881.00 -L 9.881.00

TOTAL. 1 % 99,880.00 1 S 15.120.00 rT' 115,000.00 5 S 5 5  09.880.00 i£ 15,120.00

JS< Research Training Institute. Inc
RFP-2021-pPHS-03-€OUCA-01
Exhibit C-14 Heart Budget ^
Page 1 of 1

Contractor initials
(5

Date.
3/30/2021



DocuSIgn Envelope ID; 232E6942-004A-4E6F.91AE-4$8SA3F4^D1E

DocuSIgn Envelope ID: F78^E629^5t7^BlA.94C4-C8aC0792FCA4
Exhibit C-iS Arthritis Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bidder/Program Name; JSI Research & Training Inslihile, inc. (JSI) d.b.a Community Health Institute

Budget Request for: NH DHHS Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases
ARTHRIVS

Budget Period: July^l, 2022 • June 30. 2023

.. Total Program Cost 1 Contractor.Share-/Match I Funded by DHHS contract share' " 1

LinoTlcm v •'•> Direct- . Indirect'- ' ■ Total . Direct -••-indirect • -Total Dir^ect indirect. • .Total • -1

1. Total Saiarv^aqes S 6.924.001 S  - - $  6,924.00 3 3  * - 3 $ 6.924.00 3 3  6.924.00

2. Employee Benefits S 2.299.00 5  ?- 3  2.299.00 3  v.- 3 3  f. $ 2.299.00 'r'- ■ 3  2,299.00

3. Consultants s . S  • 3  -? 3 $ ■ $ 3 3

4. Equipment J - S • • 3 3 $' S 3 3

5 j $ 3  =- 3 3 3 3 3  ''

Repair artd Maintenance S 5 3 3 • 3  -r 3 3 ■ -r: 3

Purchase/Depredation 5 S  -.f 3 $ $ 3

5  332.00. 3  332.00 3 $ 3  332.00 3  332.00

$ s s 3 3 3 3 S 3  T-.

« $ 3 3  ?■ 3- 3 3 3  r

Pharmacy S $ 3 3  •: 3 3 3 3

Medical 5 $, s .3 3  ♦: 3 5 3 3

Office c $• 3 3 3  E $  -I.:--. 3 3

6. Travel S $ s 3  ?• ■*' 3 3 3  -u 3 3

7. Occupancy % 776.00 j 3  -776.00- 3 3  776.00 3 3  776.00

8. Current Ei^enses $ ♦ s  . 623.00 3  623.00 3  - ! 3 IS $ 3  623.00 3  623.00

Telephone' 1 s $ s 3 3 3 3 3 3

Postaqe J $ 3  -r 5 3 3 3 3

Subscriptions S  •- $ 5 3 $ $ 3 3

Audi! and Leqal J. ■>.; s  ■:••• 3 3  • ••> - .3 3 .3 .'j- ' 3 3

Insurance i  • ' : S  V--' S . S $  1 3  •' 3 5 3

Board Expenses j 3 s 3 3 3- 3 3

9. Software j S $ S- 3 3 $  •' 3 3

10. MarHetinq/Communic j 3 3 5  . S 3 • 3

11. Staff Education and 1 5 3  138.00 S  138.00 3 3 .3 5 3  138.00 3  138.00

12. Suboontracts/Agreen « j 3 3. $ 3 3 3

13. Other (specific deiaili S . .j '3- 3 %■' 5 . % 3 3

tncenirves for Focus Groi S 345.00 3 3  345.00 s $ 3  ':-v 3  345.00 3  ; .- 3  S45.00

Stipeertd for Walk with E: s 1.500.00 S 3 , 1;500.00 3  •• $ 3 3 1.500.00 $ 3  1.500.00'

General Indirect Costs . $ - . 3 - 2.063.00. 3  2.063.00 3 3 3 3 2.063.00 3  2.063.00

TOTAL 3 11,844.00 3  3.156.00 15,005.06 • J IS . IS ..
General indirect As A Percent o^ Direct

JSI Resear^ Training Institute, Inc.
RFP-2021-DPHS-03-EOUCA-01
Exh&it C*15 Arthritis Budget
Page 1 of l

26.6%

Contractor Initials.
E

Date
3/30/2021



DoaiSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-OD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F41D1E
DocuSign Envelope 10: F78ie629-6S77-4B1Ai94C4-C68C0792FCA4

ExhibI C-ie BCCP Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

BidderTPrografn Name: JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc. (JSI) d.b.e Community Health Institute

Budget Request for:-NH DHHS Professional Education and Promotion to Prevwt and Manage Chronic Diseases
eccp

Budget P^od: July 1. 2022. June 30.2023

•Total Program Cost; ."Contractor Share'/Match M

Line Item Direct 'Indirect „-To£tal. • .Direct. .. ctv-JndirecleT-a., j.-I.Otall, ? -Jr, Directs <lrtdiiec.l 9 . ~To.tal- ..v

1. Total Salary/Waqes $  11.622.00 s •S 11,622.00 s $  - s S  11.622.00 $ 3  11.622.00:

2. Employee Benefits S  3.859.00 S  • -.v . S  3.659.00; ■ S t: $  r' $ S  3.859.00 $ 3  3.859.00

3. Consultants j .5 S S $ S s $ •

4. Equiprnent S  - =•- s s s S 5  . s 3  • -r:. 3"^ *

$  .... 5  ■"<•.- * iS i 5 S S s $. • 3 ■

Repair and Mairttenance j S s S  • .$ J

Purchase/Depreciation $ S $ s s s  > $ 3

S  • S  558.00 $  558.00 $ 5 s $ S  558.00 S  558.00

5 $ $ S. % $ 5 $

S s S $  .r $  .••• s $

S s s s S t  v»-. $ 3
.j. i--. $ s  : - 5 S s $ 5  -i-:- $

Office J J- i S 5 $ 3 3

6. Travel i $ % $ S i 3 $

7. Occuoartcy S  1.302.00 J S  1.302.00 s j $  1302.00 5 3  1.302.00

8. Cunent Ej«>enses « S  1.046.00 -$ 1.046.00 5 •$ •/ .♦ $ i • 3  1.046.00 3  1,046.00

Telephofw s % $ S  " S s $ 3 3

Postaoe 5 s s s s  • $ S 3 3

Subscriptions s s J  T. s. $ s % 5 3

Audit and Leqai 5 -S r S  . s s J $ 3  - 3  ':♦

Insurance ^ -S S  . i s S s 5  c! 3 3

Board Eapertses $  ->■. s 5 $ s $ 3 3

9. Software $ s S s s $ S 3 3

10. MadcetinQ/Communicat'ons S  16.000.00 $ S 16.000.00 s S' ■ * S  16.000.00 3 3  16.000.00

It. Staff Education and Traininq s S  231.00 S  231.00 S $ $ 3  231.00 3  .231.00

12. Sut>cont/8cts/Aqreements $ $ $ s $ $ S 3

13. Other (specific details mandatary): I  . . $ $ s S 5. 5  • $

Mariretina - Purchase & Place Media 5 12.500.00 5 $  12,500.00 s S $ S  12.500.00 3  • —- 3  12.500.00

S j  : •S $ $ s 3 3

General Indirect Costs S S  5.123.00 S  5.123.00' S" $ S 3  5.123.00 3  S.123.00

TOTAL • i 45,283.00 $ 6,958.00 i 52.241 .M 1 i S  4538X00 3  6,958.00 I  5l241.dA.
General Indirect As A Percent of Oirec 15.4%

JSI Research Training institute. Inc.
RFP.2021.DPH&03-EDUCA.01
&chibil C-t6 BCCP Budget
Page 1 of 1

Contractor lniti^_

bate
3/30/2021



OocuSign Envtiope ID: 232E6942-0D4A-4E6F.91AE<468SA3F4101E

DocuSJgn Envelope 10; F7eiee2«577-481A-94C4-C88C0792FCA4
Exhibtl'C-17 Comprehensive Cancer Budget

' New Hampshire Department of Hearth and Human Services

BlddefTProgrem Name: JSI Research & Training Instilute.Tnc. (JSI) d.bj Community Health Institute

Bu<}get Request for NH DHHS Professional Education and Promotion to Prevent and Manage Chronic Diseases
COMPCAACfR

Budget Period: July ii 2022 • June 3D, 2023

Total Proaram Cost ' Contractor Share / Match ' - Funded by DHHS cofTtract share' of

Lino Item .Direct •  tr>direct - Total Direct indirect. Total Direct Indirect. TOUI .; 1

Total Salary/Waoes $  1,000.00 $ $  1.000.00 s 5 S  > S 1,000.00' S S  1,000.00

2. Employee Benefits ' %  333.00 •S .T' S  333.00 s $ s S 333.00 S S  333.00

3. ConsuSants j $ i s S  •• s $ S s

4. EquipmenL S  -"i $ t  ■: $ S i S S $

Rental j s % $  - $■ i  ;• S \ S $

Reoair and Maintenance $ I s S s  . $ S s

Pufchasc/0eprec»3t*>n S  -"-'t $ s $ s $ s S  •

S. Supplies: S $  48.00 6  48.00 5 s S s 5  48.00 $. 48.00

Educational J  U $ S 5 $• . s s S $

Ub $  V -.f s S 5 s $ s $

Pharmacv J ■$ X-.- S S s s s

Medical } $ $ s  - t $  V- s s $

Office J $ $ 5 s 5 s t

6. Travel J s $ $ $ S s s  - s

7. Occuoancv S  112.00 $ S  112.00 S S  V- s  ■ S  112.00 $ $  112.00

8. Current Expenses 5 S  90.00 S  90.00 s s- - $ s $  90.00 $  90.00

Telephone $  "St - % i . 1'- ■ $ s s $ s S

Postage S. - " $ s- S S $ s $ .

Subschptions } s  ■" s s  • $ s s s

Audit and Legal 1 % S $• • V s s s s 5 s  • ■

Insurance i J  • • : S 5 S  'r i  -r 1 5 $ 5

Board Expertses $ - •> $  •... s  .• $ 5 5 S •S - • S"*

9. Sofhrvare j S s S s $ S S s

10. Marketing/Communicalions j $  i $ S f $ 5 s

t1. Stall Education and Training % S  20.00 i  . 20.00 S i i s  ■ S  20.00 S  20.00

12. Subcontracts/Aarcements s $ $ $ s i S s s  -•

13. Other (specific details mandate J . s  • $ $ $ S.v s

Survivorship Event - Food A Venue J .$ s s s i S $

Cancer Collaborative Meetings S  2,897.00 s $ 2.897.00 S  • $ $ S 2.897.00 S  2,897.00

CEU-S S s s s 5  '• % S  --"r ■ ;$

General Indirect Costs ( S  500.00 S  .500.00 s 5  - Si $ S  500.00 S 5Mj^
TOTAL $  4J42.00 S  658.00 s \% -^ \% • I W.W2.00 .1 V 5.000.00 1

I Direct.

JSI Research Training Institute. Inc.
RFP-2021 -OPHS-03-«XjCA^ 1
Ejdtibil C-17 Comprehertsive Cancer Budget
Page t of .1 V

Contractor Inttiab

Date.
3/30/2021



OocuSign Envelope ID: 232E6942-0D4A-4'E6F-91AE-4685A3F4101E
DocuSign Envelope lO: F78lE629<5n-4B1 A.94C4-C68C0792FCA4

ExTiibil C-16 VVISEWOMA^I Budpel

f-(

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Sennces

BkldorfPrognm Name; JSl Reeeereh & Treintng Institute, Irtc. (JSO d.bJ Community Health institute ;

Budget Request for NH DHHS Professional Education and Promotion to Pravent an'd Manage Chronic Diseases
WSEHOiUM

Budget Period: July t. 2022-June 10,2023 ^ '*

-  Total Proorsm Cost • Contractor $fiare./-Mateh] Funded by DHHS'contract Share -i

Lino Item ' * Direct indiroct ■: Toial>' c Direct -j Indirect Total ■ Direct indtreci . .* • Total

1. Total SsiaryfWaoes S 16.842.00 $ 8 16.642.00 8 8 8 8  ie.S42.X 8 8 16.642.00 •

2. Enr\ployee Benefits $ 5.592.00 S 8 5.592.O0 8 8 8 8  5.592.00 8 8 5.592.00

3.) Consutiants s . » 8 8 8 8 8 8 •

4." Eouloment: $ 8 8 $  . -.-'i-- 8 8 8 8 8 -

Rental s 8 8 8  r 8  • 8 8  •r.' • 8 8

Reoatr and Maintenance s  ♦ 8 8 8 8  * 8 8 8 8 •  ■

Purchase/Oepredatlon i 8 •  }. 8 . 8 8  -f- 8  t'y 8 8 8 •

S. Supplies: i $ 808.00 8- ■  608.00 8  ? 8 8  . • 8 8 608.00 8 606.00

Educational t 8 •- 8 8 ■"•A- 8 8 8 8 •

Lab . % $ 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 •

Pharmacy i  • 8 8 $ 8  -- 8 8 8 ■-

Medical i  .• 8 • > 8 8 S  . * 8 8 8  > 8 -

Office S 8 8 >. 8 8 8 8 8 8 •

6. Travel s 300.00 8 8 300.00 8 8 8  300.00 8 8 300.00

7. OcarparKy $ 1.888.00 •8 .. 8. 1.686.00 8  V 8 8  1.666.00 8 .  r 8 1,666.00

8.- Current Expenses $ . 8 1.516.00 8 1.516.00 8 8 8 8 8 1.516.00 8 1.516.00

Tetephorre i 8 . 8 8. 8 8 8 8
-

Postaoe s  - 8  • 8 8 8  . •: 8 8 8 8 •  ■■

Subscriptions $ 8 1  -••T- 8 8 8 8 8 8

Audii and Lecai $  =- 8 8 8 8 $ 8 8  • 8

Insurance s 8  • 8 8 8 8 8  :.T 8 8

Board Expenses s 8  - 8  • 8 8 1  >:• 8 8  • 8

9. Soltvraro s . 8 8 - 8  -• 8 8 8 8 8 •

10. MarketinolComrnunlcations i 5.500.00 8 . 8 3.500.00 8 8 8  5,500.00 8 8 5.500.00

t>. Suff Education and Tralran s . 8 336.00 8 336.00 8  -- 8 8 8 8 336JX) 8 336.00

12. Subcontracts/Aoreements $ 8 • - 8 8 8- 8 8 8 •

13. Other (specrTtc details mandatory): 8 8 . 8 8 8 8 8 8 •

Media Campaian & Print Materl 30.000.00 8 8 30.000.00 8 15.000.00 8 8 15.000.00 8  15.000.00 8 8 15.000.00

Pre-Posl Survey % 6.000.00 8 8 6.000.00 8 8 8 8  6.000.00 8 8 6.000.00

virtual Focus Groups i SOO.OO 8 8 .500.00 8 8 8  500.00 8  .-•••; ■ 8 500.00

PtroWideD Ueense i 300.00 5  .. . 8 300.00 8 ••• 8 8 8  300.00 8 8 300.00

A/8 Testim $ 300.00 8 8 3oaoo 8 8 8 8  300.00 8 8 300.00

Wet»ita Ptuotns & Support s 100.00 8 8 100.00 8 8 .8 8  ■ 100.00 8 8 100.00

General Indirect Costs i 8 5.020.00 8 s. 8  . - \i - 8 5.020JX> $ 5 020.00

TOTAL 8 67.320.00 8 7,680.00 S 78,0M.00 1* 15,000.00 | -> ■ i IS.OOe.OQ.I 8 .52.320,00. 8 7^00,00 1^^100:00 1

' Gonersl Indirect As A Percen I'ol Direct 11.4% •t .

JSl Research Trasting Institute. Inc.
RFP.2021 ̂ PHS-03-€OUCA-01
Etdilbft C-18 WISEWOMAN Budget
Pago 1 of t .

5
Contractor Infflah

3/30/2021
Data!



DocuSign Envelope 10:232E6942-OD4A-4E6F-91AE-4685A3F41D1E
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor Idenlified in Section 1.3 ol the General Provisions agrees lo comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et.seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE • CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Sublille D; 41 U.S.C. 701 el seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were arnended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
■21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-^ranlees and sub
contractors). prior lo award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a Slate
may elect to make one certification to the Department In each federal fiscal year In lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact.upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. Palse
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension.or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to: ^

Corhmissioner
NH Department of Health and Human Sen/ices .<
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 033016505

1.. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prphiblled in the grantee's
workplace and specifying ihe actions that will be taken againsi employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program lo inform empioyees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abus.e in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. ' Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required l^y paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

empioyment under the grant. Ihe employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4-.2. Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring In the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying Ihe agency in wriling.'wlthin ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise, receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice. Including'position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was woricing, unless the Feder^agency

0 - CeiUficelion regafdlng Drug Free Vendor lrtHiaJ»>
Woikplace Requiremenla 3/30/2021
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identificalion number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the reQuirernenls of the.Rehabililalion Act of 1973, as
amended; or

■' 1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. Slate, or tocal health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency:

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to mainiain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1. 1.2, 1.3.1.4.1.5. and 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert in the space provided below the sile(s) for the performance of work.done in
connection with the specific grant. v,

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

•X

Check □ if there are workplaces on file lhat are not identified here. .>

r  Vendor Name:

-DMwSIQfMkT:

3/30/2021

Dili • 'NSlS^Hj^aWRobert
Title: Director

5ExhIW 0 -Certificslion regarding Drug Free Vendor InHieb^ i.
Workplace Reguiiemenls . 3/30/2021
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CERTIFtCATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identiried In Seclion 1.3 of (he.General Provisions agreies to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as idenlined in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the Genera) Provisions execute the following Certincation; . is

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - contractors

Programs (indicate applicable program covered); > .
'Temporary Assislarjce to Needy Families under THIe iV-A ~
*CKild Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D ^
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grarit under Title VI T ?
''Child Care Development Block,Grant urider Title IV ,%•

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
anyperson for influencing or attempting to influence en officer or employee of any agency, a f\^ember
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress; or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal.'amendment, or
■modification of any Federal cpntrad. grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee Of sub-contractor). • ,

2. If any funds other than Federal approprialed funds have been paid-or will be paid to ariy person for
influencing or'altemptihg to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member'of Congress.

'an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee'of a Member of Congress in connection vvilh this
'  Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub- '' ^

contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this cetlification be included In the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This,certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transition imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certificalion shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less'than $10,003 and not more than $100,000 for.
each such failure.

'  Vendor Name:

y,—

3/30/2021 ■" I ■
Dili

Director

Exhibit E - Certification Repardirtg Lobbying Vendor Nliols,
3/30/2021
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION .

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS.

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive. Office of the President. Executive Order 12S49 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and funher agrees to have the Contractors
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certificalion:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By.slgning and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
cenirication set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certificalion required below will no! necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the cedificalion. The certification or explanation will be
considered In connection wilh the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of-the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certirication or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation iri
this transaction.

3. The certincation in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If It is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default;

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) Is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that It.s certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by.reason of changed
circumstances.

,5. The terms 'covered transaction,' 'debarred,' 'suspended.' 'ineligible,* 'lower tier covered
transadion.' 'participant.' 'person,' 'primary covered transaction.' 'principal.* "proposal.* end
'voluntarily excluded.* as used In this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered inlo. il shall not knowingly enter Into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation In this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will Include'the
clause titled 'Certlficailon Regarding Oebarmpnt, Suspension. Inel.igibility and Voluntary Exclusion •
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,* provided by DHHS, without modincalion, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

6. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of.a prospective participant'In a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or Involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows (hat the certificalion is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of Its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be co'nstrued to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certificalion required by this clause. The knowledge andf^^'

m
Exhibll F - C«rtiricelion Regarding Oebarmerti, Suapenalon Contractor limi3U> ■ ■ ■'

r  And Other Rejponjbility Mattera 3/.J0/2O21
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infoimation of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person In the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
■ covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction. In
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or defaull (

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best ofiis Knowledge and belief, that It and its

principals:
11.1. aro not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, ̂ctared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In
,  connection witn oblaining. attempting .to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)

transaction or a contract under a public transaction; yiolation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction ol
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

1,1.3. are not presently Indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated In paragraph (i)(b)
of this certification; and

- 11.4. have hot within a.three-year period preceding this application/propose! had one or more public
.  transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated' for'cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certincalion.-such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contracl).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and subrnitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lovi^r tier pariicipant. as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. ere not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

votuntarily excluded from participation In this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2; where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower b'er.participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
Include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibility, and

' Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,*.without modification in all lower tier covered
- transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

•3/30/2021

Date ^ ^ttiSrfi^fW'Robert
,  r Title; ,

Director

-0)

ExWbil F - Certification Rogirding Oobarmetrt. Susponsloo Controctof Inltia1t> .
And Other RojponsibUly Mattofi *3/30/2021 /-
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH»BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND
WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS .

The Conlraclor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as.identiriedjn Sections 1.11 and 1:12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
ceniflcalion:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondisciimination requirements, which may include: '

• the Omnibus Crime Control end Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients,of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or In
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain redpienls to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

• the Juvenile Justice Oelihquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) svhtch adopts by
reference, the civil rights pbligaliohs of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding.under this .
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements:

- the Cfvl) Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibils recipients of federal finahcial
assistance from discriminating oh the basis of race, color, or national origin In any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients'of.Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

• the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U,S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discriminalion'and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in emplpymen't. State and local

• government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendrhents of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681,1663, 1685-86), which prohibits
discriminafion on the basis of sex in, federally .assisted education programs;

- the'Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07). which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include .
employment discrimlnatlpn;

- 28 C.F.f^. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Prograrns);'28 C.F.R. pi. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscriminalion; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies.
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equalprolecUon of the laws for faith-based and community
.orgariizaiions); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

• 28 C.F.R. pi. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for'Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whislleblower protections 41 U.S:C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L, 112-239, enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whislleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payrrients, suspension or termination oI grants, or government wide suspension or
debarmenl.

Exhibit G
Conir»ct6r Initials
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In the event a Federal or Stale court or Federal or Stale administraliye agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health end Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

—OMu91gfi«4 b)R

3/30/2021 i

Diir ' ■ 'STVym^'Robert
Title:. Director

tie

/—oi

L
ExMbit C
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227. Pan C • Envlfonmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be perrriltted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of heallh, day care, education,
or.library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through Slate or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicald funds, and portions of facilities used for inpalient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
SI 000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the resporisible entity.

The Contractor identiHed in-Seclion 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by stgnalure of the Conlraclor's
representative as idenlified In Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract,- the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227. Part C. known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994. •

Contractor Name:

3/30/2021

Date 'l^mS-V'a^S'V'Robert
Title:

Director

CVUOHHS;t>«7l3

Exhibit H - Ceniricetion Regarding
Environmenlal Tobacco Smoke
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

'  . ' ' '

The Contrador identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 1S4 applicable to business associates. As defined herein. "Business
Associate' shall'mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protectediheallh information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a.. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section .164.402 of title 4.5.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulatio.ns.

c. "Covered Entitv" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

(j. "Deslonated Record Set" shall have Ihe same meaning as the term "designated record set'
in 45 CFR" Sectioni 64.501.

e. 'Data AQoreaation' shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation' in 45 CFR ..
Section 164.501. . , ... iv

I

f. 'Health Care Operations' shall" have the same meaning as the term "health care operations'
:> in 45 CFR Section ,164.501.

g. "HlTECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for iEconomic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII, Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of -
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public,Law
104-191 and the .Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable" Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Individual' shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103.
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g). * '

i- 'Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United .Slates
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health .
information' in 45,CFR Section 160.'l03, limited to the information created or receive<rt¥
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3^014 .ExWbitl ConlfflctPf InlllalaV
Heallh Insurance Poriatrility Aci
Buslneu Assodale Agrcemeni -3/30/2021
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I. 'Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "requifed by law" In 45 CFR'
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretarv^ shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR part 164. Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health Information that is not
secured by a technology standard thai renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipheraljle to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the'American National Standards
Institute. , v

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160.162 and 164, as amended from time, to lime, and the
HITECH'

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate. Including but not limited to all
Its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b; " Business Associate may.use. or disclose PHI;
c. 1. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;

.11-. As required by law, pursuant io the terms set forth ip paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c:,, To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party,- Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure. (1)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party: and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business

■■ Associate, in accordance with the HlPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI In response to a
request for disclosure on Ihe'basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclos^^and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busifej

3/2014 I  Contrsctor initiflIsS
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI untH'Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies. ' • ;.

e; If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shail not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obliaatlona and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered'Entity's Privacy Officer Immediately
after the Business Associate becornes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health Information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information.and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to: -

0 The nature and extent of the protected health Information involved, including the
'types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;„

o  The unauthorized person used the protected health inforrriation or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired oT viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated. c ' .

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
.Covered Entity. ;

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security; and
Breach Notification Rule.

d., Business Associate shall make available all of Its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security ROle.

e. Business Associate.shall require'ail of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions'on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under'Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business iate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receivlngjJJ^I

ExrtWli Conlrdciof Wtielj;
Health Insurance PorteUiity Ad
Business Associate Agreement 3/30/2021
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
.  business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard

contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of.
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity. '
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered.Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's cornpliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within (en (10) business days of receiving e written request from Covered Entity.-
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entjty, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the,
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h.- Wlhin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set..the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for.
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Seclioh 164.526.

I. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and'information related to
such disclosures as would be required forCovered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (lO).buslness days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
>  request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall'make available

to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures wilh respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR

,v. Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of. or accounting of PHl
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Eritity. Covered Entity .shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered .Entity would cause Covered Entity or the .Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination- of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreerhent, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If reiurn or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PH| has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to th
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business

3/2014 ExhiblH ConUBClw InltUU^——
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Associate maintains such PHI. if Covered Entity, in its.soie discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or ail PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to . .
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Qbllaatlons of Covered Entity

a  Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limltation{s) In its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance v/ith 45 CFR Section
164.520. to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI. •

b  Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHi may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or"45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any.restrictions
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions {Pr37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement uppn Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately,
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity, if Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

' a. Definitions anrt Renulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein
shall have the same meaning as those terms In the Privacy and Security
from lime to time.' A reference'in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree, to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessa^ for Covered
Entity !o comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPM. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c  Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf.of Covered Entity.

H  intfiroretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be fjC^ed
-  - .

3/2014
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e. SeoreQation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit i or the application thereof to any
person(5) or circumstance is held invalid,, such mvalidity shall not affect other terms or'
conditions which cari be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions In this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of Jhe
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

..Department of Health and Human Services " JSi Research & Training institute, inc'.
Contractor

Signature of Authorized Representative Sigi^ure or Authorized Representative

Lisa M. Morris Katie Robert

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
Director, Division of Public Health srvcs..

;  Director

Title of Authorized Representative Tille of Authorized Representative

4/2/2021 3/30/2021

Date Date

3/2014 ExNM I ContrACtcu Inlllsls
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILnTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1. 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
'initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant 'modiricalions result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the dale of the award.
In accofdance witb 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information); the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of eward

3. Funding agency
A. NAJCS code for contracts/CFOA program number for grants •
5. Program source ' '
6. Award lilie descriptive of'the purpose of the funding action
7. Localiof) of the entity •
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS 0) i
10. Tola! compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues areifrom the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Cbmpensatioh information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required date by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment Is made.

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part'l 70 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensatior^ Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to pro\^de needed information as outlined above to (he NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accouritability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

-DotuM^nMbr

3/30/2021

Dili
Title:

Director

Eftiibil j - CortiTiulion Reganflng tha FeOorol Funding Contrector Inltlob
Aocounlidilily And Tr6n»p»fency Ad (FFATA) Complianc© 3/30/2021
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fORM A

As ihe Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and.accuraie.

14S729U7

1. The DUNS number for your^enlity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans grants, sub^ranls. and/or cooperative agrcerhents; and (2) $25,000,000 or more,in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grar^ts. subgrants. and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO •YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

It the answer to #2 above Is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does Ihe public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

.-.NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES. stop here

If Ihe answer to #3 above is NO. please answer the following:,

4. The names and compensation oMhe five most highly compensated officers In your business or
organization arc as follows:

Name:.

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:.

Amount:,

Amount:

Amount:

Amount;

cun»MV>ion)

OS

Exhibit J -.CohifiCBlion Regarding Ihe Federal Fundirtg
AccountabiWy And Trer^ipanncy Ad (FFATA) CompSance
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized - disclosure,
unauthorized acguisilion. unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to

:  . situations where persons other than authorized users .and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable -
information, whether physical or electronic. ' With regard to Protected Health
Information.' Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term*",Breach" in section

■  I64.402of Title 45.,Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security'Incident' shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident' in section'two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61. Computer Security incident
Handling Guide, National institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department

■  of Commerce.

3.' "Confidenliarinformation" .or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance beneflts and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records. Protected' Hea'llh Information and
Personally Identiflable Information.

ConfKjential Information also.includes any and all information owned or managed by
the Slate of NH • created, received frorti or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human "Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which coilection, disclosure, protection, and disposition Is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
protected Health information (PHI). Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial

.  Information (PFI). Federal Tax Informatrori (FT!). Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information. •

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g.. contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract. )

5. "HIPAA" means the Heallh'insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations.promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access,to a
system o'r Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of. service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware." or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or.
consent. Incidents include the, lo.ss of data through theft or device misplacement. Joss ■

^  or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrduting of physical or electronic

V5. UslupdototW09/i6 i' Erf^lbllK, ComroclOf Inttlob;,
OHHSInfoonaUon

SecultyRequlrtmanls 3/30/2021
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DHHS information Security Requirements

rnail, all of which may have the-potentldl to put the data at risk.of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means, any network, or segment of a network that.Is
not designated .by the State of New Harnpshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, 'tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to' transmit) will .be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transm.ission of unencrypted PI,,PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information", (or "PI") means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity.- such as their name, social-security numtjer, personal

^  information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biom'etric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other persona) or identifying information which is linked
or linftable to a specific,individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maide.n
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy .of Individually Identifiable Health
information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 arid 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United
Stales Department of Healt.h and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or -'PHI") has the same meaning as provided In the •
definition of 'Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Priviacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendrhents
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Informatibn" means.Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information .

'  unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized indjvkjuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited .by
the American'National Standards Institute. . •

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidenlial Information.

1. The Conlracibr must not use, disclose, maintain or transnriit Confidential information
except as.reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, mairitain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor rfiusl not disclose any Ckinfideniial Information In response to a

evs.Uslupdolo 10r09/l8 ExhibitK ContrBCtoftnillots^' ■ ■
DHKSInfonriaiJon
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. in response to a
subpoena.' etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure. -

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Qontractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In ■violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

A. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from-disclosed to an End
tJser must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

• 6. The Contractor agrees to grant access' to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS'for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract. •

II, fVIETHODS OF SECURE TRANSfWISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If. End User, is transmitting' DHHS data containing.
Confidential Data between applications, the Coniraclor alte'sts the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the Internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may hot use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmittipg DHHS

•data. -• ^

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confldehtial Data if
email is encrvoted and being, sent to. and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and .the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use fi le
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data:

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certiried ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices, to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

• 8 Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data-via an open

V5.U5tupdaio10rt)9/ie EkWWK CortrBCtorlnltiob^ii::
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wireless neNvork. End User musl employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be

^  installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will'be
transmitted or accessed. • • .. •.

10. SSH File Trans.fer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP (o transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inapRfopriate disclosure of .
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will

- be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data-will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data'via wireless devices, all
data musl be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After .such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative In whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted •
under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it wiii not store, transfer or process data oollecled in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United

States. This'physical location requirement shall also apply In the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees .to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH Systems
and/or Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential'information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
In a secure location and identified in'section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must 'be In a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices* must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems; the jatesl anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware. and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a

OS
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whole, must have aggressive IntrusiorHleteotion and firewall pfotection.

6. • The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerabiiity of the hosting

•  infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. if the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for^any Stale of New Hampshire data destroyed by the ^
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing; emergency, and or disaster
recovery, operations. When no longer- in use. electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance'Nwth industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or othenvise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitizallon, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification, will include' ail ^details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated.'Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless' otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Conridential Data using a

.  secure method such as shredding. i . . -

r  3. .Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows; ;•

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls /to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed", and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycie, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and. access controls tq
contractor systems that collect, transmit, .or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact Slate' of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems. .t-

5; The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6  If the Contractor -will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagerhent
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of- an internal ■ process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to swurity requirements that at a minimum

■  -match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements. •

7. The Contractor will vwDrk with the Department to sign and comply-with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access, and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining, and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized- ,,

a. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor will execute a HiPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and Is responsible for maintaining compliance the
agreement. "

9." The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management^Survey. The purpose of the surviey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabililies that may,
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually; or an alternate time frame at the Departmenis discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be "completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store; knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts -to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly lake measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall rer^ver from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery
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the breach. Including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, rnailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must In all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of Pi and PHI at a level and scope that Is not less
than the level .and-scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not iirnited to. provisions of-the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. .§5b); HIPAA Privacy and Security-Rules (45
C'.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protectidfis for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative.'technlcal. and
physical safeguards to protect the-confidentiality of the Confidenllal Data and to

■prevent unauthorized use'or .access to it. The safeguards.must provide a level and
scope of security that is nol less" than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the Stale of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procuremehl at https://www.hh.gov/doil/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines! standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain: a documented breach notification and incident
.  response process. The Contractor will notify the-State's Privacy .Officer and the

State's Security Officer of ariy security, breach-immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach whic.h affects or includes any State of New
•Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.. ■

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only , those authorized End, Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Cqnlracl.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:-

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced -in Section IV A. above.
Implemented to. protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all limes. -
c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI. PI. or

PR are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encivDled and .being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

M
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidentlal lnformation to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidenlial Information received under this Contract and iridividually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be. stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duly hours as v^ll as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,-
biometfic identifiers" etc.). :•

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidenlial Data, including any
-  derivative files containing personally Identifiable information, and In all cases,

such data- must be encrypt^ at ail times v4ien in-transit, at rest, of vvhen
.. stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. In -all other instances Conndenlial Data must be maintained, used and-
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

■- i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) mCist not be
shared .with anyone. End Users will keep their credential Information secure.
This applies" to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly.through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsile irispecllohs to monitor-compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements-provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laNvs and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
Is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the Stale's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any .
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided In
Section VI. . •

The Contractor'must further handle and report ificidents and Breaches Inyolving PHI In
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification-
procedures and in accordance with' 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding, Conlractor's'compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:
1. Identify Incidents:

2. . Determine if personally Identifiable infprmationis involved inlncidenis;
3; Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;
4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of incidents

and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and; if so. identify appropriate
Breach notification rriethods. timing, source,, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pi must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-0:20.

VI. PERSONS TO. CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer;;

DHHSPrivacyOfficef@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer;

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov.
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